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1.0 Welcome
The past two years have seen substantial changes not only for a reorganised NHS
as a whole but also more specifically for Dorset HealthCare. In 2011 we brought
together our mental health services with the community services provided by others
across Dorset. As a result, the Trust nearly trebled in size and became a very
different organisation. Those changes are now complete, and this year has seen a
real focus on looking to the future as a new unified organisation.
With physical and mental health care services now being provided by one Trust, we
have the opportunity to truly provide a ‘whole person’ approach to care, delivering
services to patients in their own homes or close to their homes. We are in the
process of undertaking this through rolling out local high quality, multi-disciplinary,
integrated health and social care teams.
Although widely anticipated, the recent findings of the Francis Report (following the
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Enquiry) were still shocking and very
saddening.. The Trust held a joint workshop with Governors and the Board to review
the national findings and recommendations and identify priorities for local action.
At Dorset HealthCare, our mission is not to be the biggest, the fastest growing or the
most financially successful Trust in the UK. Our vision is to provide services which
we’d recommend to our family and friends. As a result, care and compassion sit at
the heart of our organisation. Whilst we can never take high quality care for granted,
it is our goal to provide healthcare to be proud of to all our patients.
With this in mind, we have launched a range of new services, improvements and
innovations. You can read about a selection of these later in this report.
It goes without saying that we remain indebted to all our staff who continue to help us
maintain and build on the Trust’s impressive track record of success and innovation.
Yours sincerely

Paul Sly, Chief Executive

and Jonathan Walsh, Chairman
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2.0 Who We Are
Dorset HealthCare is responsible for all community and mental health services
across Dorset. We serve a population of almost 700,000 people, employing around
5,000 staff. The Trust’s income is approximately £225 million.
The past two years have seen substantial changes for Dorset HealthCare Trust
(DHC). In 2011 we brought together our mental health services with the community
services provided by others in Dorset, Bournemouth and Poole. The Trust has
nearly trebled in size and became a very different organisation. Those changes are
now complete, and it is time for us to look to the future as a new organisation.
The Trust operates from one of the largest estates of any NHS Trust in England. It
includes a wide range of different properties ranging from small to medium sized
mental health in-patient hospitals to single ward community hospitals located in
market towns. The services provided by the Trust are diverse and constantly evolving
to meet the changing needs of the local population.
We run Dorset's 11 community hospitals and the minor injuries units - as well as
providing adult and children's community and mental health services, healthcare in
Dorset's four prisons, specialist learning disability services, community brain injury
services, addiction services and community dental services.
Our community health services encompass: district nurses, health visitors, school
nursing, end of life care, sexual health promotion, safeguarding children, diabetes
education, audiology, speech and language therapy, dermatology, podiatry,
orthopaedic, wheelchair services and breastfeeding support services.
The Trust provides local services across a range of locations throughout Dorset, and
even provides some services in Devon and the city of Southampton. Most are
provided in local communities, people's homes, local centres and community
hospitals. We also provide specialist assessment and treatment inpatient centres.
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3.0 Our Achievements
Dorset HealthCare has implemented many new services in the past year, as well as
ensuring continuous improvements and innovation within our existing services. This
is all with the aim of improving the quality of care we provide and so many of these
changes have been undertaken with the early involvement of patients, service users
and carers. Highlights include:
The Friends and Family Test
Seeking and acting on patient feedback is key to improving the quality of our
healthcare services and putting patients at the centre of what we do. This is why, as
part of a national initiative, we have recently launched the Friends and Family Test
for patients in community hospital wards and minor injury units.
The Test is being introduced to allow patients the opportunity to feedback their views
about the care or treatment they have received. This will provide us with valuable
insight about the quality of healthcare, letting us know when we get things right,
where we need to improve and how we compare to other healthcare providers.
When patients leave hospital they will be invited to give their feedback by answering
the simple question: ‘How likely are you to recommend our services to friends and
family if they needed similar care or treatment?’ Patients will also be asked follow-up
questions to find out the reason for their answers, and to get more in depth feedback
on the quality of their care. We will be able to use the feedback, alongside other
information, to identify and tackle concerns at an early stage and improve the quality
of care we provide.
Persistent Pain Service
The Trust has been awarded the contract for the Dorset-wide Community Persistent
Pain Management Service. The Trust will be running the service in West Dorset from
June 2013 and will cover the rest of Dorset from October 2013.
The service aims to help people to deal with their pain through the provision of a
physical, psychological and social assessment. Personalised care packages and
plans with appropriate interventions will be developed to help individuals manage
their pain.
The new service will include training to all GPs to deliver the first phase of advice and
treatment to patients in their practice. This training will allow for effective
assessments of patients to identify those who would benefit from a holistic,
psychological approach. This in turn will reduce the amount of patients who need
injection therapy and help to reduce the waiting times that some patients have
encountered in the past.
Support networks are being established and a website will be available which will
allow patients to discuss persistent pain and how to manage it effectively.
The Trust will also be advocating self-care packages and GPs will be integral to
identifying and working with patients who can manage their own chronic pain. Once a
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patient’s pain is under control and manageable they will also benefit from non NHS
support agencies which can provide support with persistent pain and assistance with
practical steps such as returning to work.
Caring for Our Veterans
The Trust’s ‘Southampton Steps to Wellbeing Service’ introduced a new discreet, fast
access and evidence-based service for military veterans who may be experiencing a
range of mental health problems after conflict, including low mood, anxiety and
depression.
The new self-referral service is run by members of staff who have previous
experience working with both serving personnel and veterans and aims to help local
military veterans adjust to civilian life and cope with trauma related problems.
Tea and Talk
An innovative project beat off almost 400 others to be awarded a £40,000 Time to
Change grant to tackle mental health stigma and discrimination in Dorset. The new
‘Tea & Talk’ project aims to challenge stigma and discrimination by getting people
with and without mental health problems talking together over tea and cakes. People
will be given the opportunity to reflect on their own experiences and think about how
mental health and wellbeing is everyone’s concern. Through personal pledges,
people can demonstrate that they understand the value of conversation and
relationships in supporting both their own and others’ mental health.
Tea & Talk was developed by the Trust’s Helen Hutchings, a registered mental
health nurse who has been diagnosed herself with Bipolar Affective Disorder. The
project will create fun and safe spaces for other people to begin to talk openly about
mental health, thereby building mentally healthier workplaces, schools and
communities. The Dorset Mental Health Forum and the Trust are working in
partnership with Helen to help deliver more than 100 Tea & Talk workshops to
employers and schools across the county.
Recovery Focused
The Dorset Wellbeing and Recovery Partnership - a collaboration between the Trust
and Dorset Mental Health Forum - launched three projects this year to challenge the
stigma surrounding mental illness and promote the principles of recovery.
The first project ‘What Recovery Means to Me…’ was a communication campaign
illustrating the individual nature of people’s experience of recovery. In addition, we
celebrated the success of ‘Hidden Talents’ – a project which seeks to utilise the lived
experience of NHS staff to challenge negative attitudes towards mental illness and
promote organisational change. Finally, we launched the Recovery Education
Centre. The Centre is a cultural shift for the Trust, providing people with education
and tools to self-manage, promote choice, personal responsibility and ultimately
control of their own wellbeing.
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Changes in Dementia Care
The proportion of people aged over 65 in Dorset is higher than the national average
and by 2030 it is predicted that 40 per cent of the population in Dorset will be within
this age category. Currently, health and social care services in Dorset spend
approximately £45 million a year on mental health services for older people - the
majority on inpatient and specialist services, with fewer options for support and care
in the community. However, earlier, community-based interventions are known to
improve quality of life, they are more effective for patients and importantly – as we
prepare to see demand increase significantly in future years – they are more cost
effective.
As a result, plans are currently being implemented to reduce some under-used
inpatient services, in order to divert resources to a much improved and wider range
of community services for people with dementia, and their carers. Specifically we
have introduced a new Dementia Intermediate Community Support Service, which
has benefitted from an extra £250,000 investment, and will enable the provision, for
example, of respite breaks, sitting services and other enhanced social care.
In order to do this, we are in the process of consolidating NHS inpatient care for
dementia patients in East Dorset to Alderney Hospital. There will be an assessment
and treatment ward and an intensive treatment ward for male patients and a similar
arrangement for female patients. The facilities are also being upgraded to modern
clinical standards and incorporate latest guidance to create a more ‘dementiafriendly’ environment than is currently available at Kings Park Hospital.
In essence, our aim is to invest in community services which will include: earlier
diagnosis and treatment for people with dementia; earlier access to information and
support for carers; a dedicated rapid response service to address urgent need at
home for people with dementia; and a comprehensive memory assessment service.
Memory Loss
The Trust has a new Memory Assessment Service for Dorset residents who are
worried about their memory. Memory loss can have a number of causes including
stress, depression, bereavement or dementia. The Trust’s service will work with the
person and their family to understand their diagnosis and how it impacts on their day
to day life. In some cases treatment can be offered to slow down memory loss - and
information, support and signposting to other services is also provided.
Therapeutic Dementia Care
A new ‘men in sheds’ project is an exciting addition to our therapeutic patient
gardening group. The group provides a relaxed atmosphere for dementia patients in
an outdoor setting, giving them time to develop their social skills and reduce any
isolation or boredom they may be experiencing. The group also provides a welcome
distraction from symptoms, helping to maintain mobility and improve mood, stamina,
concentration and hand eye coordination. The new project is run out of the shed in
the garden of Oakley House. It has expanded the range of therapeutic activities
offered and ensures patients can continue to benefit from the group throughout the
winter months.
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Sherborne’s Community Mental Health Team also runs a therapeutic baking group
for its elderly patients with dementia – giving them the chance to maintain their skills
and enjoy some time in the kitchen.
In addition, Blandford’s Elderly Community Mental Health Team arranged a Cream
Tea Dance for local carers and those suffering memory problems. 110 people
enjoyed the afternoon Tea Dance, hosted by the Crown Hotel in Blandford.
Tackling Motor Neurone Disease
An innovative approach to supporting people in Dorset living with Motor Neurone
Disease (MND) has been launched in conjunction with the MND Association and
acute trusts across Dorset. The new ‘Care Pathways’ aim to improve the care for
people living with the rapidly progressive neurological disease by implementing a
joined up, cross-organisation approach that responds to its various stages; from
diagnosis through to end of life care.
MND is a devastating and complex disease that quickly progresses so it’s vital that it
is recognised and treated immediately. The new Care Pathways allows
multidisciplinary working across the various services involved in treating MND and it’s
through this joined up approach that care will be improved.
The Sexual Health MOT
The Contraception and Sexual Health Service has launched a new website www.sexualhealthmot.co.uk - for anyone worried about sexually transmitted
infections. The website provides information and advice about sexually transmitted
infections including HIV and details of how to get a simple, free Sexual Health MOT.
It’s simple and easy to use for anyone who wants information, advice or to speak to
someone in confidence about their concerns. You can find out where to get tested
including for HIV, how to book a sexual health check up and where to get free
condoms or request an email or call back via the website.
Community Dental Service ‘Opens Wide’!
A new department of special care dentistry - ‘The Browning Centre’ - opened in
October in Boscombe. The Browning Centre was designed as a dental centre for
people with disabilities and is equipped for people who have various conditions that
mean they need specialist equipment or specialist dental staff in order to have dental
treatment.
The Dental Service is also the first individual dental service in Britain to achieve
University Practice Development Accreditation and Linda Kaye from Bournemouth
University presented the dental service team with their accreditation at the launch
event.
Prison Success
Dorset HealthCare was selected, following a tender process, to run health care
services in Devon prisons. This exciting news builds on the work the Trust already
undertakes across the Dorset prison service. Devon services include: primary care;
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substance misuse; mental health; pharmacy; dental; learning disabilities; and health
and wellbeing.
‘Time Out’ for older prisoners
Dorset HealthCare’s prison healthcare team opened a new ‘Time Out’ area for older
prisoners at HMP The Verne in Portland. The facility was made possible following
the team’s successful bid for a £30,000 grant from the Kings Fund.
The new area is for prisoners aged 55 and over and provides a welcome retreat for
older inmates to have some ‘time out’ away from younger prisoners. The prison
population is an ageing one (mirroring the general population) and prisons are having
to adapt to cope with older inmates. As providers of healthcare services within
prisons, we recognise the need to provide facilities and services that address these
needs. It is vital for their health and wellbeing that older people, even within a prison
environment, have an opportunity to have some down time away from their younger
counterparts. The new area includes a kitchen, lounge seating, an area for
discussion groups and space for wellbeing and fitness sessions.
Changes to Mental Health Urgent Care
Dorset HealthCare has been working in partnership with local commissioners to
make continued improvements to the quality of mental health care in Dorset. The
rationale behind improving urgent care mental health services is to provide more
'recovery-based' services in the future. These will be personalised and responsive to
each person's specific situation and will be focused on improving each patient’s
overall wellbeing.
The developments are in response to Government recommendations to move away
from the traditional inpatient style of mental health service delivery, to a more personcentred, community-based approach - with inpatient beds available when needed.
Following a comprehensive consultation period last year, seven inpatient beds at the
Hughes Unit in Bridport and nine beds at Stewart Lodge in Sherborne have now
been replaced with an increased provision of crisis response and home treatment
services, operating 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Both units still provide
recovery focused day-care services seven days a week and a new Recovery House
with seven beds opened in Weymouth on 1 April 2013. In addition, the former
Minterne Ward (now known as the Waterston Assessment Unit) at Forston Clinic in
Dorchester reopened on 23 April this year, with 13 inpatient beds.
Investing in Inpatient Care
After concerns raised by the Care Quality Commission at the end of 2012, the Trust
temporarily closed Minterne Ward at Forston Clinic in Dorchester to resolve the
issues raised. This included investing £1 million in refurbishing the ward environment;
increasing staff numbers by 39 per cent; putting in place a robust new leadership
structure with a ward manager, matron and full-time consultant; and implementing a
comprehensive training programme for all staff.
The ward was then renamed the Waterston Assessment Unit and reopened to
patients on 23 April. Prior to this, an open day was held to share the changes that
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have been made and to reassure patients of the high standard of care they can now
expect and deserve.
In addition, work continues apace with the redevelopment of St Ann’s Hospital in
Poole. A ‘Topping Out’ ceremony was held in December to mark the final stages of
the construction of Phase One of its £35 million redevelopment. The redevelopment
is set to provide more privacy and dignity for patients, through the creation of four
new wards and the refurbishment of an existing, dated, ward block. The Phase one
of this redevelopment which is due for completion later this year will include a new
two storey building with one 16-bed and one 14-bed ward, plus assessment,
treatment and support rooms.
X-Ray Opening
An appeal by the Friends of Westminster Memorial Hospital in Shaftesbury
successfully funded refurbishment works to the hospital’s X-ray room to
accommodate brand new digital X-ray equipment. Due to the generosity of the public
and the support received, an Orthopantomogram (OPG) machine to provide
specialist oral X-rays is also planned.
Going the Extra Mile
The Trust’s Melcombe Day Hospital and the local League of Friends benefitted from
a £500 donation after nurse Lesley Benham donated her time and expertise, free of
charge, to deliver a speech at a recent dementia workshop. The Dorset HealthCare
nurse often spends her annual leave donating her professional services to help
others better understand dementia.
In addition, as part of this year’s OCD Week, therapist Sue Marsh organised a ‘Great
Trust Bake Off’ with her colleagues to raise funds for the national charity OCD Action
and support group Obsessions Together.
Chris Keenan of the Trust’s Early Intervention in Psychosis Service also organised a
football tournament in conjunction with Dorset Mental Health Forum and
Bournemouth Churches Housing Association to promote and fundraise for mental
health. The event was a great success with over one hundred service users, family
members and staff from the three organisations participating in well spirited matches
that promoted Time to Change’s message of talking about mental health, whilst also
raising £200 for Dorset Mental Health Forum.
All three are fantastic examples of the passion and drive to be found in so many of
our staff.
Dignity at the Heart of Care
To mark February’s Dignity Action Day, Dignity Champions at Dorset HealthCare
arranged for Dignity Trees to be placed at various hospital sites as platforms for staff
and the public to share their opinions, by writing comments on leaves and attaching
them to the trees. The aim of the annual event is to put dignity and respect at the
heart of all health services.
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Help with Hydration
We are trialling a new hydration system in our community hospitals to help keep
patients - who may find it difficult to drink by themselves - properly hydrated,
potentially helping to shorten their inpatient stay. ‘The Hydrant’ is a new product
which can be clipped onto a wheelchair or the headboard of a bed and, via a straw
system, patients can drink unassisted with minimum effort.
Maintaining hydration in patients is a real challenge for nurses and other healthcare
staff. Many older or infirm patients struggle to drink from conventional cups which
can leave them feeling helpless and can make maintaining fluid intake problematic.
We are already seeing the benefits of patients being able to drink as and when they
want, without any assistance. We’re reporting fewer urinary tract infections - which
are commonly caused by a lack of fluids. Dehydration can also lead to constipation,
dizziness, bed sores, blood pressure problems and lethargy. All these issues can be
prevented by keeping patients properly hydrated.
Follow Us!
The Trust has created a new Facebook page and Twitter feed for those patients,
carers, staff and members of the public who are keen to follow our progress online.
This is particularly important for those from a younger generation for whom social
media is an intrinsic part of their lives. People can ‘follow’ our Twitter account
(@DorsetHealth) and ‘like’ our Facebook page (DorsetHealthCare) and by doing this,
will be able to receive regular news and updates as they happen. More
developments are planned this coming year to build on this initial activity.
Innovation with i-matter
In December, the Trust launched an ideas and innovation platform via the staff
intranet called ‘i-matter’. The aim is to bring exciting and fresh ideas to the forefront
of the Trust by valuing everyone’s suggestions, whatever their role within the
organisation. We want to be a progressive organisation with a culture of innovation,
ensuring new ideas bring about improvements to patient care.
i-matter is just the start of the journey – we’ve made a commitment that this will be far
more than a virtual suggestion box. A robust and transparent framework will embed imatter to ensure that good ideas are identified and nurtured to reach their full
potential.
Being ‘Secure’
The Trust has launched a new counter fraud and security management service called
‘Secure’. The ten-strong team aims to prevent money being lost from the NHS
through fraud and theft, whilst also protecting the safety of staff and patients.
Every year, millions of pounds are lost from the NHS through fraud, corruption and
error. The vast majority of staff and patients are professional and honest, but there is
a small minority which deprives the health service of valuable resources which could
otherwise be spent on patient care. Fraud can range from the submission of false
travel claims by staff and intentional evasion of NHS charges by patients, through to
complex and high value fraud – and Secure’s role is to prevent, detect and
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investigate all of these cases.
The team has a huge amount of combined experience in uncovering and prosecuting
cases of fraud and also offers a range of services to protect NHS staff and the
environment in which they work, including training on topics such as conflict
resolution, lone working and personal safety.
As well as providing all these services for Dorset HealthCare, the team is also
offering the same services to other NHS organisations, private health care
companies, nursing homes, police forces, educational establishments and councils –
as they face very similar issues. All profits will be reinvested in patient care,
benefitting the people of Dorset.
Knitters ‘latch on’ to breastfeeding benefits
The Trust’s breastfeeding support service has enlisted the help of local knitters to
create ‘knitted breast’ teaching aids, in a bid to encourage more young Dorset mums
to breastfeed their babies.
The Trust is always trying to find innovative ways of improving breastfeeding rates
and our ‘knitted breasts’ are certainly a talking point and really help to break the ice
on a subject which some women find awkward to discuss. The project is a novel way
to include the local community in helping raise breastfeeding awareness in a fun yet
dedicated way. We hope it will also encourage breastfeeding mothers to get involved
in a community activity, reducing the isolation some of them can experience in the
early days of motherhood.
The ‘Skills for Independence’ Project
Occupational therapists from Sturminster Newton launched a pilot project to make
the transition from children’s to adult services less stressful for those with learning
disabilities, and their families.
The brainchild of Trust occupational therapist Tracey Brown, it enables earlier
assessment as well as allowing partner organisations involved in the care of young
adults to have a more joined up approach at the crucial transition phase.
The DEC (Dorset Equipment Centre) is the physical environment which acts as a hub
for service users and their families. It is somewhere they can come regularly and
meet with social workers, occupational therapists, nurses and those involved in their
care. It is also an environment where young adults with learning disabilities will under the supervision of the occupational therapists - learn and develop important life
skills to help them to live independently.
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4.0 Business Review
The Trust is run by a Board of Directors, made up of Non-Executive and Executive
Directors. Together they are responsible for overseeing the running of the
organisation and the delivery of its objectives and wider strategy.
The Board discharges the day-to-day management of the Trust through an approved
scheme of delegation to individual Executive/Associate Directors and senior staff.
This consists of a Directors Management Team and Directorate Management Groups
of senior managers and clinicians.
The Council of Governors provide overall support and guidance for the Trust through
its elected Public Governors, Staff Governors and Appointed Governors from Partner
Organisations.
4.1 Looking Forward: Our Strategy
In formulating the Trust’s strategic direction, we have sought, and will continue to act
on, the views of Governors, Members, patients, carers, staff and other stakeholders.
As with all NHS organisations, the Trust recognises it will be operating in a changing
and challenging environment with a number of economic, political, social and
technological challenges. For example:
•

•

•

•

The population we serve is expected to change in the future. Dorset currently
has a high proportion of older people compared with the rest of England and
this is projected to grow, which will require an increased need for both formal
and informal care. However, the 20-39 age group is significantly underrepresented across the county, due to a period of low birth rates and the
outward migration of this group. Dorset is therefore gaining an ageing
population but losing its workforce and those with the ability to deliver care for
family, friends and neighbours. This means the requirement to deliver the
required level of care, arising from the expected increase in the ageing
population, will be challenging.
Financial pressures for the NHS, both nationally and locally, along with rising
public expectations, will mean that there has to be a sustained focus on
quality, innovation, productivity and prevention. We will continue to develop
individual, personalised care that maintains independence, provides choice
and promotes recovery.
There will be increasing competition from a range of other organisations,
including third sector organisations, for the delivery of health and social care
services.
In addition, those commissioning health care services have undergone
significant changes since 1 April 2013 – with the traditional model of primary
care trusts (PCTs) being replaced by clinical commissioning groups (CCGs).
Although some personnel have moved to the new organisations, the
challenge is to ensure relationships are nurtured at such a time of change.

To ensure that the Trust can continue to provide first class, cost effective services,
these changes have been considered in our strategic planning and delivery
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programmes. The Trust held three major stakeholder engagement events involving
nearly three hundred people – mainly staff but also governors and our partner
organisations. We also carried out a survey of our Members. The purpose was to
ask stakeholders what was important to them, and what they thought should be
reflected in the Trust’s strategy.
Key priorities which emerged were:
• Supporting people at home
• Clinical excellence and delivery
• Equity of service provision
• Integration - from the patient’s perspective.
It was felt that these could be achieved by valuing, developing and empowering
staff; by improved IT and communications channels; by reducing bureaucracy;
measuring the right things (i.e. ‘outcomes’) and through a drive for continued
innovation.
We have also carefully considered the priorities of our commissioners which include:
• Promoting independence / wellbeing
• Developing a ‘whole person’ approach
• Avoiding dependency
• Promoting and enabling choice
• Striking an appropriate balance of benefit and risk
• ‘Returning home is always the first choice’
• Ensuring equitable services across Dorset
As a result of this collaborative approach, Dorset HealthCare now has a robust threeyear strategy which is built around eight ‘Clinical Service Strategies’ which set out the
direction of travel for Trust services over the coming years, highlighting the key
developments which will be taken forward in each area (for more information, this
document can be found on our website www.dorsethealthcare.nhs.uk).
The Trust Board firmly believes that the people best placed to develop meaningful
and effective strategies are those who know their services best. Within each of our
major service areas, managers, clinicians and staff have worked to examine the
strengths, weaknesses, and drivers for change in their services, and to identify the
key initiatives that they intend to take in response.
The eight Clinical Service Strategies encompass:
• Mental Health Services
• Community Health Services
• Children’s and Family Services
• Offender Healthcare
• Dental Services
• IAPT Services
• Dementia
• Public Health Services.
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Across these eight Clinical Service Strategies, there are a number of common
themes emerging (in addition to specific service developments). These themes will
be distinctive features in the development of the Trust and how we deliver services
over the coming three years. The common themes are:
• Integration of services
• Consistency and equity
• Locality models
• Support for carers
• Staff development and support
• Leadership
• Serving our customers
• Working with our partners.
4.2 Looking Back: Financial Review
The Trust is reporting a strong performance in the delivery of its services during
2012/13. This section outlines more about the Trust’s business and activities during
the year, including the Regulatory and Risk Ratings assigned to the Trust.
4.2.1 Overview
The Trust met its obligation to prepare its accounts by 22 April 2013 and for these to
be audited and laid before parliament on 26 June 2013.
The Trust generated an income and expenditure surplus for 2012/13 of £11.783m,
representing 5.19% of turnover, (£10.372m in 2011/12, 4.84% of turnover) which will
financially benefit the Trust as it will reduce the requirement for borrowing to fund our
estates modernisation programme in future years.
This is the Trust’s sixth year operating as an NHS Foundation Trust, and when
reviewing its EBITDA 1 performance of 7.46% for 2012/13 it compares well to last
year (2011/12 performance of 7.01%).
Foundation Trusts (FTs) do not operate under the NHS Trust financial regime of
expecting a break-even duty to be delivered, rather surpluses are normally expected.
As part of the Financial Risk Rating (FRR) calculation, the achievement of a surplus
contributes a large weighting to the final FRR awarded to foundation trusts by
Monitor. Whilst being able to carry forward surpluses, FTs cannot normally use them
as revenue expenditure, but they can be used to finance capital expenditure,
acquisitions, joint ventures, equity stakes, major property transactions, mergers and
alliances.
The Trust has, in partnership with its local commissioning CCG agreed that the main
purpose of its revenue surpluses will be directed towards the future capital financing
of the modernisation of the Trusts estate to improve the quality of our services and
the patient experience.

1

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation & amortisation, a measure of underlying financial performance
before consideration of “exceptional” items such as impairments.
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The surplus for 2012/13 was £11,783k, £10,783k above the Trust’s target plan level
of £1m. This excess was generated primarily on a non-recurrent basis, and amongst
the issues bearing upon this were:
In year pay underspends in respect of vacancies
• Unutilised contingencies
• Unutilised non-recurrent funds identified for QIPP planning and estate
strategy planning
•

The Financial Risk Rating for Foundation Trusts for quarter four of 2012/13 will be
published during the 2013/14 financial year. Dorset HealthCare expects to achieve a
rating of ‘5’ for the Quarter 4 submission, which is consistent with our first 3 Quarters’
results, and well above our Annual Plan anticipated level of ‘3’. This level of
performance has been achieved while continuing to deliver our key performance
criteria agreed with our commissioners.
NHS Foundation Trusts may have a short-term loan facility in place should it ever
need to be called upon to enable it to undertake short-term loan borrowings to bolster
its working capital. The Trust had a working capital facility level of £14.5m. However,
the Trust’s liquidity (cash-holdings) is healthy and, the Trust has not needed to call
upon its short-term borrowing facility to date.
The Trust’s annual accounts have been prepared on the basis that the Trust is a
going concern. This means that the Trust’s assets and liabilities reflect the ongoing
nature of the Trust’s activities. As noted previously, it is expected by Monitor that
NHS Foundation Trusts will make a surplus each year. After making enquiries, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason we
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
There were no political or charitable donations made by the Trust during 2012/13.
On 1 April 2013 the 32 sites used by the Community Health Services transferred
from NHS Bournemouth & Poole and NHS Dorset to Dorset HealthCare with an
unaudited net book value of £73m. These properties were previously rented by
Dorset HealthCare. The transfer of properties to Dorset HealthCare are subject to
regulatory decision and by 1 October 2013 the outcome of whether these properties
remain with Dorset HealthCare, or are to be transferred to another body, will be
known.
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4.2.2 Financial Summary of Results
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust

Year

2012/13
2011/12
2010/11*

Total
Income
(including
interest
received)
£000
227,008
214,450
88,463

Surplus/
(deficit)

£000
11,783
10,372
4,439

%

5.19
4.84
5.02

* Minor restatement required due to change in accounting policies regarding donated
assets effectively reducing stated turnover and surplus by £10k.
4.2.3 Income
The Trust received total operating income of £226,887k (£214,339k 2011/12)
excluding interest received of £121k. Most of our operating income comes from our
main commissioners NHS Bournemouth & Poole and NHS Dorset for provision of
healthcare services across Dorset.
Of the remainder of our income, this is from other NHS bodies (including other
Foundation Trusts, NHS South West, NHS Trusts, PCTs and the Dental Practice
Board); from our three main local authorities/social services partners; from a variety
of other organisations, plus income from a variety of other minor sources, including
interest received on investments, and income generated from facilities such as
catering and lodging. The total of other operating income represents less than 5% of
total income and hence, does not have a material impact on the provision of health
services.
To balance the budgets at the start of the year, we needed to make cash releasing
cost savings to supplement the funding we received for the provision of services from
our commissioners.
4.2.4 Future Finances
All public sector expenditure is expected to come under severe pressure in future
years as a result of the prevailing general economic climate. The NHS must
therefore plan to achieve significant cost efficiencies to maintain and improve quality
in the face of rising demand for health care. The local health system faces significant
challenges in future years as commissioners plan to balance service delivery within
the total resources available to them.
The Trust in its financial planning expects to achieve a minimum surplus of £1m in
2013/14. This surplus is planned to ensure sufficient cash holdings are in place for
future investment plans.
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4.2.5 Capital
The total funds allocated against the Trust’s maintenance and modernisation capital
programme during the year were £8,835k, against which commitments were raised
totalling £6,242k. The programme was financed principally by £6,483k historic
surpluses, plus £2,352k in-year depreciation. St Ann’s modernisation was the main
scheme within the programme, as it was last year, with more than half of the funding
and commitments allocated against this scheme.
4.2.6 Audit
The Trust’s external auditor during the year was the PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP
as appointed by the Council of Governors. This was for statutory audit services only,
which covers the audit of financial statements, the quality report and work with the
National Audit Office.
4.2.7 Better Payment Practice Code
The Trust exceeded the Better Payment Practice Code (BPPC) general NHS target
in 2012/13 of paying 95% of bills within contract terms or 30 days where no terms
have been agreed for non NHS trade invoices. Despite the volume of processed
invoices increasing by 8% on last year, the percentage of bills paid within these
guidelines has still improved.
Measure of Compliance
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target
2011/12 comparable figures

Number
49,823
48,510
97.36%

£000s
39,684
38,314
96.55%

96.50%

96.54%

However, the achievement of paying NHS trade invoices against the target fell
slightly to 87.4% following a similar 8% increase in invoices processed, although,
trade invoices account for over 98% of the total value of all invoices processed.
Measure of Compliance

Number

£000s

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within
target
2011-12 comparable figures

1,756
1,535
87.41%

50,856
49,989
98.29%

89.13%

98.55%

4.2.8 Payment by Results
The Trust has delivered cost efficient care to its geographically diverse population
whilst maintaining its focus on the implementation of Mental Health Payment by
Results (PbR). The Trust, acknowledging the national PbR agenda, is collaboratively
working with its commissioners to deliver locally agreed objectives supporting the
implementation throughout its development. In a major step towards the integration
of Mental Health Services into PbR the use of care clusters was mandated from April
2012. Despite the dedicated Mental Health PbR guidance advising that it is not yet
possible to introduce a national tariff in 2013/14, the Trust remains committed to its
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joint deliverables with commissioners and expects to see local shadow tariffs in place
for the financial year 2014/15.
4.2.9 Regulatory Ratings Report
Monitor’s “Compliance Framework” sets out the approach Monitor takes to assess
the compliance of NHS foundation trusts with their Terms of Authorisation. For
2012/13 accounts, the financial indicators used to derive the financial risk rating
incorporate four key criteria:
• Achievement of plan
• Underlying performance
• Financial efficiency
• Liquidity
The Trust has scored an FRR of 5 (lowest risk/highest performance) for the first 3
quarters of 2012/13, with the final quarter rating still to be determined but expected to
remain at a ‘5’ level.
Whilst the Trust achieved an FRR of 5 for the first 3 quarters of the financial year, the
Annual Plan expected an FRR 3. The improvement in risk rating has been driven by
the liquidity and surplus position being better than plan.
The cash balance is significantly better than planned due to the increase in the
surplus and the rephasing of capital programme expenditure from that anticipated at
the submission of the Annual Plan. In addition, CHS debtors/creditors with a
favourable time lag will have also improved the cash balance for the Trust.

Financial Risk
Rating
Governance Risk
Rating

Financial Risk
Rating
Governance Risk
Rating

Annual
Plan
2011/12

Q1
2011/12

Q2
2011/12

Q3
2011/12

Q4
2011/12

3

5

5

5

5

GREEN

AMBERRED

AMBERRED

AMBERRED

GREEN

Annual
Plan
2012/13

Q1
2012/13

Q2
2012/13

Q3
2012/13

Forecast
Q4
2012/13

3

5

5

5

5

AMBERGREEN

AMBERGREEN

AMBERGREEN

RED

RED

Further explanation to the Regulatory Rating is provided in section 5.4.
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5.0 Governance
The overarching governance framework for the Trust comprises the Council of
Governors which has a publically elected majority and a Board of Directors
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Trust.
The Trust’s Assurance Framework has been produced with the principal corporate
objectives being drawn from the Trust’s Annual Plan and approved by the Trust
Board. Principal risks, key controls, assurances on controls and gaps in controls and
systems assurance have been mapped out against the corporate objectives in the
form of the Assurance Framework Matrix. The matrix includes links to the Care
Quality Commission’s Essential Standards of Quality and Safety.
Underpinning the Assurance Framework are the operational and corporate risk
registers which are continuously updated throughout the year. The Trust's internal
auditors have independently reviewed the Assurance Framework and undertaken a
programme of audits to independently review the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal
processes of control. Both internal and external audits provide assurance that the
Trust has an effective system of internal control to manage the principal risks of the
organisation. Both the internal and external auditors have access to the Trust Board.
The Trust complies with the cost allocation and charging requirements set out in HM
Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information Guidance.
5.1 Compliance with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance
Effective corporate governance is fundamental to the success of Dorset HealthCare.
The autonomy that the Trust enjoys - as a result of achieving foundation status - and
the fact that the Trust is entrusted with public funds, means that the Board has to
operate to the highest corporate governance standards. As a result, the Directors
and Governors of the Trust fully understand the key principles of the code and how to
apply them. The Trust recognises the Code of Governance as best practice and can
confirm that during 2012/13 it complied with the provisions of the Code.
5.2 Safety
Safety is a top priority for the Trust – both patient safety and the safety and wellbeing
of our staff. We demonstrate this in a number of ways:
• Patient safety issues are reported in the monthly Quality Report. The National
Reporting and Learning System (NRLS) sends regular reports in relation to all
patient safety incidents that have been reported by the Trust - including rate
and frequency of reporting, level of harm and type of incident and this is
reviewed by the Directors. The report shows that the Trust is a high reporting
organisation with larger numbers of no/low harm, which demonstrates an
open culture of reporting all incidents.
• There were no serious incidents involving data loss or confidentiality
breaches during the past 12 months.
• The Trust continues to be an active member of the local Child and Adult
Safeguarding Boards and sub groups and works in an integrated way to
develop a holistic family approach to safeguarding.
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•

•

The Trust is committed to the provision of effective infection prevention and
control arrangements, demonstrated through the ongoing work of the
Infection Control Committee.
The Trust continues to be committed to protecting the Health and Safety of all
staff, patients, carers, visitors and others who may be affected by activities on
any site for which the Trust is responsible. To achieve this, the Trust has
worked to provide a positive and proactive H&S culture, whereby health and
safety is everyone’s responsibility - supported by effective communication,
training, employee involvement and adequate consultation. A separate
annual H&S report, including a summary of health and safety activities and
trends and a work programme for 2013/14 has been produced, and presented
to the Trust Board.

5.3 High Quality Services
Quality Account
The Trust is committed to providing high quality care and treatment for local people
and has produced a Quality Report evaluating the quality of care and services over
the past year, as well as future plans for quality improvements. (The Quality Account
is available on our website – www.dorsethealthcare.nhs.uk). We have developed a
pyramid of quality dashboards linking back to the quality governance framework.
These are populated at Team level and build up to a high level view of quality at
Board level.
There are no material inconsistencies between the Annual Governance Statement
and the quarterly Board statements and reports arising from the Care Quality
Commission.
This year’s priorities included:
• Working towards patient focused outcome measures
• Developing patient experience surveys and real-time feedback
• Reducing patient harm – such as falls whilst in hospital and catheter
associated urinary tract infections.
By working in partnership with patients, carers, members and staff we have set new
quality priorities for 2013/14. They are:
• To implement the principles of the national Friends and Family test across
Community Hospitals and Minor Injury Units
• To implement the dementia care pathway across all services
• To reduce the number of hospital acquired pressure ulcers.
The Trust’s Board of Directors regularly reviews information on the quality of care
and has provided its statement of assurance in the Trust’s Quality Account.
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
All PALS enquiries were monitored and reported to the Patient and Public
Experience and Engagement Committee, Executive Management Team, Directorate
Management Groups, Board of Directors and to NHS Bournemouth and Poole and
NHS Dorset as our Commissioner. Further information, including full figures for the
year, can be found in the Trust’s Quality Report.
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Compliments and Complaints
We welcome compliments and complaints as constructive feedback to enable us to
continually improve our services. We are committed to responding to complaints in a
fair, impartial and open way and within a reasonable timeframe. The Customer
Service Coordinator and Customer Services/PALS Assistant work on behalf of the
Chief Executive, listening carefully to patients and carers in the event of complaints,
and working closely with staff and clinicians to ensure that complaints are fully
investigated and a detailed response, including where appropriate lessons have been
learnt, is provided. The investigation of serious complaints is the responsibility of
senior staff and is not delegated to junior staff whether medical, nursing or any other
profession.
The Trust’s Complaints Sampling Group meets quarterly to monitor compliance with
the Trust’s policy to ensure the management of complaints is fair, open, transparent
and effective and that complaints are dealt with in a timely and professional manner.
The group is chaired by a Non-Executive Director and includes a Trust Governor, the
Patient Experience and Customer Services Manager and the Customer Services
Coordinator.
The Trust produces an annual booklet for staff highlighting the lessons learnt from
complaints and the key themes to ensure that all staff can reflect on their own
practice and role in helping to provide a positive patient and carer experience.
Mental Health Act Hospital Managers
On behalf of patients, the Mental Health Act Hospital Managers monitor compliance
with the Mental Health Act 1983 (as amended) and can exercise the power to
discharge a patient’s section. Gill Fozard, Non-Executive Director is currently the
Chair of the Mental Health Act Hospital Managers Committee. The Trust is greatly
indebted to all the Hospital Managers who carry out such a responsible role so
diligently.
5.4 Regulatory Ratings
As outlined in section 4.2.9, the Trust enjoys the lowest risk rating of ‘5’ from Monitor
for its Finances.
However, after enjoying a risk rating of ‘amber-green’ for its Governance up until
December 2012, the Trust now has a rating of ‘red’ due to a notice issued by the
Care Quality Commission in reference to poor standards at the Minterne Ward (a
mental health facility) in Dorchester’s Forston Clinic at the end of 2012.
The Trust has taken swift action to address these issues and the ward, now renamed
Waterston Assessment Unit, reopened on 23 April 2013 with a raft of improvements
(including a £1 million refurbishment, a 39% increase in staffing numbers, a new
clinical leadership team and comprehensive, bespoke staff training).
We are complying with all remaining CQC recommendations; except in respect of
two findings at Blandford Community Hospital, as noted in the draft CQC follow up
report from their inspection on 20 May 2013. We are currently reviewing the factual
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accuracy of this report. We are commissioning an independent review of Board
governance and quality governance arrangements and will implement the findings.
The Trust is also providing Monitor with external assurance that the underlying issues
have been addressed and Monitor will consider the review’s findings (taking further
action only should the Trust fail to make the required, significant progress).
We have already made structural changes to our organisation including the formation
of an Executive Quality Committee in addition to the Board Quality Assurance
Committee.
The Trust anticipates this rating to change as a result of the action taken.
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6.0 Our Team
The acquisition of community health services in July 2011 saw the Trust’s staff
numbers grow significantly from approximately 1,500 to just over 5,000. This
workforce is now fully integrated and directorate transformation and harmonisation
programmes are concluding. We have worked in partnership with trade union
colleagues to review and harmonise a wide range of human resource policies which
ensure consistent practice and staff experience across the Trust.
Our workforce includes a wide variety of professionally qualified staff, support staff
and administration staff who work together and in partnership with staff from other
agencies to deliver high quality care and support to our patients.
The Trust continues to encourage and support applications for employment from all
in individuals, including those covered by the Equality Act 2010. For applicants who
disclose a disability, requests for reasonable adjustments are put in place for the
interview and assessment process to ensure a fair assessment process where
individuals can be selected on merit and performance.
The Recruitment figures for 2012/13 showed a marked improvement in applicants
who were prepared to disclose having a disability (5%).
Individuals who become disabled during their employment are supported within the
provisions of the Trust’s Health, Wellbeing and Attendance Policy. Reasonable
adjustments are considered where necessary to determine if individuals can continue
in their current role, and redeployment to a suitable alternative post is sought where
reasonable adjustments are not possible.
The Trust recognises the importance of effective communication with staff.
Examples of the way we communicate with staff include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Chief Executive monthly brief with video link and recording
TrustLink, a monthly staff newsletter
Trust intranet
Introduction of i-matter, an IT platform to encourage staff innovation and ideas
and to allow staff to respond to challenges set by the Board or senior teams
Next Steps, a quarterly Trust membership newsletter
All user emails
Team meetings
Trust consultation exercises
Professional networks and advisory groups
Use of posters.

The Trust supports collective bargaining and has a Trade Union Partnership Forum
which includes employee representatives and meets every two months and a Joint
Negotiating Committee for Doctor’s and Dentist’s. These structured meetings enable
the views of employees and their representatives to be taken into account when the
Trust is taking decisions that may affect employee interests. The Communication,
consultation and negotiating arrangements are concerned to encourage employee
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involvement and an awareness of financial and economic factors that affect the
Trust.
6.1 Research and Development
The Trust is committed to research and development as an important component in
developing the best services for patients locally and in the wider NHS. Not only is
the Trust involved in research activities but it is also important our staff are kept up to
date about research findings nationally and internationally so we continue to improve
the treatment and interventions we offer.
In addition, the Trust intranet includes a section dedicated to research and we have a
research committee to encourage and support staff in being involved in research,
either as collaborators with multi-centre trials or as principal or chief investigators.
We are committed to nurturing an enquiring approach to service improvement and
being able to use research findings to support innovative practice development.
The Trust is investing in leadership programmes, recognising the value and positive
impact on patient care of well managed and motivated teams. We have also
reviewed our portfolio of learning and development opportunities and mandatory
training with increased access to e-learning media.
6.2 Sickness absence data
The annual cumulative sickness absence rate for 2012/13 is 5.23% in comparison to
4.6% for 2011/12. The number of short-term episodes of sickness absence fell from
7325 in 2011/12 (which includes transferring staff for comparison purposes) to 6401
in 2012/13. Nationally, the latest published sickness absence figures for mental
health Trusts was 5.5% and for community provider Trusts was 5.26% at January
2013 (the latest available figures).
6.3 Staff Survey
The Trust achieved a 49% return rate for the 2012 NHS Staff Survey (based on the
sample data set of 850 randomly selected employees), which is slightly below
average for mental health/learning disability Trusts (against which the Trust has been
measured). Overall, the results from the 2012 NHS Staff Survey were disappointing
and there are some clear areas for future focus and improvement.
In terms of overall staff engagement, the Trust scored 3.64 out of a possible
maximum score of 5 in 2012 (against 3.65 in 2011) showing that our level of
engagement has been sustained, albeit slightly below the average for mental
health/learning disability Trusts of 3.7. This score is derived from responses to the
following indicators:
•
•
•

Staff ability to contribute towards improvements at work
Staff recommendation of the Trust as a place to work or receive treatment
Staff motivation at work

Taking account of our vision statement “To provide services we would recommend to
family and friends”, it was disappointing that staff recommendation of the Trust as a
place to work or receive treatment is below average. The Trust’s membership of the
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South West Pay and Conditions Consortium at the time of the survey is felt to be a
factor in the responses given in the last staff survey. However, the Trust is no longer
a member of this group, deciding that continuing association with the Consortium
was no longer appropriate. Dorset HealthCare remains committed to working
positively with trade unions to help ensure conditions of service are fit for purpose to
help protect Trust services and security of jobs as far as we reasonably can, within
the Trust and the NHS.
The Trust’s top five ranking staff survey scores relative to other comparable
organisations were:
• Percentage of staff experiencing discrimination at work in last 12 months –
7% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 13%)
• Percentage of staff experiencing physical violence from staff in last 12 months
– 2% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 4%)
• Percentage of staff receiving health and safety training in last 12 months –
84% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 73%)
• Percentage of staff reporting errors, near misses or incidents witnessed in the
last month – 96% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 93%)
• Percentage of staff believing the trust provides equal opportunities for career
progression or promotion – 92% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 90%)
The Trust’s bottom 5 ranking staff survey scores relative to other comparable
organisations were:
• Percentage of staff able to contribute towards improvements at work – 67%
(national average for MH/LD Trusts 71%)
• Work pressure felt by staff – 3.13 out of a possible 5 (national average for
MH/LD Trusts 3.02 – lower score better)
• Support from immediate managers – 3.69 out of a possible 5 (national
average for MH/LD Trusts 3.77 – higher score better)
• Percentage of staff reporting good communication between senior
management and staff – 25% (national average for MH/LD Trusts 30%)
• Percentage of staff having well structured appraisals in last 12 months – 36%
(national average for MH/LD Trusts 41%)
An area of improvement was the percentage of staff having equality and diversity
training in last 12 months – 52% (44% in 2011).
Two areas of deterioration were the percentage of staff suffering work-related stress
in last 12 months – 40% (30% in 2011) and the percentage of staff saying hand
washing materials are always available – 57% (67% in 2011).
An action plan has been developed in consultation with trade unions to support
achieving improvements in the staff survey in 2013.
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6.3.1 Action Planning
The following four areas have been identified for this year’s focus:
1. Inspirational Leadership. To launch a Line Leader Development Programme in
May 2013. This will be Trust-wide but have a clinical emphasis and will
address 3 of the bottom 5 scores from the
2012 Staff Survey, i.e.
a) Support from immediate managers
b) Percentage of staff reporting good communication between managers and staff
c) Percentage of staff having well structured appraisal.
2. Investment in people. The following focus areas address the remaining 2 of the
bottom 5 scores from the 2012 Staff Survey which were “The percentage of staff
able to contribute to improvements at work” and “Work pressure felt by staff”:
a) Trust-wide review of staffing numbers.
b) The introduction of the quarterly “Vision Test” so that we can better understand
staff’s views and recommendations on the Trust as a place to work and receive
treatment.
c) To widely promote the use of the Employee Assistance Programme provided by
Care First which provides not only health and wellbeing support, but advice and
signposting on a range of additional matters such as legal advice, family and
carer issues, divorce and relationships.
3. Innovation. To gain the maximum benefit from the many good ideas collected
through i-matter (the Trust’s innovation platform) by ensuring that suggestions
are fully considered and that the best are implemented and embedded
throughout the Trust. Staff engagement is recognised as being fundamental to
the provision and development of first class services to patients and the Trust
wishes to consolidate activity in this area to improve motivation, job satisfaction
and above all the quality of care to patients.
4.

Integrated Care. To ensure that models of integrated care are fully implemented
to a consistent standard and that staff are engaged in this process so that
everyone feels able to recommend the Trust as a place to work and receive
treatment.
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7.0 Governors and Members
7.1 Composition of the Council of Governors
The Council of Governors comprises 42 Governors under the leadership of the
Foundation Trust Chairman (who is also the Chairman of the Board). Nigel Bailey,
Public Governor for Dorset, is the Vice Chair of the Council of Governors and Lead
Governor.
The composition of the Council of Governors can be broken down to:
•
22 Public Governors within three geographical constituencies – namely
Bournemouth (6), Poole (6) and Dorset and the rest of England & Wales (10)
•
8 Staff Governors
•
12 Appointed Governors.
There are currently twelve Appointed Governors from partner agencies which
include:
•
Dorset CCG – pre-April 2013, these were from the PCT cluster (x2
governors)
•
Dorset Police
•
Bournemouth Borough Council
•
Poole Borough Council
•
Dorset County Council
•
District Councils
•
Bournemouth University
•
Dorset Prison and Probation Service
•
Carer Group Representative
•
Service User Group Representative
•
Volunteer Group Representative.
7.2 Roles and Responsibilities
The Council of Governors has a number of statutory responsibilities. These include:
• Appointing the Trust Chair
• Appointing Non-Executive Directors
• Approving the appointment of the Chief Executive
• Removing the Chairperson and Non-Executive Directors (if appropriate)
• Appointing or removing the Trust’s Auditors
• Receiving the Annual Report and Accounts.
Some other key roles include:
•
To promote membership of the Trust by visiting outside organisations
•
To establish links with Members who they represent
•
Promoting awareness of Trust services
•
Assisting in project work and studies, such as promoting the Time to Change
anti-stigma mental health campaign at events like the Dorset Show
•
Promoting the importance of a positive patient experience
•
Assisting and supporting Leagues of Friends of the Trust
•
Helping in the Membership office
•
Assisting the Trust in increasing and supporting its Volunteer’s Service.
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7.3 Links with Members
We encourage our members to make contact with their elected Governors through
the membership office and our website. Opportunities to make contact on specific
areas of potential interest to members are made available through the publication of
Next Steps - the quarterly newsletter produced for all Trust members.
Members are invited to the Council of Governors meetings, where they can talk
informally with Governors and also observe the meeting’s business. The Trust also
holds regular constituency meetings where members can meet Governors in their
constituency to discuss issues, as well as having the opportunity to listen to a talk on
Trust services and developments from Trust staff members. The Annual Members
Meeting, held in September each year, also provides an important forum for Trust
Governors and members to meet and communicate.
The formal link for members who wish to contact their representative Governors, or
the members of the Board is via the Trust Secretary, who can be contacted on 0808
100 3318 or via email: membership@dhuft.nhs.uk.
To become a member of the Trust, simply visit the Trust website or write to:
FREEPOST RRBA-ZHRU-CHUK
Foundation Trust Office
Dorset HealthCare
11 Shelley Road, Boscombe
Bournemouth BH1 4JQ
7.4 Links with the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors and Council of Governors work closely together. Members of
the Board and the Council of Governors attend the Annual Members’ Meeting.
Similarly, Governors are invited to Part 1 of the Board meeting.
There are two Governor Special Interest Groups. Each is chaired or co-chaired by a
Governor, with the exception of the Strategic Direction Group, which is chaired by a
Non-Executive Director. Each of the groups has a non-executive representative, as
well as staff members who regularly attend. The groups are shown below:
• Patient and Public Experience and Engagement Committee
• Strategic Direction
Governors and staff meet regularly to focus on these specific areas and develop
projects of work. Minutes of the meetings are reviewed by the Council of Governors
and the work of each group is showcased at the Annual Members Meeting. The
Patient and Public Experience and Engagement (PPEE) Committee forms part of the
Trust’s governance structure and reports to the Board of Directors, via the Quality,
Clinical Governance and Risk Committee. The PPEE committee is made up of
Governors, staff and representatives from partner organisations.
The Chairman has held one-to-one meetings with each Governor since his
appointment in 2008 to better understand their interests and views, and to learn how
the Board and the Council can work together more seamlessly.
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7.5 Governor Elections and Appointments
The Electoral Reform Service (ERS) manages all elections on behalf of the Trust.
During the most recent round of elections, the following Governors were elected:
For Dorset, the following 6 Public Governors:
•
Michael Byatt
•
Gordon Lewis
•
Liz Morris
•
Angela Reed
•
Brian Meredith (re-elected)
•
Paul Thackray (re-elected)
For Bournemouth Constituency, the following 3 Public Governors:
•
Phil Carey
•
Diane Smelt
•
Peter Lucas (re-elected)
Poole Constituency was uncontested and we welcomed:
•
Patricia Scott (re-elected)
•
Anna Webb (previously Service User Group Representative)
Partner Governor Representatives:
•
Becky Aldridge, General Manager of Dorset Mental Health Forum (Service
User Group Representative).
7.6 Council of Governor Meetings
The Council of Governors meets four times a year on a quarterly basis. Governors
are also invited to attend the Annual Members’ Meeting, Special Members Meetings
and Extraordinary meetings when they arise. The meetings are held in public and are
advertised on the Trust website, in the local media and in Next Steps. The meetings
are chaired by the Chairman, or in his absence the Trust Vice Chairman. All
meetings in 2012/13 have been chaired by the Trust Chairman.
The table below lists all the Governors in 2012/13, their constituency; term of office
and the number of meetings attended from the maximum they could have attended –
depending upon time of appointment or leaving the Council.
Public Governor
Name

Constituency

Term Conclusion

Attendance

Julie Brettingham

Bournemouth

September 2013

3/4

Bournemouth

September 2013

3/4

Bournemouth

September 2013

4/4

Richard Lucas
Lawrence Rowe
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Peter Lucas

Bournemouth

September 2015

3/4

Phil Carey

Bournemouth

September 2015

1/2

Diane Smelt

Bournemouth

September 2015

2/2

Kuldeep Benepal

Bournemouth

September 2012

1/2

Brian Tripp

Bournemouth

September 2012

1/2

Poole

September 2013

3/4

Poole

September 2013

4/4

Poole

September 2013

0/4

Poole

July 2012

1/2

Poole

September 2015

4/4

Anna Webb

Poole

September 2015

4/4

Beverley Seaby

Dorset/rest of
England

July 2012

2/2

Nigel Bailey

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2013

4/4

Michael Bevan

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2013

3/4

Marilyn Osner

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2012

0/2

Mark Grainger

Dorset/rest of
England

July 2012

0/1

Guy Patterson

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2014

2/4

Julie Sheppard

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2014

2/4

Emma Ellerton

Dorset/rest of
England

July 2012

0/1

Michael Byatt

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

2/2

Brian Meredith

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

3/4

Sue Evans-Thomas
Nick Plumbridge
Norman Tripp
Debi Guymer
Patricia Scott
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Paul Thackray

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

4/4

Gordon Lewis

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

2/2

Liz Morris

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

2/2

Angela Reed

Dorset/rest of
England

September 2015

2/2

Partner Governor
Name

Partner
Organisation

Term

Attendance

Gary Hepburn

NHS Dorset

March 2013

2/4

Heather Craven

NHS
Bournemouth and
Poole

March 2013

2/4

Tim Lumley

Dorset Police

Bill Batty-Smith

Representing all
District Councils

September 2013

3/4

Jim Andrews

Bournemouth
University

September 2013

2/4

Peter Finney

Dorset County
Council

Cllr Chris Wakefield

Bournemouth
Borough Council

October 2012

1/2

Cllr Lawrence
Williams

Bournemouth
Borough Council

October 2015

2/2

Jennie Hodges

Poole Borough
Council

Vivien Zarucki

Carer Group
Representative

September 2013

2/4

Becky Aldridge

Service User
Group
Representative

September 2015

2/4

Peter Fale

Volunteer Group
Representative

James Lucas

Dorset Probation
and Prison
Service

April 2015

3/4

Staff Governor
Name

Service

Term

Attendance

Bob Batchelor

Community
Recovery Service

September 2013

2/4

September 2014

September 2013

September 2014

September 2014

1/4

1/4

0/4

3/4
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Brian Ingram
Steve Clark
Pat Cooper

Nursing
Learning
Disabilities
Business
Manager

October 2012

1/2

September 2015

4/4

September 2014

3/4
4/4

Peter Kelsall

IT Manager

September 2014

Dave Corbin

Equality and
Diversity

September 2014

2/4

Teresa Cole

Community
Nurse Manager

September 2014

3/4

Teresa North

Hospital Matron

September 2014

3/4

Along with all Non-Executive and Executive Directors, all Governors are asked to
declare any interests of note in the Register of Interests at the time of their
appointment. This is reviewed and maintained by the Trust Secretary, with Governors
informing the Secretary if their situation changes during their term of office. The
register is available for inspection by members of the public and anyone who wishes
to see it should contact the Trust Secretary.
7.7 Membership
Trust Membership needs to be representative of the community the Trust serves.
Anyone living in Bournemouth, Poole and Dorset (or the rest of England) over the
age of 11 years is welcome to become a Public Member of the Trust.
The areas for public constituencies are as follows:
• Poole (the electoral area covered by Poole Borough Council)
• Bournemouth (the electoral area covered by Bournemouth Borough Council)
• Dorset /rest of England & Wales (the electoral area covered by Dorset County
Council and the rest of England and Wales).
The table below shows the number of members in each constituency area:
Membership
Poole
Dorset /rest of England and Wales
Bournemouth
Total

31 March 2013
1,129
2,682
1,444
5,255

After the acquisition of community services in July 2011, the Trust updated its
membership strategy and recruitment plan to better reflect the populations we serve.
Since that time, the Trust has been undertaking an ongoing membership recruitment
drive – promoting membership throughout all Trust sites including the 11 community
hospitals.
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The Trust has also promoted membership by hosting various open day events for
members of the public to drop in and find out more about their local healthcare
services. Such an event was held at the end of April this year at Bridport Hospital.
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8.0 Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has the responsibility for managing the Trust, ensuring
delivery of financial performance, quality of services (incorporating patient safety,
clinical effectiveness and patient experience) and ensuring all key targets are met. All
legal and financial liabilities for the Trust sit with the Board of Directors.
The Board meets regularly and its role is to determine the overall corporate goals for
the Trust and be responsible for their delivery. The meeting is split into two sections
- Part 1, which is held in public, and Part 2, which is closed to the public. Regular
reports from the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Board Members are
provided to ensure that the Board has an accurate and balanced assessment of the
Trust’s position and progress towards its objectives.
Upon appointment to the Board of Directors, Board Members are given a
comprehensive induction, to enable them to undertake their role as a Board Member
effectively and appropriately. Director training is reviewed and undertaken to ensure
the Board regularly refresh and update their skills and knowledge. Board workshops
are also held throughout the year to discuss strategy and corporate issues in more
depth.
8.1 Board Composition
The Board comprises the Chairman, seven Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) and six
Executive Directors. Three Board Directors also attend the meetings to provide the
Board with additional expertise and experience.
Careful consideration has been given to the composition of the Board and the
experiences required for managing an NHS Foundation Trust. This is to ensure that
the Board of Directors is balanced and has the skills needed to meet the objectives of
the Trust. Currently our Non-Executive Directors have a wide range of experiences
including healthcare, social care finance, marketing, engineering, consultancy,
publishing, and business management. All are deemed to be independent.
The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board of Directors and Council
of Governors, ensuring effectiveness in all aspects of their role whilst at the same
time ensuring the two bodies work together effectively and constructively. The Chair
is also responsible for ensuring that both the Board and Council receive accurate,
timely and clear information to enable them to undertake their roles and
responsibilities.
The Board takes seriously the duties and responsibilities of its members both
individually and collectively. Annual appraisals of the Chairman, Non-Executive
Directors and Executive Directors are carried out to provide feedback on the
operational effectiveness of the Board of Directors.
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8.2 Non-Executive Directors
Jonathan Walsh, Chairman
(Appointed June 2008 and reappointed by Council until May 2014)
Jonathan became one of the first NHS Chairs to have been appointed by a
Foundation Trust's Council of Governors. Prior to the appointment, Jonathan most
recently held the position of Vice Chair at NHS Dorset and prior to this he spent four
years as the managing Director of Alliance Medical Ltd, which, during his time,
became the UK's largest provider of diagnostic imaging. Jonathan has also held
Directorships with both BUPA Dental Cover and Boots Insurance Services, working
as a Healthcare Consultant at KPMG to support the introduction of NHS Trusts and a
role as Vice President and General Manager with American Express International
Insurance Services.
Mike Beesley, Vice Chair
(Appointed in December 2005, and reappointed by Council until December 2015)
Mike replaces Bruce Grant-Braham (who was appointed in December 1999 until his
recent departure at the end of his term in April 2013). Bruce had a PHD in Applied
Marketing from Bournemouth University along with an extensive background in both
tourism (Chair of Poole's Tourism Management Board) and education (Lecturer at
Bournemouth University). He was a Poole District Councillor for 20 years having
been both the Mayor and Sheriff in the early 1990s.
Mike Beesley brings with him a wealth of experience from the Engineering Industry
and was the former Managing Director of Tecan Ltd, BAS Components Ltd and
Dunlop Hilflex Ltd. He is the Chair of the Audit Committee for the Trust. Mike also
holds the following positions: Board member of the Review Board for Government
Contracts and Director of New Wave Integrated Care.
Gill Fozard, Non-Executive Director
(Appointed in August 2001 and reappointed by Council until November 2013)
Gill is a former General and Psychiatric Nurse, who worked in London and Leeds as
well as being the former complaints convener for Dorset HealthCare. Gill is the Chair
of the Mental Health Act Hospital Managers Committee and is the lead for Adult
Mental Health, including drugs and addictions.
Wayne French, Non-Executive Director
(Appointed in 2007 and reappointed by Council until August 2013)
Wayne has extensive financial and managerial experience gained in the aerospace
and engineering sectors, and is a former Managing Director of Wallop Defence
Systems Ltd, Financial Director of Flight Refuelling Limited, and has held a number
of senior financial roles within Schlumberger. Wayne is currently Managing Director
of his own railway engineering company, whilst also offering consultancy to local
industry. He is a trustee of the TEMcare Trust, which is committed to improving
mental health and wellbeing in Dorset.
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Helen Robinson, Non-Executive Director
(Appointed by Council in October 2009 reappointed by Council until October 2015)
Helen has an MBA and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and is currently a Director of a management consultancy firm
(Forward Together Consulting Ltd). Helen has recently carried out work for a number
of public sector bodies in her specialist field of corporate governance.
Nick Chapman, Non-Executive Director
(Appointed by Council in April 2011 until April 2014)
Prior to settling with his family in Dorset, Nick had an extensive career in consumer
book publishing, holding a number of senior posts in the industry and serving as the
President of the Publishers Association. Joining the BBC in 1986 he became the
Managing Director of BBC Worldwide Publishing and, for a period, a Member of the
BBC Board of Management. Most recently he was Managing Director of the Irish
Times Limited, publisher of Ireland's premier newspaper and leading news internet
service. Nick is also Chair of the Trustee Board of St Margaret's Hospice, a charity
that serves the communities of Somerset and parts of North Dorset.
Jan Owens, Non-Executive Director
(Appointed by Council in July 2011 until June 2014)
Jan has 10 years’ experience in the NHS in Dorset as a non-executive director, first
with SE Dorset PCT and then with NHS Dorset and she has also worked closely with
Dorset County Council. Previously a social worker, she worked closely with the
health services, both as a frontline worker and later as head of the children's
services. This experience enables her to appreciate the benefits of joint working
between health and social care and the ways we can achieve more integrated quality
care.
Note: Non-Executive Directors’ terms of appointment are for three years, which can
be renewed for limited further periods. An appointment can be terminated if proposed
by a Governor and seconded by not less than ten Governors (including at least two
elected Governors and two appointed Governors) and then, only if three quarters of
the Council votes in favour of the termination. Written reasons for the proposal will
be provided to the Non-Executive Director in question, who will be given the
opportunity to respond to such reasons. In making any decision to remove a NonExecutive Director, the Council of Governors will take into account the annual
appraisal carried out by the Chairman.
8.3 Executive Directors
Paul Sly, Chief Executive
Paul Sly was appointed as Chief Executive in February 2012. He has extensive
experience of working at a senior level within the NHS and prior to his role he was
Chief Executive of the NHS Dorset, Bournemouth and Poole Cluster, having been
Chief Executive of NHS Dorset. Previous to that Paul was Deputy Chief Executive
and Director of Finance for NHS Bournemouth and Poole. Paul's earlier career
included time as District Auditor for the Audit Commission where he qualified as a
Chartered Accountant.
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Roy Jackson, Executive Director of Finance
Roy was appointed in 2001 and is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (FCMA). His career in the NHS spans over 22 years, most latterly prior
to joining the Trust, as a Health Authority Finance Director. Prior to his career in the
health service he has experience in accounting and costing within the manufacturing
sector.
Colin Hague, Executive Director of Human Resources
Appointed in 2009 as Director of Human Resources (and a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel and Development), Colin has spent his career in HR
management. He was Head of HR at the Borough of Poole Council between 1996
and 2009 responsible for leading HR service provision for over 5,000 employees, and
responsible for HR arrangements at times of major organisational change including
local government reorganisation. Prior to that he was Head of HR Provider Services
at the London Borough of Havering where he worked between 1983 and 1996
providing a lead HR role for 8,500 staff.
Laurence Mynors-Wallis, Medical Director
Laurence has worked for the Trust as a Consultant Psychiatrist for 13 years and was
appointed in 2000 as Medical Director. He is a Member of the Royal College of
Physicians and a Fellow of the Royal College of Psychiatrists. He is the lead for
Revalidation at the Royal College of Psychiatrists. Laurence has a Doctorate of
Medicine from Oxford University. He has previously worked for Oxfordshire Mental
Health NHS Trust.
Tim Archer, Nurse Executive Director
Appointed Nurse Executive Director in July 2011, Tim has committed 30 years to the
NHS, having entered it, aged 20, as a hospital porter. He subsequently progressed
by qualifying in Nursing in Mental Health and Physical Settings, and numerous
leadership and management positions working in organisations across the South
West, most recently as Chief Operating Officer with Dorset Community Health
Services. Tim was previously Executive Director of Operations and Nursing/Deputy
Chief Executive at the Cornwall Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, one of a small
Executive team that took the organisation from Special Measures to licensing as a
Foundation Trust in just under four years. The Trust was recognised by the
Healthcare Commission as one of the five most improved organisations in the
country.
Jane Elson, Executive Director of Quality
Jane joined the Trust in 1992 as a Trainee Manager. Since joining the Trust she has
gained considerable experience of operational management across a broad range of
clinical and support services. She has played a key role in securing and
implementing new services, as well as providing strong leadership in developing and
modernising services to provide high quality care. In July 2003, Jane became an
Associate Board Director and from April 2010 she also became the Trust Lead
Director for Quality, encompassing Quality, Governance, Safeguarding and
Customer Services/Complaints alongside her operational management
responsibilities. Jane has a Masters in Business Administration and was appointed
as Executive Director of Quality in September 2011.
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8.4 Attendance at Board of Directors’ Meetings 2012/13
The table below highlights the number of meetings attended by each Board Member
out of the maximum number of meetings that they could have attended.
Name
Jonathan Walsh
Paul Sly
Roy Jackson
Laurence Mynors-Wallis
Tim Archer
Colin Hague
Jane Elson
Bruce Grant-Braham
Mike Beesley
Gill Fozard
Wayne French
Helen Robinson
Nick Chapman
Jan Owens

Title
Chairman
Chief Executive
Director of Finance
Medical Director
Nurse Executive Director
Director of Human Resources
Director of Quality
Vice Chair (until April 2013)
and Non-Executive Director
Vice Chair (since April 2013)
and Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Attendance
16/16
15/15
16/16
13/16
15/16
16/16
15/16
13/16
15/16
15/16
14/16
14/16
15/16
15/16

8.5 Directors’ Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Accounts in accordance with laws
and regulations and under directions issued by Monitor, the independent regulator of
foundation trusts and as detailed in the Statement of Accounting Officers
Responsibilities on page 48 The financial statements meet the accounting
requirements of Monitor’s NHS Trust Financial Reporting Manual. The accounting
policies follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s
Resource Accounting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate
to the NHS. The accounts represent a true and fair position of the Trust. The
Members of the Board have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information.
The Board has done this through:
• Making enquiries of fellow Directors and of the Trust’s Auditors for that purpose
• Taken such other steps (where required) as are required as a Director of the
Trust to exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence.
As such - as far as the Directors are aware - there is no relevant audit information of
which the Auditors are unaware.
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9.0 Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee is a sub-committee of the Council of Governors. It has
the role of making recommendations to the Council of Governors regarding the
appointment and reappointment of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors as
well as the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors.
The committee is also responsible for:
•
Periodic reviews of the numbers, structure and composition of Non-Executive
Directors, to reflect the expertise and experience required, and to make
recommendations to the Council of Governors.
•
Developing succession plans for Non-Executive Directors, taking into account
the challenges and opportunities facing the Trust.
•
Identifying and nominating candidates to fill Non-Executive Director posts.
•
Keeping the leadership requirements of the Trust under review, to ensure the
continued ability to provide cost effective, high quality and appropriate health
services.
The Nominations Committee comprises the Chairman of the Trust, two Public
Elected Governors, one Staff Elected Governor and one Appointed Governor. The
current members of the Nominations Committee (and their attendance out of the
maximum number of meetings that they could have attended during 2012/13) are as
follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Jonathan Walsh (Chairman) – meetings attended 2 of 2
Patricia Scott (Lead Governor, Public Elected, Poole) - meetings attended 2
of 2
Brian Meredith (Public Elected, Dorset/rest of England) - meetings attended 2
of 2
Nick Plumbridge (Public Elected, Poole) - meetings attended 2 of 2
Steve Clark (Staff Elected Governor) - meetings attended 2 of 2
Jim Andrews (Appointed Governor, Bournemouth University) - meetings
attended 2 of 2
Chris Harvey (Trust Secretary, in attendance) - meetings attended 2 of 2
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10.0 Audit Committee
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide the Trust with the means of
independent and objective review of all control systems and risk management. The
committee discharges its responsibilities through the consideration of reports as
follows:
 Internal Audit
 External Audit
 Internal Control and Risk Management
 Financial and Performance Reporting
 Counter Fraud.
The members of the Audit Committee are:
 Michael Beesley, Chairman and Non-Executive Director
 Wayne French, Non-Executive Director
 Helen Robinson, Non-Executive Director.
At the request of the Audit Committee Chairman, each meeting is attended by the
External Audit representative, Internal Audit Manager and the Director of
Finance. The Local Counter Fraud Specialist attends every other meeting. The
Director of Quality attends when required, as do other Directors.
The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the past year was six. The
attendance of the committee members is shown below against the total number of
meetings each member could have attended.
Audit Committee Attendance
Member
Michael Beesley (Chair)
Wayne French
Helen Robinson

Attendance
6
5
5

10.1 External Auditors
The Trust’s external auditors are appointed by the Council of Governors. The
appointment process includes a report and recommendation from the Trust’s Audit
Committee. In reaching its conclusions and recommendations, the Trust’s Audit
Committee ensures that the Trust complies with the Audit Code for NHS Foundation
Trusts, published by Monitor, which includes a recommendation that external audit
services should be market tested at least every five years. The Trust’s current
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, was appointed from 1 April 2010.
The responsibility of the auditor is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with statute, the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). The auditor reports their opinion to the Board of
Governors of Dorset HealthCare as to whether the financial statements give a true
and fair view and whether the auditable part of the Remuneration Report within this
Annual Report has been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting
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policies directed by the Independent Regulator which are relevant to NHS
Foundation Trusts.
The Trust’s constitution permits the Board of Directors to engage external auditors to
undertake additional audit work outside of the Audit Code for Foundation Trusts. In
2012/13, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Trust’s external auditors did undertake
additional non audit work for the Trust.
Such work is permissible provided it is undertaken by auditors appointed by the
Board of Governors. Section 2.12 of Monitor’s Audit code states that: ‘The auditor
may, with the approval of the Council of Governors, provide the NHS Foundation
Trust with services which are outside of the scope of the audit as defined within this
code (additional services). The Trust shall adopt and implement a policy for
considering and approving any additional services to be provided by the auditor’. This
policy has been prepared and agreed by the Audit Committee and approved by the
Council of Governors.
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11.0 Remuneration Report
This remuneration report is prepared in compliance with Section 234B and Schedule
7A of the Companies Act and Directors Remuneration Report Regulation 2002 as
interpreted for the context of NHS Foundation Trusts.
The Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Trust Board on the pay and conditions of service of the
Trust’s Executive Directors.
Membership of the Remuneration Committee is open to Non-Executive Directors.
During the 12 months ending 31 March 2013, the Remuneration and Terms of
Service Committee met once. The 2012/13 membership and number of meetings
attended is as follows:
Member

Position

Attendance

Jonathan Walsh

Chairman

1

Bruce Grant-Braham
Gill Fozard
Mike Beesley
Wayne French
Helen Robinson
Nick Chapman
Jan Owens (from 1
July 2011)

Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

The Trust's policy on the remuneration of Senior Managers takes account of
performance and independent market research, making comparisons with Trusts of a
similar size and configuration and the private sector.
The Remuneration Policy aims to provide remuneration packages which are
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate senior managers of the quality required to run
our NHS Foundation Trust and equitable pay. The Trust will continue to use
independent guidance in order to maintain remuneration packages which are
competitive in the market place and take account of current financial pressures.
As applied in 2011/12, the Board again decided not to apply a general cost of living
increase to senior managers (where the Committee has responsibility for determining
salary) in 2012/13 in view of financial pressures and no cost of living increase
applying to other staff. The Committee appreciates the work of senior managers and

41

their response to the decision not to apply a cost of living pay increase when cost of
living increases were applied to other staff following national decisions.
11.1 Assessment of Performance and other information
The Trust has a well established personal development review process in place. All
senior managers with the exception of the Chief Executive are reviewed by the Chief
Executive. The Chief Executive’s performance is reviewed by the Trust Chair in
conjunction with the Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee.
Directors pay set out in section 11.2 involves no performance payments.
Trust Executive Director employment status is permanent for reasons of recruitment
and retention and to take account of case law provisions relating to fixed term
contracts. Executive Directors notice periods are 6 months. Contracts do not
contain individual entitlements to termination payments. Contracts have been for the
whole financial year unless otherwise specified.
11.2 Senior Managers’ Remuneration (this section is subject to Audit)
Senior Managers’ Remuneration 2012/13

Benefits in
Kind
To the nearest
£100

145 – 150
(20-25 part
year from
February
2012)

-

-

110 – 115
(120-125)

-

7,400
(7000)

35 – 40
(35-40)

165 – 170
(165-70)

700
(800)

95 – 100
(80-85)

-

-

95– 100
(*0-5)

(0)
(65-70)*

800
(1200)

95-100
(**55-60)

(0)
(40-45)

200
(200)

Salary

Name
Previous years shown in brackets
Senior Managers
P Sly
Chief Executive
R D Jackson
Director of Finance
Dr L M Mynors-Wallis
Medical Director
C Hague
Director of Human Resources
T Archer
Nurse Executive Director
J Elson
Director of Quality

2012/13
Other
Remuneration
[bands of
£5,000]

[bands of
£5,000]

*Appointed Nurse Executive Director July 2012)
**Appointed Director of Quality Sept 2012)
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Non-Executive Board Members
J Walsh
Chairman
B R Grant-Braham
(leaver 31/03/2013)
G W Fozard
M J Beesley
W I French
H Robinson
N Chapman
J Owens

30-35
(35-40)

1,600
(2400)

10 – 15
(10-15)

-

10 – 15
(10-15)

-

15 – 20
(15-20)
10 – 15
(15-20)
10 – 15
(10-15)
10 – 15
(10-15 joined
April 2011)
10 – 15
(5-10 joined
July 2011)

-

200
(500)
300
(300)
500
(1000)
1,000
(1500)

-

1,000
(1700)

-

700
(900)

-

300
(500)

Benefits in kind relate to mileage expenses and car allowances. See Financial Accounts for
a total salary and benefits in kind paid to senior managers in their role as Directors. Other
remuneration represents amounts paid to Directors for services other than that as Directors.
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Pension disclosure of Senior Managers 2012/13

Name

P Sly
Chief
Executive
R D Jackson
Director of
Finance
J Chai Acting
Director of
Finance from 1
April 2011 to
30 September
2011
Dr L M
Mynors-Wallis
Medical
Director
C Hague
Director of
Human
Resources
C M Newell
Acting Nurse
Executive
Director
T Archer
Nurse
Executive
Director
Jane Elson
Director of
Quality

Cash
equivalent
transfer
[CETV] at
31/03/13
(31/03/12)

Real
increase in
CETV as
funded by
employer

£000

£000

100 – 102.5

448
(393)

34

127.5 – 130

847
(784)

22

Real
Increase in
Pension at
age 60

Real
Increase in
lump sum at
60

Total
accrued
pension at
60 at
31/03/13

Lump sum at
60 relating to
accrued
pension at
31/03/13

[bands of
£2,500]
£000

[bands of
£2,500]
£000

[bands of
£2,500]
£000

[bands of
£2,500]
£000

0 – 2.5

5.0 – 7.5

32.5 – 35

(0 – 2.5)

(0 – 2.5)

42.5 – 45

(244)

0 – 2.5

2.0 – 2.5

82.5 – 85

252 – 255

0 – 2.5

0

5 – 7.5

0

1,658
(1,517)

80
(63)

62

13

(266)

0 – 2.5

5 – 7.5

40-42.5

120 – 122.5

759
(666)

57

0 – 2.5

0 – 2.5

20– 22.5

65 – 67.5

337
(310)

11

As Non-Executive Directors do not receive pensionable remuneration there are no
entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive Directors. No elements are subject
to performance conditions. No Executive Director serves as an Executive Director
elsewhere. Salary and Other Remuneration excludes employers' costs of National
Insurance and Pension contributions which are payable in respect of the above
officers' employments. Amounts disclosed as Benefits in Kind are costs associated
with lease cars and travel expense allowances which are subject to income tax.
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11.3 Median Pay
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Dorset HealthCare
University NHS Foundation Trust in the financial year 2012/13 was £209k (2011/12
£208K). This was 8.2 times the median salary in 2012/13 (2011/12: 9.31) of the
median remuneration of the workforce which was £25k (2011/12 £22k).
In 2012/13 (2011/12, 2) 3 employees/agency staff received remuneration at an
annualised full time equivalent in excess of the highest paid director, the full time
equivalent remuneration rate ranged from £208k - £254k (2011/12 £236k - £253k)
No employee received a total remuneration in excess of the highest paid director.
The reports used the month 12 pay for both years, which were then adjusted for
variances in the pay in that month. These variances included payment of redundancy
pay, large pay adjustments and where month 12 was the final payment for a leaver.
No adjustments have been made for any other variances, e.g. maternity pay or sick
pay. No adjustment has been made for staff with multiple contracts.
The month 12 pay reports include bank staff. No adjustment has been made for this
pay, which has been treated the same as any other pay. This adjusted month 12 pay
has been converted to a whole time equivalent basis, based on the hours worked in
month 12. This has then been annualised.
Agency staff are included in the Median pay calculation excluding the agency
commission costs. This has been done by extracting a report of agency costs
incurred during the period. Agency commission has been deducted using an
average of 25%. Average pay per agency staff employed has been calculated by
dividing the net cost by the number of agency staff.
Spot-checks on numerous staff cumulative figures held in ESR confirmed the
accuracy of the figures supplied. Where making adjustments to the month 12 figures
would not have made a difference to the outcome of the resulting Median pay these
were not changed.
11.4 Declaration of Expenses Claimed by Governors
The Trust paid a total of £3,209.45 in expenses to Governors, with the largest annual
claim being £688.50
11.5 Director & Senior Manager Travel & Expenses 2012/13
The Trust paid a total of £27,969.75 in expenses to Directors, with the largest annual
claim being £2,996.62

Signed: ………………………………

29 May 2013

Date: …………..........

Paul Sly
Chief Executive
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12.0 Annual Governance Statement 2012/2013
12.1 Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for
which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to
me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is
administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently
and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
12.2 The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of Dorset
HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in
place in Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31
March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
12.3 Capacity to handle risk
The Trust has a Risk Management Strategy that has been approved by the Trust
Board. The Executive Director of Quality leads the Trust’s risk management function,
which includes both clinical and non-clinical risks. Board Executive and Non
Executive Directors are aware of their responsibilities in relation to risk management
and the Non Executive Directors Chair, or are involved in, all Board committees that
manage risk.
The Executive Director Quality works closely with the Trust’s Medical Director and
Nursing Executive in the management of risk.
The capacity to provide leadership to and deliver the risk management function is
underpinned by a number of other key roles including:











Chief Executive
Executive Director Quality.
Nurse Executive who is the Director of Infection Prevention and Control.
The Trust Board Secretary.
Lead for Patient Safety and Safeguarding.
Health and Safety Managers.
Local Security Management Specialist.
Fire Safety Officer.
A designated Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO).
A designated Caldicott Guardian.
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Leadership is also provided by Directors at Directorate level with local reports related
to risk management including risk registers, being regularly reviewed and discussed
at Non Executive Director led Audit Committee, the Quality, Clinical Governance and
Risk Committee, Executive Directors Meeting and the Directorate Management
meetings.
The Audit Committee reviews the Corporate Risk Register at each bi monthly
meeting and the Trust Board receives reports on the progress of managing the risk
registers throughout the year. Risk Management is a standing item on the Directors’
Meetings.
The Trust provides training in risk management for all staff at induction. Induction is a
mandatory requirement before any staff are able to start in the work place. As part of
the Trust wide training programme there are specific training course given to staff on
the risk management approach adopted by the Trust.
Board members and senior managers receive training in risk management
awareness with the Health & Safety Manager & Local Security Management
Specialist as part of the induction process in order to gain an understanding of the
Trust’s integrated risk management procedures. Other related of risk management
training is detailed in the Mandatory Training schedule which includes Health and
Safety, Fire, Clinical Risk training and Safeguarding both Adults and Children.
Trust policies and guidance relating to all aspects of risk management are made
available to all staff via the Trust Intranet. All polices and guidance is regularly
reviewed to ensure it remains up to date and reflects best practice.
In addition to enable all staff to learn from best practice annual “Lessons Learn
Booklets” are produce and distributed to staff across the Trust in respect of Learning
from SUI and complaints.
12.4 The risk and control framework
The key aims of the Strategy are to:
 Ensure the Trust meets its National and Trust Governance requirements, eg
Care Quality Commission and National Health Service Litigation Authority
standards.
 Introduce and manage a systematic approach to the identification, analysis,
recording and minimisation of all known risks throughout the Trust.
 Ensure maintenance of a comprehensive and robust system of adverse
incident reporting.
 Ensure all serious adverse incidents are investigated in detail, seeking
independent review if necessary and participating in all external enquiries of
the Trust’s procedures.
 Promote a culture of a “learning organisation” in respect of risk assessment
and management including incident reporting, complaints and litigation all
relevant clinical staff should receive training in clinical risk as a minimum,
once every three years, in line with the recommendations of Safer Services.
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Plan action in response to adverse incidents, complaints and litigation as a
mechanism for preventing reoccurrence, including a mechanism for
disseminating lessons to be learnt for local and national findings.
Regularly review and update risk related policies.
Be committed to achieving the requirements of the NHS Litigation Authority
Risk Management Standards.
Promote a culture to provide a safe environment for patients, carers, visitors
and staff in line with Health and Safety and Counter Fraud and Security
Management legislation.
Comply with recommendations for external reviews e.g. NHSLA Risk
Management, Care Quality Commission etc.
Ensure that risk processes reflect and are informed by external documents
produced by for example Monitor and the Care Quality Commission.

The Trust Board is committed to providing the resources to support a system of Risk
Management within the Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust in order
to promote high quality health care and provide a safe environment for patients,
visitors, staff and others involved in the work of the Trust. This commitment is made
through the establishment of a formal process for controlling and managing risk
which reports to the Quality, Clinical Governance and Risk Committee and onto the
Trust Board.
There are well established processes for the identification, evaluation and control or
prevention of risk.
Risks are identified in a number of ways or may come from a range of sources
including:
 Care Quality Commission review
 Internal Essential Standards visits.
 Effective health and safety audits and inspections and implementation of
resulting action plans.
 Directorate and Departmental risk assessments.
 Non Clinical / Generic Risk Assessments completed by staff.
 Incident reports.
 Serious Adverse Incident Reports.
 Complaints.
 Claims.
 National Guidance.
 Recommendations from External Inspections or Visits.
 Audits.
All managers have the authority and are responsible for ensuring risks are
systematically identified within their area of responsibility and ensure action is taken
to minimise and mitigate risks. Where immediate action is not possible for non clinical
or generic risks, these are assessed and quantified using a scoring matrix and
entered into locally held Risk Registers.

48

In those instances where it is not possible to eliminate a risk, positive steps must be
taken to minimise that risk to an acceptable level or example by:
 Ensuring managers / Directorate Management Groups continuously review
staff levels and skill mix.
 Training – both job specific and risk management.
 Developing and auditing standards / protocols / guidelines.
 Reviewing equipment and buildings.
 Reviewing when and what to insure in relation to level of premium / risk.
Local Risk Registers are regularly reviewed at Directorate level to ensure that
appropriate action to eliminate or minimise the risk has been taken in a timely
manner. A Risk Register capturing Trust Wide Risks is also in place. The Health
and Safety Manager / Local Security Management Specialist meets regularly with the
local Directorate leads to review the local registers and progress and to ensure any
high risks are reflected, by the Trust Board Secretary in the Corporate Risk Register.
The Trust is mindful that we are a public funded organisation. The Trust normally
operates with a low acceptable risk threshold in respect of its plans and actions. It is
an organisation that seeks to ensure that it operates with robust risk assessment and
management processes. The following details how the Trust learns from its risk
management processes and how it embeds an open culture to risk management as
reflected in the NPSA patient safety incident rating:
 Adverse incident reports are disseminated to Directorate Management Teams
for consideration of trends and shared learning.
 Complaints are reviewed by Directorate Management Teams who identify
lessons to be learnt. The lessons are disseminated to appropriate staff.
 A focus on risk management at team Away Days with lessons to be learnt
and practice changes identified.
 National reports and external enquiries are reviewed at Director’s Meeting or
Directorate level. A local action plan is drawn up and implemented via
Directorate Management Groups.
An integrated Corporate Dashboard, that is presented to each Board Meeting,
includes performance against quality indicators. In addition a Performance Report
incorporating both financial and health care targets is provided to the Directors’
Meeting and shared with the Board through the Board Portal.
The Quality Directorate has the responsibility for coordinating the Trust’s programme
of compliance against the Care Quality Commission’s registration requirements. The
Trust is registered with the Care Quality Commission with no restrictive conditions.
The Trust is not fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission (see further information below).
Data security risks are identified and treated in the same way as other risks. The
Operational and Corporate Risk Registers detail data security risks where
appropriate. The Trust has clear guidance on the intranet for staff concerning the
sending of patient Identifiable or confidential data. These issues are also
incorporated into the Trust Induction and other training programs where appropriate.
Appropriate IT systems are in place to ensure that electronic communication is
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encrypted and / or sent by secure means as well as encrypted data storage devices
and laptops etc. There are currently no significant control issues relating to serious
information incidents. All policies are reviewed and updated at regular intervals to
keep up to date with current changes in systems and legislation including aspects
connected to information governance. The annual Information Governance Toolkit
was submitted on 28 March 2013 prior to the deadline of 31 March 2013.
Risk management is embedded into all activities within the Trust from ward to Board
level and into the corporate functions and polices of the Trust. The Trust has clear
guidance of the Production and Management of Procedural documents which
incorporates requirements concerning equality impact assessments. The Director of
Human Resources is the Trust Lead on equality and diversity matters and is
responsible for ensuring the monitoring of the key equality strands and for strategic
direction. The Trust Black Minority and Ethnic (BME) Community Development
Workers whose focus is on increasing capacity and awareness in local communities,
and in the Trust on BME issues for the benefit of both service users and carers.
The Trust has reviewed its Race Equality Scheme, Equality & Diversity Strategy and
Disability Equality Scheme in place and does comply with its obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation.
As part of the corporate governance process, the views of service users, carers and
other stakeholders are taken into consideration when reviewing systems and
procedures. The Trust’s Quality programme embraces the Patient Experience and
the Trust has developed a programme to enhance service user involvement at all
levels within the Trust and to ensure that service user feedback is sort and acted
upon in all service areas on a regular basis. The Trust also works in partnership
with other organisations to develop and improve our services. For example the Trust
plays an active role in the local Safeguarding Boards and networks associated with
Emergency Planning, Local Security Management etc .
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme,
control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the
Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from
salary, employer’s contributions and payments in to the Scheme are in accordance
with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately
updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Controls measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.
The Trust’s Assurance Framework has been produced with the principal corporate
objectives being drawn from the Trust’s Integrated Business Plan. Principal risks,
key controls, assurances on controls and gaps in controls and systems assurance
were mapped out against the corporate objectives in the form of the Assurance
Framework Matrix.
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The 2012/13 Assurance Framework was approved by the Trust Board on 25 July
2012, and reviewed in year by the Audit Committee. The Assurance Framework will
be continually updated through 2013/2014, where applicable.
The Trust's Internal Auditors have independently reviewed the Assurance Framework
and have undertaken a programme of audits to independently review the processes
in place within the Trust. They have concluded that an Assurance Framework has
been established which is designed and operating to meet the requirements of the
2012/13 Annual Governance Statement to manage the principal risks of the
organisation. .
The Trust has achieved level 1 of the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts. This
confirms that the Trust has robust policies and procedures in place to reduce risks
and deliver quality care to our service users, whilst also protecting our staff and
visitors.
The Trust has a ‘Green Transport Policy’ and has introduced a Cycle to Work
scheme and is developing a Travel Framework Plan for the Trust’s New
Headquarters.
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction
Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil
contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that
this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation
Reporting requirements are complied with.
12.5 Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
Staff have a responsibility to identify and assess risk and to take action to ensure
controls are in place to reduce and or mitigate risks whilst acknowledging need for
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. All budget managers
have a responsibility to manage their budgets and systems of internal control
effectively and efficiently. These processes are not only reviewed on an ongoing
basis by managers themselves but are also examined by internal and external audit
as part on their annual plans. The Audit Committee receives reports from directors of
the Trust as well as internal and external audit and Counter Fraud and Security
Management on the work undertaken to review the Trust’s systems of control
including economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. Action
plans are agreed from these reports to improve controls where necessary.
12.6 Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Reports) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Reports for
each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS Foundation Trust Boards
on the form and content of Annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal
requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
Detailed below is brief description of the Trust process for assuring the Board of
Directors that the Quality Report presents a balanced view and that there are
appropriate controls in place to ensure the accuracy of the data.
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The Trust has a corporate framework for the management and accountability of the
quality of its services. During the year a monthly Quality Report has been produced
which details information across the domains of Patient Safety, Clinical effectiveness
and Patient Experience to provide assurance that the organisations quality
measures are maintained and monitored. The monthly Quality Report is presented
to the Directors meeting and to the Lead Commissioning Primary Care Trust. This
report is available in full to the Board, through the Board Portal and summarised at
Part 1 Board meetings in an integrated corporate dashboard which includes a range
of quality indicators. This ensures that the Board are informed as to the quality of
services though out the year in the lead up to the annual Quality Report.
In addition to the Directors’ Meeting and Trust Board, the organisation has
established a Quality, Clinical Governance and Risk Committee which has the remit
to assist the Board in obtaining assurance that high standards of care are provided
and any risks to quality indentified and robustly addressed at an early stage. This
Committee works closely with the Audit Committee to ensure that there are adequate
and appropriate quality governance structures, processes and controls in place
throughout the Trust.
The Executive Director of Quality has developed systems and processes for
reporting on the quality agenda in 2012/13. At present our systems and procedures
include the monthly Quality Report, covering patient Safety, Clinical Effectiveness
and patient experience, a monthly Chief Executive Report, Annual Compliments and
Complaints Report including lessons learnt, Annual Safeguarding Children Report,
Quarterly Mental Health Act Hospital Managers Information Report including any
issues arising from announced and unannounced visits to ward and units by the Non
Executive Directors.
The data used to support the quality performance comes from various sources e.g.
Clinical Audits, Surveys, information management systems, incidents reports,
external and internal audits. All of which are used to help produce the monthly
Quality Report.
Finally, the process identified above shows that the Trust has a sound system of
internal control which embeds the Quality Report and is regularly monitored by the
Board of Directors and Council of Governors.
The Trust’s stakeholders are consulted and their comments are used to help
formulate the Annual Quality Report which not only looks back over achievements
and results of the previous year but also looks at the key priorities over forthcoming
year. The report is produced to comply with both Monitor and Department of Health
requirement.
12.7 Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the
executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have
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responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
I have drawn on the content of the Quality Report attached to this Annual report and
other performance information available to me. My review is also informed by
comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other
reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee and
the Quality, Clinical Governance and Risk Committee and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The Trust’s Governance Structure, which has been recently updated, details the
approach by which the Trust maintains and reviews the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. The Directors’ Meeting, the Executive Quality Meeting, the Quality
Assurance Committee, the Human Resources and Workforce Development
Committee and Audit Committee feed into the Trust Board thereby informing the
members of the key issues and appropriate action taken to improve controls where
necessary. Various other committees operating throughout the Trust underpinned
these committees thereby ensuring a comprehensive control process is in place.
Individual directors, some of which have executive responsibilities, head the
directorates from which information is fed to all the Trust Committees and the Trust
Board.
The Audit Committee is held bi monthly and provides an oversight of the activities of
internal audit, external audit and the local counter fraud service and the assurance on
internal control, including compliance with the law and regulations governing the
Trust’s activities. The Committee reviews the adequacy of:


All risk and control related disclosure statements (in particular the Statement
on Internal Control and compliance with the Care Quality Commission and
NHSLA standards), together with any accompanying Head of Internal Audit
statement, external audit opinion or other appropriate independent
assurances, prior to endorsement by the Board.



The underlying assurance processes that indicate the degree of the
achievement of corporate objectives, the effectiveness of the management of
principal risks and the appropriateness of the above disclosure statements.



The policies for ensuring compliance with relevant regulatory, legal and code
of conduct requirements. All policies are written with equality impact
assessments as part of the integrated governance approach.



The policies and procedures for all work related to fraud and corruption as set
out in Secretary of State Directions and as required by the Counter Fraud and
Security Management Service.



The Executive Director of Quality has delegated responsibility by the Chief
Executive to lead on the day-to-day management of risk including the
Assurance Framework.
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The Head of Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee with an annual
report detailing the audit coverage for the year and assessment of the
adequacy of the control environment through his annual opinion.

During 2012/13, the Trust received eight inspections of compliance by the Care
Quality Commission against the 16 Essential Standards of Care and one special
review of dignity and nutrition by the Care Quality Commission (details of which are
reported in the Quality Report). The Trust takes very seriously the feedback from the
Care Quality Commission. As a result of concerns raised by the Commission at
Minterne Ward, Forston Clinic the Care Quality Commission proposed and then
withdrew enforcement action. The Trust committed more than £1million in
refurbishing Minterne Ward and built a new seclusion facility which complies with all
of the latest requirement, staffing levels have been increased by 39% and a robust
new leadership structure consisting of a ward manager, a matron and a full time
Consultant has been established.
Following a compliance visit by the Care Quality Commission to Blandford
Community Hospital in March 2013, the Trust received two warning notices in
relation to the Care and Welfare of people who use our services and to Staffing. The
Care Quality Commission required the Trust to be compliant with the Essential
Standards relating to these two areas by 9 May 2013 and the Trust duly submitted
information of action taken to achieve this by the required date. The Care Quality
Commission undertook a follow up visit to Blandford Community Hospital on 20 May
2013 and found that we were still not meeting the outcomes in the two areas
previously identified. We are currently reviewing the factual accuracy of this report.
Following concerns raised by the Care Quality Commission, and their proposed
enforcement action, in Quarter three of 2012/13, Monitor assessed the Governance
Risk Rating as ‘Red’ against the Trust’s prediction of ‘Amber Red’. As a result of this,
the Trust attended an Escalation meeting with Monitor in April 2013. Monitor
subsequently concluded that the Trust had breached its Terms of Licence and
imposed Enforcement Undertakings. The Trust is complying fully with Monitor’s
Requirements and has commissioned an independent external review of corporate
and quality governance and the Board has made a commitment to implement the
recommendations of the Review.
12.8 Conclusion
I recognised the challenges faced by the Trust resulting from inspections by the Care
Quality Commission and actions imposed by Monitor. Whilst I am confident that
Trust has adequate control measures in place as defined by the guidance to ensure
we can continue to deliver high quality, safe, patient outcome focused services, I will
implement the recommendations from the independent external review of Corporate
and Quality Governance to ensure we deliver even better care.

Signed:

Date:

29 May 2013

Paul Sly
Chief Executive
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Statement of the chief executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS
foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by the Independent
Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Dorset HealthCare University NHS
foundation trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form
and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an
accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Dorset
HealthCare University NHS foundation trust and of its income and expenditure, total
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in
particular to:







observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis;
make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose
and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS
foundation trust and to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS foundation trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum.
Signed:

Date:

29 May 2013

Paul Sly
Chief Executive
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Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2012/13

FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These accounts for the 12 months ended 31 March 2013 have been prepared by Dorset HealthCare
University NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the
National Health Service Act 2006 and comply with the annual reporting guidance for NHS
Foundation Trusts within the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual for the financial year
and comply with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, as published by Monitor.
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report and Accounts are presented to
Parliament pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraphs 25(4) of the National Health Service Act 2006.
Signed:

Paul Sly
Chief Executive
Date:

29 May 2013
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

NOTE

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Operating Income from continuing operations

2

226,887

214,339

Operating Expenses of continuing operations

3

(213,146)

(201,962)

13,741

12,377

121
(118)
(23)
(1,938)
(1,958)

111
(112)
(14)
(1,990)
(2,005)

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income
Finance expense - financial liabilities
Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS

5.1
5.2
22

Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates/Joint Ventures accounted for using the equity
method
Corporation tax expense
Surplus/(Deficit) from continuing operations
Surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations and the gain/(loss) on disposal of
discontinued operations

32

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Impairments
Revaluations
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures
Movements arising from classifying non current Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes
Other reserve movements
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE PERIOD
Prior period adjustments
Transforming Community Services (TCS) and merger adjustments
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR

23
23

-

-

-

-

11,783

10,372

-

-

11,783

10,372

(2,395)
1,191

(2,864)
3,460

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,579

10,968

-

-

-

10,579

-

10,968

Note: Allocation of Profits/(Losses) for the period
(a) Surplus/(Deficit) for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent
TOTAL
(b) total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent
TOTAL

-

-

11,783
11,783

10,372
10,372

-

-

10,579
10,579

10,968
10,968

The notes on pages A7 to A54 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 March 2013
NOTE

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment Property
Investments in associates (and joint controlled operations)
Other Investments
Trade and other receivables
Other Financial assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

7.1
8.1
11
11
11
14.1
34
15

31 March
2013
£000

31 March
2012
£000

22
66,649

37
64,831

-

-

-

-

-

-

20

-

-

-

-

20

66,691

64,888

686
6,982

694
5,603

-

-

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Liabilities in disposal groups
Total current liabilities

13.1
14.1
34
10
24.1

16
18.1
35
22
17

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

16
18.1
35
22
17

Total assets employed

3,226
43,204
54,098

3,890
32,866
43,053

(16,166)
(192)

(14,913)
(193)

-

-

(2,645)

(1,658)

-

-

-

-

(19,003)

(16,764)

101,786

91,177

-

-

(1,463)

(1,668)

-

-

(876)

(802)

-

-

(2,339)

(2,470)

99,447

88,707

Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Minority Interest
Public Dividend Capital
Revaluation reserve
Available for sale investments reserve
Other reserves
Merger reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

-

23

29,721
28,973

-

-

-

-

-

Total taxpayers' equity

-

29,882
27,752

-

41,813

30,013

99,447

88,707

The accounts on pages A2 to A54 were approved by the Board on 29th May 2013 and signed on its
behalf by Paul Sly (Chief Executive) :

Signed: …………………………………(Chief Executive)

Date: 29 May 2013
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
31 March 2013
Total

Minority
Interest

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

28,973

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2012

88,707

-

29,721

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves
Transfers between reserves
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant & equipment
Revaluations - Intangible assets
Revaluations - Financial assets
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint
ventures
Movements arising from classifying non current assets as
Assets Held for Sale

11,783

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial
investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial
investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Other movements in PDC in year
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2013

Donated
Available
Other
Merger
Assets
for Sale
Reserves Reserve
Reserve Investments
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

-

-

-

-

30,013

-

-

-

-

-

11,783

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

161

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

99,447

-

29,882

-

-

-

-

(2,395)
1,191

161

(2,395)
1,191
(17)

27,752

17

41,813
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
31 March 2012
Total

Minority
Interest

Public
Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

28,879

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2011

77,739

-

29,721

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves
Transfers between reserves
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant & equipment
Revaluations - Intangible assets
Revaluations - Financial assets
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint
ventures
Movements arising from classifying non current assets as
Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial
investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial
investments
Other recognised gains and losses

10,372

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes
Public Dividend Capital received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Other movements in PDC in year
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2012

Donated
Available
Other
Merger
Assets
for Sale
Reserves Reserve
Reserve Investments
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

-

-

-

-

19,139

-

-

-

-

-

10,372

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

88,707

-

29,721

-

-

-

-

(2,864)
3,460
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(2,864)
3,460
(502)

28,973

502

30,013
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

13,741
13,741

12,377
12,377

2,365
849
563
(17)
(1,265)
8
799
1,061
-

2,213
445
(8)
(100)
(3,929)
(561)
6,668
972
-

-

-

(118)
17,986

(70)
18,007

121
(5,530)
23

111
(3,331)
1,657

-

-

(5,386)

(1,563)

Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Loans received from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Loans received from the Department of Health
Other loans received
Loans repaid to the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Loans repaid to the Department of Health
Other loans repaid
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Other capital receipts
Capital element of Private Finance Initiative Obligations
Interest paid
Interest element of finance lease
Interest element of Private Finance Initiative obligations
PDC Dividend paid
Cash flows attributable to financing activities of discontinued
operations
Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities

161
(181)
(25)
(97)
(4)
(2,116)

(181)
30
(107)
(5)
(1,863)

-

-

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

(2,262)

(2,126)

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

10,338

14,318

Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April

32,866

18,548

43,204

32,866

NOTE

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations
Operating surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations
Operating surplus/(deficit)
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
(Gain)/Loss on disposal
Interest accrued and not paid
Dividends accrued and not paid or received
Amortisation of government grants
Amortisation of Private Finance Initiative (PFI) credit
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Tax (paid)/received
Movements in operating cash flow of discontinued
operations
Movements in operating cash flow in respect of
Transforming Community Services transaction
Other movements in operating cash flows
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of financial assets
Sales of financial assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Sales of intangible assets
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Cash flows attributable to investing activities of discontinued
operations
Cash from acquisitions of business units and subsidiaries
Cash from (disposals) of business units and subsidiaries
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March

24
Page A6
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.

Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the accounts of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM) which shall be agreed with HM Treasury.
Consequently, the following accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2012/13 NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to NHS Foundation Trusts. Where the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the
particular circumstances of Dorset HealthCare for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.
The accounting policies adopted by Dorset HealthCare are described below. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
Land and Buildings at their value to the business by reference to their current costs. NHS Foundation Trusts, in
compliance with HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual, are not required to comply with the International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 33 requirements to report “earnings per share” or historical profits and losses.
1.2 Going Concern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.
1.3 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be 'discontinued' where they meet all of the following conditions:
the sale or termination is completed either in the period or before the earlier of three months after the
a.
commencement of the subsequent period and the date on which the accounts are approved;
if a termination, the former activities have ceased permanently;
b.
the sale or termination has a material effect on the nature and focus of the reporting NHS Foundation
c.
Trust's operations and represents a material reduction in its operating facilities resulting either from its
withdrawal from a particular activity or from a material reduction in income in the NHS Foundation Trust's
continuing operations; and
d.
the assets, liabilities, results of operations and activities are clearly distinguishable, physically,
operationally and for financial reporting purposes.
Operations not satisfying all these conditions are classified as continuing.
Activities are considered to be 'acquired' whether or not they are acquired from outside the public sector.
For 2012/13 and 2011/12 all operations are continuing and no acquisitions have been made in 2012/13. In
2011/12 Dorset HealthCare acquired the Community Health Services arms of NHS Dorset and NHS Bournemouth
& Poole. In 2011/12, the Department of Health required all transfers of functions between public sector bodies to
be accounted for using merger accounting rules - the results of the entities are aggregated as if they had always
been combined. The detail of the amounts which have been included are in note 38 to the accounts.
1.4 Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for Dorset HealthCare is
contracts with NHS commissioners in respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that income
is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met,
and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
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1.5 Expenditure on Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received
from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period
is recognised in the accounts to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following
period.
Pension Costs
NHS Pension Scheme
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust makes contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme. The NHS
Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme. However, the NHS Pensions Agency is not subject to control or
influence by Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust. Therefore, contributions are accounted for as
though the scheme were a defined contribution scheme.
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.
Further details are available in Note 4.7.
1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except
where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.
1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
●
it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
●
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, Dorset HealthCare;
●
it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
●
the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
- they individually have a cost of at least £5,000; or
- they form a group of assets which individually have a cost of more than £250, collectively have a cost of at
least £5,000, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
- they form part of the refurbishment or initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset
lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their
own useful economic lives.
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1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment continued
Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. For assets
other than land and buildings depreciated value is considered to be equivalent to fair value.
Land and buildings used for Dorset HealthCare's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at the
end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:
●
Land and non-specialised buildings - market value for existing use.
●
Specialised buildings - modern equivalent asset values.
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences
when they are brought into use.
Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is
added to the asset's carrying value. Where subsequent expenditure is simply restoring the asset to the
specification assumed by its economic useful life then the expenditure is charged to operating expenses. Where a
component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition
above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised.
Depreciation
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated evenly over their remaining useful economic lives in a
manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to
have an infinite life and is not depreciated.
Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as 'Held for Sale' ceases to be depreciated upon the
reclassification.
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on their current value evenly over the estimated remaining life of
the asset as assessed by the NHS Foundation Trust’s professional valuers. Leaseholds are depreciated over the
primary lease term.
Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the estimated life.
Details of useful economic lives are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

Buildings, installations and fittings have useful economic lives of between 11 and 44 years.
Plant & Machinery have useful economic lives of between 5 and 15 years;
Furniture & Fittings have useful economic lives of between 5 and 10 years;
IT Equipment have useful economic lives of 5 years for all IT equipment except for servers which have useful
economic lives of 8 years; and
Transport equipment have useful economic lives of between 5 and 7 years.
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1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment continued
Revaluation and impairment
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to
the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are
recognised in operating income.
Decreases in asset values and impairments are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an
available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
an item of 'other comprehensive income'.
In accordance with the FT Annual Reporting Manual, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or
service potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the
revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment
charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the
impairment.
An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that,
the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating income to the
extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been
recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount
is transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of 'other impairments' are treated as revaluation
gains.
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as 'Held for Sale' once all of the following criteria are met:
●
The asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and
customary for such sales;
●
The sale must be highly probable i.e.:
- management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
- an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
- the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
- the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as 'Held for Sale'; and
- the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant
changes made to it.
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their 'fair
value less costs to sell'. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the 'fair
value less costs to sell' falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract
conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as 'Held for
Sale' and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset's economic life is adjusted. The asset is derecognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
The revaluation surplus included in equity in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred
directly to the income and expenditure reserve when the asset is disposed of.
Donated assets
Donated property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The donation is
credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits
embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation is
deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet
been met.
The donated assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant and
equipment.
1.8 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from the rest of
Dorset HealthCare's business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only
where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and
where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where cost is at least £5,000.
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1.8 Intangible assets continued
Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research is not capitalised.
Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:
● the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale
or use;
● Dorset HealthCare intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
● Dorset HealthCare has the ability to sell or use the asset;
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the
presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the
asset;
● adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to Dorset HealthCare to complete the
development and sell or use the asset; and
● Dorset HealthCare can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during the development.
Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the
relevant item of Property, Plant and Equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware
e.g. application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create,
produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value (depreciated cost is considered equivalent to fair
value). Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except
where, and to the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in operating expenses, in
which case they are recognised in operating income. Decreases in asset values and impairments are
charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset concerned,
and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve
are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of 'other comprehensive income'.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or 'fair value less costs to
sell'.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
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1.9

Fixed asset investments
Dorset HealthCare is a Corporate Trustee of the Dorset HealthCare Charitable Fund. This gives
Dorset HealthCare control over this charity and a parent / subsidiary relationship is present. Normally
such a relationship would require the accounts of the subsidiary to be included in the parent body's
accounts. However, all NHS bodies, including Foundation Trusts, have received an exemption from
HM Treasury to allow NHS bodies not to consolidate their charity accounts until 1 April 2013
onwards. Dorset HealthCare has therefore not included its charity accounts with its own accounts.

1.10

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
measured using the First In, First Out method.

1.11

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.

1.12

Cash, bank and overdrafts
Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at the current values of these balances in Dorset
HealthCare's cash book. These balances exclude monies held in Dorset HealthCare's bank account
belonging to patients (see “third party assets" on Notes 1.20 and 24.2). Account balances are only set
off where a formal agreement has been made with the bank to do so. In all other cases overdrafts
are disclosed within creditors. Interest earned on bank accounts and interest charged on overdrafts
are recorded as, “Finance income” and “Finance expense - financial liabilities” respectively in the
periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in the periods to
which they relate.
The Dorset HealthCare does not have an overdrawn balance at the 31 March 2013.

1.13

Financial instruments and financial liabilities
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of nonfinancial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with Dorset
HealthCare's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial assets or financial liabilties in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance
leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described
in the next section under 'Leases'.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Dorset HealthCare becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from the assets have
expired or Dorset HealthCare has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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1.13 Financial instruments and financial liabilities continued
Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as 'Fair Value through Income and Expenditure', 'Loans and receivables'
or 'Available-for-sale financial assets'.
Financial liabilities are classified as 'Fair Value through Income and Expenditure' or as 'Other Financial
Liabilities'.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.
Dorset HealthCare's loans and receivables comprise: current investments, cash and cash equivalents, NHS
receivables, accrued income and other receivables.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs incurred, and
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for loans from the Department of
Health, which are carried at historic costs. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement
of Financial Position date, which are classified as non-current liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and
charged to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined from
quoted market prices/independent appraisals/valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis.
Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, Dorset HealthCare assesses whether any financial assets,
other than those held at 'fair value through income and expenditure' are impaired. Financial assets are
impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an
impact on the estimated future cashflows of the asset.
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1.14 Leases
Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS Foundation
Trust, the asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded.
The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of
the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest
rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a
finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding
liability and is charged to Finance expense - financial liabilities in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
Operating leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease
rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of the lease.
Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and
the classification for each is assessed separately.
1.15 Provisions
The NHS Foundation Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or
amount at the Statement of Financial Position date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated
risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM Treasury.
Provisions for pensions payable are discounted at 2.35% (2011/12 2.8%).
Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS Foundation
Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims.
Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability
remains with the NHS Foundation Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the
NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust is disclosed at Note 22 but is not recognised in the Dorset
HealthCare accounts.
The NHSLA also operated a third party liability scheme that Dorset HealthCare participates in. Liability is
limited to £10k per claim under this scheme.
Non-clinical risk pooling
Dorset HealthCare participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties
Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which Dorset HealthCare pays an annual contribution to the
NHS Litigation Authority and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to
operating expenses when the liability arises.
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1.16 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one
or more future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed
in Note 26 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 26 unless the probability of a transfer of
economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:
●

Possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

●

Present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

1.17 Public dividend capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over
liabilities at the time of the establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury has determined that
PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS Foundation Trust, is payable as public
dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the
average relevant net assets of the NHS Foundation Trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets
are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for (i) donated assets, (ii) net
cash balances held with the Government Banking Service and (iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or
payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of
PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the 'preaudit' version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to
net assets occur as a result of the audit of the annual accounts.
1.18 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax
does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of non-current assets. Where output tax
is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.19 Corporation Tax
Dorset HealthCare has no corporation tax liability at present.
A consultation on revised legislation for Corporation Tax as applicable to Foundation Trust Status is
awaited from HM Revenue and Customs.
1.20 Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the NHS Foundation Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed
in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the HM Treasury Financial
Reporting Manual. See Note 24.2.

Page A15
75

Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2012/13
1.21 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed
funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not
arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments.
They are divided into different categories, which govern the way each individual case is handled.
Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the Income and
Expenditure Account on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through
insurance cover had NHS Foundation Trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums
then being included as normal operating expenditure). Note 31 is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which is prepared on an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for future
losses.
1.22 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The following accounting standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) but have not
been adopted because they are not yet required to be adopted.
Annual Improvements 2011
This standard is potentially applicable to 2013/14 but has not yet been endorsed by the EU and therefore
HM Treasury Policy is not available for NHS Bodies to apply.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures
The disclosure requirement relating to ‘Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities’ in IFRS 7 relates
to paragraph 42 of IAS 32, which states that a financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, an entity currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Currently there are no recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities that fall within these
disclosure requirements. Therefore no impact is expected upon the Dorset HealthCare accounts.
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1.22 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted continued
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
This standard is to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This standard
has been issued in two parts to date. In November 2009 the first chapters were issued dealing with
classification and measurement of financial assets. In October 2010 the chapters around financial
liabilities were added. The IASB has not yet considered the scope of IFRS 9. However, the IASB
believes that the scope of IFRS 9 should be based on that of IAS 39 until it considers the scope more
generally in a later phase of the project to replace IAS 39.
Classification and measurement of financial assets
IFRS 9 reduced the number of classification categories and provided a clearer rationale for measuring
financial assets. It also applied a single impairment method to all financial assets not measured at fair
value and aligned the measurement attributes of financial assets with the way the entity manages its
financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. There is also guidance included for when
a part of a financial asset could be considered for derecognition. The derecognition principles should be
applied to a part of a financial asset only if that part contained no risks and rewards relating to the part not
being considered for derecognition.
The impact on financial liabilities relates to the issue of credit risk. The issue of credit risk does not arise
for most liabilities and would remain only in the context of financial liabilities designated under the fair
value option. The effects of changes in a liability's credit risk should be presented in other comprehensive
income rather than through profit or loss for the year unless such treatment would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss (in which case the entire fair value change is required to be
presented in profit or loss).
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
The financial assets of Dorset HealthCare are already aligned with the way Dorset HealthCare manages
its financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics. Therefore no impact is expected for the
application of IFRS 9 to financial assets. In addition, Dorset HealthCare does not have any financial
liabilities held at fair value so again, no impact is expected for the application of IFRS 9 to financial
liabilities.
IAS 12 Income Taxes
The IASB amended IAS 12 to address an issue that arises when entities apply the measurement principle
in IAS 12 to temporary differences relating to investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model in IAS 40 Investment Property. The IASB introduced an exception to the principle in IAS 12 that
arises when an entity adopts an accounting policy of remeasuring investment property at fair value. The
purpose of the exception is to reflect the entity's expectation of its recovery of the investment property in a
practical manner that involves little subjectivity.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare does not have any investment properties and therefore this is not expected to have
any impact.
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1.22 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted continued
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
This standard was issued in order to provide clarity on the application of the control concept in
circumstances in which a reporting entity controls another entity but holds less than a majority of the
voting rights of the entity, and in circumstances involving agency relationships.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare has one subsidiary which is the Charitable Fund. This will be consolidated from
2013/14 onwards as the exemption previously granted by HM Treasury expires on 31 March 2013.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
This standard establishes the principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement. It
supersedes IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers.
The standard requires a party to a joint arrangement to determine the type of joint arrangement in which it
is involved by assessing its rights and obligations arising from the arrangement and is to be applied by all
entities that are a party to a joint arrangement. This then determines the accounting treatment.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare is not party to any joint arrangements and will therefore not be affected by this.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The standard applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate or
an unconsolidated structured entity.
The standard requires an entity to disclose information that enables users of accounts to evaluate:
(a) the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in other entities; and
(b) the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust

Dorset HealthCare currently has two investments for £1 each in companies limited by guarantee. The
nature of the investment is such that there is no significant risk to Dorset HealthCare because of this
investment.
Dorset HealthCare will need to disclose information that enables users of the accounts to understand the
nature and extent of its interests in unconsolidated structured entities and to evaluate the nature of, and
changes in, the risks associated with the interests in the unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures made in note 11 are considered to be adequate to fulfil these obligations.
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1.22 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted continued
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The standard defines fair value and sets out in a single IFRS a framework for measuring fair value. It also
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
It is applicable to all IFRSs that require or permit fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value
measurements (and measurements, such as fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or
disclosures about those measurements), except in specified circumstances. The IFRS explains how to
measure fair value for financial reporting. It does not require fair value measurements in addition to those
already required or permitted by other IFRSs and is not intended to establish valuation standards or affect
valuation practices outside financial reporting.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust

Dorset HealthCare applies fair value when valuing the Assets Held For Sale. This concerns the valuation
at the lower of carrying value in the books and the fair value (less costs to sell). IFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. This is the basis that is adopted by Dorset HealthCare currently
and therefore no impact of the application of this standard is anticipated.
Disclosures are required as follows:
(a) For assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis in the statement of
financial position after initial recognition, the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop those
measurements.
(b) for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs, the effect of the
measurements on profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period.
It is anticipated that additional disclosures under (a) will be required in the accounts of Dorset HealthCare.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendment issued, but not yet adopted, is to improve how items of other income within
comprehensive income should be presented.
The main change resulting from the amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in
other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments).
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
The items in other comprehensive income for Dorset HealthCare have related to the donated assets
reserve and revaluations/ impairments of properties.
There was a change in accounting policy for donated assets in 2011/12 such that they are no longer
shown in other comprehensive income but are recognised in income as appropriate - see note 1.7.
Therefore this amendment will have no effect on this.
The revaluations/ impairments of properties will be shown together - as they are now because they are
potentially reclassification adjustments. An impairment will be reversed through the statement of
comprehensive income to the extent that it has been previously charged to the statement of
comprehensive income.
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1.22 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted continued
IAS 19 Employee Benefits
The amendment to this standard relates to the recognition and measurement of defined benefit pension
expense and termination benefits and to the disclosures for all employee benefits.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Although Dorset HealthCare has a defined benefit pension scheme, it is accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the allowed accounting treatment. Therefore no impact is
expected for Dorset HealthCare for these amendments.
For Dorset HealthCare, termination benefits do not have future service obligations and therefore no
change in the way that termination benefits are accounted for is expected.
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
This standard prescribes the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate accounts and applies when an entity elects, or
is required by local regulations, to present separate accounts.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare has one subsidiary which is the Charitable Fund. This will be consolidated from
2013/14 onwards as the exemption previously granted by HM Treasury expires on 31 March 2013.
IAS 28 Associates and joint ventures
This standard prescribes the accounting for investments in associates and sets out the requirements for
the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare does not have any investments in associates or joint ventures and therefore this
standard is not expected to have any effect on the accounts.
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
The amendment to this standard relates to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments clarify:
(a) the meaning of 'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off'; and
(b) that some gross settlement systems would be considered equivalent to net settlement if they eliminate
or result in insignificant credit and liquidity risk and process receivables and payables in a single
settlement process or cycle.
Effect on Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Dorset HealthCare does not offset financial assets and liabilities. No impact is expected by this
amendment on the accounts.
1.23 Accounting standards issued that have been adopted early
There are no accounting standards issued that have been adopted early.
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1.24 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of Dorset HealthCare's accounting policies, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Only key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed as follows:
Contingencies
Advice from the senior executive team is taken when reporting contingencies. In addition, advice from
relevant professionals external to the Trust is taken e.g. when determining whether to make a provision
for a liability or whether to disclose as a contingency. However, the nature of contingencies is such that
uncertainty is inherent.
Valuation of land and buildings and useful economic lives thereon

Professional valuations are obtained from the District Valuer. This includes an assessment of useful
economic lives for each building. We rely upon this professional advice. If there are errors included this
would affect the value of property, plant and equipment, revaluation reserve and possibly the surplus
stated in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year as reported in the accounts.
Critical accounting judgements in 2011/12
Merger accounting for the transfer of community health services
A view has been taken that the first three months in 2011/12 of the community health services were on a
break even basis. This is based on historical information from the Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) that these
have always been on a break even basis and that the first three months were budgeted to break even.
The underspend in the first three months was treated as deferred income and the community health
services broke even due to this.
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2.1 Operating Income from continuing operations
Income from Activities

2012/13

2011/12

£000

£000

Total income from activities

217,497

205,582

Total income from activities

217,497

205,582

430
2,136

174
1,854

0

0

0

0

11

11

73

0

22

0

0
4,640
1,911
0
2
0
165
0
0

0
4,054
2,237
178
37
8
204
0
0

0

0

9,390

8,757

226,887

214,339

Other Operating Income
Research and development
Education and training
Received from NHS charities: Receipt of grants/donations for capital
acquisitions - Donation
Received from NHS charities: Receipt of grants/donations for capital
acquisitions - Grant
Received from NHS charities: Other charitable and other
contributions to expenditure
Received from other bodies: Receipt of grants/donations for capital
acquisitions - Donation
Received from other bodies: Receipt of grants/donations for capital
acquisitions - Grant
Received from other bodies: Other charitable and other
contributions to expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other
Profit on disposal of land and buildings
Profit on disposal of other tangible non-current assets
Reversal of impairments of property, plant & equipment
Rental revenue from operating leases - minimum lease receipts
Rental revenue from operating leases - contingent rent
Rental revenue from operating leases - other
Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on gross basis
Total other operating income
Total operating income
2.2 Private patient income
The statutory limitation on private patient income in section 44 of the 2006 Act was repealed with
effect from 1 October 2012 by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The accounts disclosures that
were provided previously are no longer required.
2.3 Operating lease income
Operating Lease Income
Rental revenue from operating leases - minimum lease receipts
Rental revenue from operating leases - contingent rent
Rental revenue from operating leases - other
Total
Future minimum lease payments due on leases of Buildings
expiring:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
Total

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

165
165

204
204

-

-

0

2
2
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2.4 Operating Income from continuing operations
Income from Activities

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
Strategic Health Authorities
Primary Care Trusts
Local Authorities
Department of Health - grants
Department of Health - other
NHS Other
Non NHS:
- Private patients
- Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
NHS injury scheme
Non NHS: Other

2,777
26
210,735
1,208
-

4,438
55
17
196,255
1,348
-

21
2,730

25
3,444

Total income from activities

217,497

205,582

Other Operating Income

2012/13

2011/12

£000

£000

430
2,136

174
1,854

Research and development
Education and training
Received from NHS charities: Receipt of grants/donations for
capital acquisitions - Donation
Received from NHS charities: Receipt of grants/donations for
capital acquisitions - Grant
Received from NHS charities: Other charitable and other
contributions to expenditure
Received from other bodies: Receipt of grants/donations for
capital acquisitions - Donation
Received from other bodies: Receipt of grants/donations for
capital acquisitions - Grant
Received from other bodies: Other charitable and other
contributions to expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Profit on disposal of land and buildings
Profit on disposal of other tangible non-current assets
Other
Reversal of impairments of property, plant & equipment
Rental revenue from operating leases - minimum lease
receipts
Rental revenue from operating leases - contingent rent
Rental revenue from operating leases - other
Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on gross
basis

Analysis of Other Operating Income: Other
Car parking
Estates recharges
Pharmacy sales
Staff accommodation rentals
Catering
Property rentals
Other

-

-

-

11

11

73

-

22

-

4,640
0
2
1,911
-

4,054
178
37
2,237
8

165
-

204
-

-

-

9,390

8,757

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

-

23

-

11

31
194
49
1,614

22
31
198
34
1,941

1,911

2,237

Dorset HealthCare's mandatory services are the provision of healthcare services as set out
within its Terms of Authorisation Schedule 2. Dorset HealthCare's income from mandatory
services was £217,476k (2011/12 £205,557k) and from non-mandatory services £9,411k
(2011/12 £8,782k).
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2.5 Segmental Analysis
For 2012/13 Dorset HealthCare had seven reportable segments: Mental Health Inpatients, Mental Health Community Services, Community Hospitals, Community Services, Prisons, Commissioned Care and Other. The
amounts shown below are produced on a full absorption basis where appropriate items are recharged including overheads.
Mental Health Inpatients are in-patient mental health units that provide services at an occupied bed day point of delivery.
Mental Health Community Services are mental health out-patients and community based interventions. It also includes specialist team elements e.g. crisis resolution.

Community Hospitals are our eleven community hospitals which provide many services including elderly care inpatients, rehabilitation, outpatient appointments, theatre, therapy services, radiology and minor injury services.
Community Services are our pan Dorset Community Services which include many interventions including district nursing, palliative care, intermediate care services and community rehabilitation teams.
Prisons Services include services provided to the four Dorset prisons such as primary care GP & nurse led clinics including mental health, integrated drug treatment services, dental, ophthalmic, podiatry, sexual health &
physiotherapy services.
Commissioned care relates to specialist patient services contracted out to other bodies.
Other is the remainder of the activities which in themselves are not sufficiently large to constitute a segment in their own right.

The segments are based on Dorset HealthCare's summarised points of delivery. This information is reported monthly to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is the Chief Executive Officer.

Year ended 31 March 2013
Revenues from external customers
Reportable segment suplus
Impairments included above:

Mental
Health
Inpatients
£000

Mental Health
Community
Services
£000

Community
Hospitals
£000

Community
Services
£000

Prisons
£000

42,216

61,900

37,688

77,796

6,745

1,421

3,982

1,601

4,645

133

385

8

5

449

1

Commissioned Care

Other

483
1
1

59

Total
226,887

-

11,783

-

849

Segmental Analysis - reconciliation of segments to statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Total revenues for reportable segments
Other revenues - IFRS adjustments
Entity's revenues

£000
226,887
226,887

Surplus
Total surplus for reportable segments
Other profit or loss
Unallocated amounts:
- IFRS adjustments
Income before corporation tax expense

11,783
11,783
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2.5 Segmental Analysis continued
Dorset HealthCare NHS Foundation Trust had four reportable segments in 2010/11: Hospital Based Care, Community Based Care, Commissioned Care and Other. On 1 July 2011 the community health services of NHS
Dorset and NHS Bournemouth & Poole merged with Dorset HealthCare. Following this the reportable segments were amended. Under merger accounting a full year's activity for Community Health Services is shown in the
accounts of Dorset HealthCare.
For 2011/12 Dorset HealthCare had seven reportable segments: Mental Health Inpatients, Mental Health Community Services, Community Hospitals, Community Services, Prisons, Commissioned Care and Other. The
amounts shown below are produced on a full absorption basis where appropriate items are recharged including overheads.
Mental Health Inpatients are in-patient mental health units that provide services at an occupied bed day point of delivery.
Mental Health Community Services are mental health out-patients and community based interventions. It also includes specialist team elements e.g. crisis resolution.

Community Hospitals are our eleven community hospitals which provide many services including elderly care inpatients, rehabilitation, outpatient appointments, theatre, therapy services, radiology and minor injury services.
Community Services are our pan Dorset Community Services which include many interventions including district nursing, palliative care, intermediate care services and community rehabilitation teams.
Prisons Services include services provided to the four Dorset prisons such as primary care GP & nurse led clinics including mental health, integrated drug treatment services, dental, ophthalmic, podiatry, sexual health &
physiotherapy services.
Commissioned care relates to specialist patient services contracted out to other bodies.
Other is the remainder of the activities which in themselves are not sufficiently large to constitute a segment in their own right.
The segments are based on Dorset HealthCare's summarised points of delivery. This information is reported monthly to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is the Chief Executive Officer.

Year ended 31 March 2012
Revenues from external customers
Reportable segment suplus
Reversal of impairments included above:
Impairments included above:

Mental
Health
Inpatients
£000

Mental Health
Community
Services
£000

Community
Hospitals
£000

Community
Services
£000

Prisons
£000

Commissioned Care

Other

Total

37,708

60,415

45,550

63,292

5,445

1,291

638

214,339

2,314

2,914

631

4,644

165

(410)

114

10,372

8
56

-

-

-

-

-

-

8

389

-

-

-

-

-

445

Segmental Analysis - reconciliation of segments to statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Total revenues for reportable segments
Other revenues - IFRS adjustments
Entity's revenues

£000
214,339
214,339

Surplus
Total surplus for reportable segments
Other profit or loss
Unallocated amounts:
- IFRS adjustments
Income before corporation tax expense

10,372
10,372
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3. Operating Expenses from continuing operations
3.1 Operating expenses

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from PCTs
Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Employee Expenses - Executive Directors
Employee Expenses - Non-Executive Directors
Employee Expenses - Staff
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drug costs)
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Research and development - (Not included in employee expenses)
Research and development - (Included in employee expenses)
Transport
Premises
Increase / (decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables
Increase in other provisions
Inventories written down (net, including inventory drugs)
Drug costs (non inventory drugs only)
Inventories consumed (excluding drugs)
Drugs Inventories consumed
Rentals under operating leases - minimum lease payments
Rentals under operating leases - contingent rent
Rentals under operating leases - sublease payments
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Impairments of assets held for sale
Audit fees:
audit services - statutory audit
audit services - regulatory reporting
other auditor remuneration
Clinical negligence
Loss on disposal of investments
Loss on disposal of intangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of land and buildings
Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale
Legal fees
Consultancy costs
Training, courses and conferences
Patient travel
Car parking & Security
Redundancy - (Not included in employee expenses)
Redundancy - (Included in employee expenses)
Early retirements - (Not included in employee expenses)
Early retirements - (Included in employee expenses)
Hospitality
Publishing
Insurance
Other services
Grossing up consortium arrangements
Losses, ex gratia & special payments- (Not included in employee
expenses)

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

2,768
370
959
137
155,786
8,126
4,815
5,189
689
9,507
82
1,707
1,413
7,755
2,350
15
410
439

2,829
116
1,435
942
131
151,682
8,071
4,462
4,969
473
7,422
10
1,555
1,737
6,683
2,200
13
389
56

91
104
364
539
26
201
1,117
858
1,121
182
2,449
59
66
2,910
-

127
338
115
103
412
853
1,039
114
(515)
(8)
57
139
2,708
-

182

365

360

940

213,146

201,962

213,146
-

201,962
-

Losses, ex gratia & special payments- (Included in employee expenses)
Other

Of Which
Related to Continuing Operations
Related to Discontinued Operations
3.2 Limitations of auditors' liability

Dorset HealthCare's contract with its auditor has a specified limitation of the auditors' liability of £5m
(2011/12 £5m).
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3.3 Arrangements containing an operating lease

Leases entered into by Dorset HealthCare are generally for rent of equipment or premises. There are no special conditions attached to the leases.
2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Less sublease payments received

7,755
-

6,683
-

Total

7,755

6,683

2012/13
£000

2012/13
£000
Plant &
Machinery

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Other

54
39
93

3.4 Arrangements containing an operating lease

Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year
- later than one year and not later than five years
- later than five years

Buildings
247
78
-

-

325

Total of future minimum sublease lease
payments to be received at the statement of
financial position dates
3.5 Other audit remuneration

2011/12
£000

Buildings

2011/12
£000
Plant &
Machinery

743
723
-

214
157
-

240
172
-

209
175
1

1,466

371

412

385

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

-

-

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Other

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor is analysed as follows:
1. The auditing of accounts of any associate of the Trust
2. Audit-related assurance services
3. Taxation compliance services
4. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above;
5. internal audit services (only those payable to the external auditor)
6. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5
7. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above
8. All other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above

104

-

104

-

4. Employee Expenses and Numbers
4.1 Employee Expenses
Salaries and wages
Social Security Costs
Pension costs - defined contribution plans
Employers contributions to NHS Pensions
Pension Costs - other contributions
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Agency/contract staff
Total Staff Costs
of which
Costs capitalised as part of assets

2012/13
£000
Total
126,920
8,594

2012/13
£000
Permanent
119,507
8,087

2012/13
£000
Other
7,413
507

2011/12
£000
Total
123,352
9,192

2011/12
£000
Permanent
116,861
8,740

2011/12
£000
Other
6,491
452

15,665
5,601

15,149
-

516
5,601

15,485
(523)
4,820

15,032
(523)
-

453
4,820

156,780

142,743

14,037

152,326

140,110

12,216

35

35

225

225

155,786
959
156,745

141,749
959
142,708

151,682
942
(515)
(8)
152,101

139,466
942
(515)
(8)
139,885

-

-

Analysed into Operating Expenditure (7.Op. Exp)
Employee Expenses - Staff
Employee Expenses - Executive directors
Research & development
Redundancy
Early retirements
Special Payments
Total Employee benefits excl. capitalised costs

14,037
14,037

12,216
12,216

The employer pension contributions above are Dorset HealthCare's total employer pension contributions.
See also Note 1.5 for more information on pension costs.
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4.2 Average number of employees
(whole time equivalent basis)
Medical and dental
Ambulance staff
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Bank and agency staff
Total average numbers
of which
Number of Employees (WTE) engaged on capital
projects

2012/13
Number
Total
111
1
830
311
2,109
13
595
239

2012/13
Number
Permanent
111
1
830
311
2,109
13
595
-

2012/13
Number
Other
239

2011/12
Number
Total
111
858
359
2,051
2
599
206

2011/12
Number
Permanent
111
858
359
2,051
2
599
0

2011/12
Number
Other
206

4,209

3,970

239

4,186

3,980

206

1

1

10

10

-

-

4.3 Employee benefits
Other than the employee expenses shown in note 4.1 Dorset HealthCare has no other employee benefits in 2012/13 or 2011/12.
4.4 Early retirements due to ill-health
During 2012/13, there were 9 (2 in 2011/12) early retirements from the NHS Foundation Trust on the grounds of ill-health. The estimated additional
pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £380k (£225k in 2011/12) as notified by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.
The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.
4.5 Directors' remuneration and other benefits

Directors' remuneration
Gains on the exercise of share options
Long term incentive schemes
Employer pension contributions

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

909
100
1,009

993
101
1,094

The number of directors to whom benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes is 6 (2011/12: 9).
No director has received any advance or benefited from any guarantee in their favour during either the current or the prior year.
The highest paid director received remuneration of £209k (2011/12 £209k) and employer pension contributions were paid on their behalf of £27k
(2011/12 £27k).
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4.6 Exit packages
A charge of £2,449k (2011/12 £515k credit) has been recognised in the accounts in exit packages during
2012/13. In 2011/12 there was a credit (release) of £619k relating to the unwinding of the 2010/11
provisions, which are excluded in the analysis below leaving a charge of £104k for 2011/12. The exit
packages have most significantly been incurred in respect of the 2012/13 restructuring following the
acquisition of Community Health Services during 2011/12. Details of the number of exit packages by cost
band are provided in the table below.

Exit Package Cost Band
<£10,000
£10,001 - £25,000
£25,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
£200,001 - £250,000
Total Number of Exit
Packages by Type
Total Resource Cost £'000

Number of Compulsory Number of Other
Total Number of Exit
Redundancies
Departures Agreed Packages by Cost Band
2012/13
2011/12
2012/13
2011/12 2012/13
2011/12
7
2
19
4
26
6
7
1
21
1
28
2
6
1
20
26
1
5
1
6
3
3
1
1
29
1,278

4
76

61
1,171

5
28

90
2,449

9
104

4.7 Pension Costs
Pension Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the
benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at
www.nhsba.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England
and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to
the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the accounts do not differ materially from those
that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the ARM requires that "the
period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years."
An outline of these follows:
a) Accounting Valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the
reporting period. Actuarial assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal valuations
using updated membership data and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting
purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2013, is based on the valuation data as 31
March 2012, updated to 31 March 2013 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking
this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant ARM interpretations, and the
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which
forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually.
These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The
Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the
scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year
ending 31 March 2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending
31 March 2008. However, formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended
by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while consideration is given to recent changes to public
service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service
pension provision due in 2015.
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4.7 Pension Costs continued
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation continued
The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for
Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and
appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.
The next formal valuation to be used for funding pruposes will be carried out as at March 2012 and will be
used to inform the contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.
c) Scheme provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative
guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that
must be met before these benefits can be obtained:
The scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section
and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008
section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme
Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable
service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional
tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as
"pension commutation".
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and
are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar
year. From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC's run
by the Scheme's approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC)
providers.
Dorset HealthCare does not have employees who are members of other schemes.
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5.1 Finance income

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Interest on bank accounts

121

111

Total

121

111

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

97

17

107
5
-

118

112

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

Abandonment of assets in course of construction
Changes in market price
Reversals of impairments

3,244
-

3,309
(8)

Total impairments

3,244

3,301

5.2 Finance costs - interest expense
Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Commercial loans
Finance leases
Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Other
Total

6.1 Impairment of assets (PPE & intangibles)

-

4

6.2 Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Profit/(loss) on the disposal of non-current assets is made up as follows:

Profit on disposal of land and buildings
(Loss) on disposal of land and buildings
Profits on disposal of other non-current assets
(Loss) on disposal of other non-current assets

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

(539)
2
(26)

178
37
(115)

(563)

100

The loss on disposal of land and buildings in 2012/13 relates to the demolition of a building at a
protected site (site used for provision of mandatory services) as part of the modernisation plan for that
site. The building is being replaced by a modern building.
The other non-current assets disposed in 2012/13 are in respect of plant and machinery, information
technology and furniture and fittings which are unprotected assets.
The other non-current assets disposed in 2011/12 are in respect of properties, vehicles, plant and
machinery, information technology and furniture and fittings which are unprotected assets.
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7.1 Intangible assets 2012/13

Software
licences
£000

£000

Gross cost at 1 April 2012
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Disposals
Gross cost at 31 March 2013

207
(14)
193

207
(14)
193

Amortisation at 1 April 2012
Prior period adjustments
Amortisation at 1 April 2012 restated
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals
Amortisation at 31 March 2013

170
170
15
(14)
171

170
170
15
(14)
171

Net book value
NBV - Purchased at 1 April 2012
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2012
NBV - Total at 1 April 2012

-

NBV - Purchased at 31 March 2013
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2013
NBV - Total at 31 March 2013

-
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37
22
22

Total

-

-

37
37
22
22
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7.2 Intangible assets 2011/12

Software
licences
£000

£000

Gross cost at 1 April 2011 as previously stated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Disposals
Gross cost at 31 March 2012

205
2
207

205
2
207

Amortisation at 1 April 2011 as previously stated
Prior period adjustments
Amortisation at 1 April 2011 as restated
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals
Amortisation at 31 March 2012

157
157
13
170

157
157
13
170

Net book value
NBV - Purchased at 1 April 2011
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2011
NBV - Total at 1 April 2011

-

NBV - Purchased at 31 March 2012
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2012
NBV - Total at 31 March 2012

-

48
48
37
37

Total

-

-

48
48
37
37

7.3 Intangible assets acquired by government grant
Dorset HealthCare had no intangible assets acquired by government grant in either
2012/13 or 2011/12.
7.4 Economic life of intangible assets
The economic life of purchased software is between 5 and 7 years.
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8. Property, plant and equipment
8.1

Property, plant and equipment 2012/13
Land

Valuation/Gross Cost at 1 April 2012
Additions - purchased
Additions - leased
Additions - donated
Additions - government granted
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Transfers to/from assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups
Disposals
Valuation/Gross Cost at 31 March 2013

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

25,187
105

33,760
1,523

676

4,249
3,652

1,157
260

-

-

(1,443)

(952)

310

914
(1,329)

-

200

-

24,359

-

25
(575)
33,366

-

120
1,842
410

-

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2012 as previously stated
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluations

-

(2,171)

Transfers to/from assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2013

-

(24)
177

Net book value
NBV - Owned at 1 April 2012
NBV - Finance Lease at 1 April 2012
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2012
NBV Total at 1 April 2012
NBV - Owned at 31 March 2013
NBV - Finance Lease at 31 March 2013
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2013
NBV Total at 31 March 2013

24,837
350

-

25,187
24,009
350

-

24,359

-

-

-

-

(914)

-

676

-

-

-

32,001
506
682
33,189

-

-

6,987
418

39

(39)

32,088
785
767
33,640

Assets under
construction
and POA

-

418

676

3,831

676

3,831

676

6,569

676

6,569

-

-

Plant and
machinery

-

-

73

-

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture &
fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

485
34

2,837
398

516
76

68,867
6,048

-

22

-

-

-

(256)
1,234

(54)
487

(1,048)
2,187

(142)
450

735
108

314
52

2,071
269

378
40

-

(225)
618

339
58
25
422
499
30
87
616

-

(53)
313

171

-

171
154

-

20
174

-

-

(1,047)
1,293

737

-

29
766
873

-

21
894

-

Total

-

-

95

(2,395)

-

(1,019)
225
(2,075)
69,746
4,036
2,350
410

-

(2,210)

-

(140)
278

(1,489)
3,097

138

62,817
1,193
821
64,831

-

138
172

-

172

64,953
886
810
66,649
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8. Property, plant and equipment Continued
8.1

Property, plant and equipment 2012/13

Land, buildings excluding dwellings, and dwellings have been revalued as at 31 March 2013 using the valuation as at 28 February 2013 as an approximation to the year end value for this. This
valuation was carried out by the District Valuers (independent, professionally qualified valuers) from the Valuation Office Agency, which is an executive agency of HM Revenue and Customs.
The valuations were carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors' Appraisal and Valuation Standards, in so far as these terms are consistent with the currently
applicable and agreed requirements of HM Treasury and the Foundation Trust Regulator, Monitor. In carrying out these valuations Modern Equivalent Asset basis was used. In arriving at the
valuation, the District Valuer considered alternative sites and values for alternative sites were used where appropriate.
The donated assets in the year are disclosed at fair value and there are no restrictions on use.
8.2 Analysis of Property, plant and equipment 31 March 2013

NBV - Protected assets at 31 March 2013
NBV - Unprotected assets at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
POA
£000

£000

£000

£000

20,220
4,139
24,359

27,187
6,002
33,189

472
204
676

-

Plant and
machinery

£000

-

Transport
equipment

£000

-

Information
technology

£000

-

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000

£000

47,879
18,770
66,649

-

6,569
6,569

616
616

174
174

894
894

172
172

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
POA

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture &
fittings

£000

8.3 NBV of Property, plant and equipment in the Revaluation Reserve as at 31 March 2013
Land

As at 1 April 2012
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2013

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

£000

£000

£000

16,172
(1,732)
14,440

10,821
489
11,310

381
39
420
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£000

17
(17)

-

£000

-

£000

-

£000

-

Total

£000

27,391
(1,221)
26,170
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8. Property, plant and equipment
8.4

Property, plant and equipment 2011/12
Land

Valuation/Gross Cost at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Additions - leased
Additions - donated
Additions - government granted
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Transfers to/from assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups
Disposals
Valuation/Gross Cost at 31 March 2012

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

29,607

32,555
2,396

790

3,350
899

1,214
167

635
36

3,356
186

627
4

72,134
3,688

-

(1,890)

-

(2,530)

-

-

(820)

-

1,475
(1,846)

-

25,187

33,760

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluations

-

106
1,667
433
(8)

Transfers to/from assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2012

-

Net book value
NBV - Owned at 1 April 2011
NBV - Finance Lease at 1 April 2011
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2011
NBV Total at 1 April 2011
NBV - Owned at 31 March 2012
NBV - Finance Lease at 31 March 2012
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2012
NBV Total at 31 March 2012

29,257
350

-

29,607
24,837
350

-

25,187

-

(1,985)

-

-

-

-

-

(114)

676

44
(44)

-

-

-

31,116
510
823
32,449

-

32,088
785
767
33,640

-

(93)
120

Assets under
construction
and POA

4,249
418

-

418

790

2,932

790

2,932

676

3,831

676

3,831

-

-

Plant and
machinery

-

-

25

-

Transport
equipment

-

Information
technology

-

Furniture &
fittings

-

(249)
1,157

(186)
485

(705)
2,837

(115)
516

830
102

441
48

2,460
273

425
66

-

(197)
735

351
33

-

384
339
58
25
422

-

(175)
314

189

-

5
194
171

-

171

-

(662)
2,071

849

-

47
896
737

-

29
766

-

(113)
378

202

-

202
138

-

138

Total

25
(2,824)

1,475
(4,376)
(1,255)
68,867
4,680
2,200
389
(8)

-

(1,985)
(93)
(1,147)
4,036

65,686
893
875
67,454
62,817
1,193
821
64,831
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8. Property, plant and equipment Continued
8.4 Property, plant and equipment 2011/12
Land, buildings excluding dwellings, and dwellings have been revalued as at 31 March 2012 using the valuation as at 29 February 2012 as an approximation to the year end value
for this. This valuation was carried out by the District Valuers (independent, professionally qualified valuers) from the Valuation Office Agency, which is an executive agency of HM
Revenue and Customs. The valuations were carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors' Appraisal and Valuation Standards, in so far as these terms
are consistent with the currently applicable and agreed requirements of HM Treasury and the Foundation Trust Regulator, Monitor. In carrying out these valuations Modern
Equivalent Asset basis was used. In arriving at the valuation, the District Valuer considered alternative sites and values for alternative sites were used where appropriate.
8.4a Note of correction to opening balances in 2011/12
In order to correctly reflect the opening cost and depreciation balances for Buildings excluding dwellings, Plant and Machinery, Transport equipment, Information technology and
Furniture and Fittings, disposals have been entered in 2010/11 totalling £1,550k. These represent assets that were fully written down but the disposal was not correctly reflected in
the accounts in prior years. This has not been treated as a prior period adjustment because there is not a material impact on the net book value.
8.5 Analysis of Property, plant and equipment 31 March 2012
Land

NBV - Protected assets at 31 March 2012
NBV - Unprotected assets at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
and POA

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

21,691
3,496

28,258
5,382

471
205

3,831

-

-

-

-

-

25,187

33,640

676

3,831

422

171

766

138

50,420
14,411

422

171

766

138

64,831

Plant and
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

8.6 NBV of Property, plant and equipment in the Revaluation Reserve as at 31 March 2012
Land

As at 1 April 2011
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2012

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

£000

£000

£000

19,454
(3,282)
16,172

8,067
2,754
10,821

374
7
381

Assets under
construction
and POA
£000

-

£000

62
(45)
17

£000

-

£000

-

£000

-

£000

27,957
(566)
27,391

8.7 Dorset HealthCare had no Property, plant and equipment held at open market value at 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012.
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9. Assets held under finance lease
9.1 Net book value of assets held under finance leases at the statement of financial
position date
Buildings
excluding
Plant &
Total
Land
dwellings
Machinery
£000
£000
£000
£000
Net Book Value at 31 March 2013
Net Book Value at 31 March 2012

886
1,193

350
350

506
785

30
58

9.2 The total amount of depreciation charged to the income and expenditure account in
respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Total
£000
Depreciation 2013
Depreciation 2012

45
71
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Land
£000
-

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000

Plant &
Machinery
£000

35
52

10
19
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10 Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal
groups 2012/13

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal
groups at 1 April 2012
Plus assets classified as available for sale in the year
Less assets sold in the year
Less Impairment of assets held for sale
Plus Reversal of impairment of assets held for sale
Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for
reasons other than disposal by sale
NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in
disposal groups at 31 March 2013

Total

Intangible
assets

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Financial
Investments

Other

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,890
(439)
-

-

3,890
(439)
-

-

-

(225)

-

(225)

-

-

3,226

-

3,226

-

-

The non-current assets held for sale are properties, encompassing land and building excluding dwellings. Following a review of Dorset HealthCare's
properties, the properties included in assets held for sale were considered to be surplus to requirements. These properties are non-protected and
their disposal does not impact upon Dorset HealthCare's mandatory services.
10.1 Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal
groups 2011/12
NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal
groups at 1 April 2011
Plus assets classified as available for sale in the year
Less assets sold in the year
Less Impairment of assets held for sale
Plus Reversal of impairment of assets held for sale
Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for
reasons other than disposal by sale
NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in
disposal groups at 31 March 2012

Total

Intangible
assets

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Financial
Investments

Other

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,152
4,283
(1,449)
(96)
-

-

1,152
4,283
(1,449)
(96)
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,890

-

3,890

10.2 Liabilities in disposal groups
There were no liabilities in disposal groups in either 2012/13 or in 2011/12.
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11. Investments
Dorset HealthCare has a fixed asset investment of £1 in Ansbury Limited, a company
limited by guarantee and registered in England. Dorset HealthCare is one of 17
members. There is no requirement to consolidate the financial results of this company in
Dorset HealthCare's accounts.
Dorset HealthCare also has a fixed asset investment of £1 in New Wave Integrated Care
Limited, a company limited by guarantee and registered in England. Dorset HealthCare
is one of 4 members. The treatment of the investment has been reviewed and given that
there is no expected flow of future economic benefit, it is not appropriate to treat this
investment as an associate.
Dorset HealthCare Charitable Fund is considered to be a subsidiary of Dorset
HealthCare. Whilst Dorset HealthCare does not have any investment in the Charitable
fund, the Trustees of the Charitable Fund are all members of Dorset HealthCare's Board.
Due to a dispensation from H M Treasury from the application of IAS 27 (revised) these
accounts are not consolidated within Dorset HealthCare's accounts.
The principal place of business of the Charitable fund and Dorset HealthCare is 11
Shelley Road, Boscombe, Dorset, BH1 4JQ.
12 Disclosure of aggregate amounts for assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
operations
There were no jointly controlled operations in either 2012/13 or in 2011/12.
13. Inventories
13.1 Inventories

Drugs
Consumables
Other

13.2 Inventories recognised in expenses
Inventories recognised as an expense in the year
Write-down of inventories (including losses)
Reversal of write-downs that reduced the expense
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31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

117
83
486

120
54
520

686

694

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

2,349
-

2,216
62
-

2,349

2,278
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14.1 Trade receivables and other receivables
Current

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

3,605
2
(79)
1,226
589
114
268
1,257

2,450
1
(37)
1,035
76
279
1,799

6,982

5,603

20

20

20

20

7,002

5,623

2012/13
£000

2011/12
£000

37
97
(40)
(15)

29
22
(2)
(12)

79

37

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

NHS receivables - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Revenue
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments (Non-PFI)
Accrued Income
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables
Total current trade and other receivables
Non-Current
Other receivables with related parties
Total non current trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables

14.2 Provision for impairment of receivables

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March

14.3 Analysis of impaired receivables
Ageing of impaired receivables:
In 0 to 30 days
In 30 to 60 days
In 60 to 90 days
In 90 to 180 days
In over 180 days

-

TOTAL

22
57

2
1
4
5
25

79

37

The factors considered when receivables are impaired include whether there is an ongoing
relationship with the debtor, the evidence to support a claim and whether the debtor is disputing a
debt.

Ageing of non impaired receivables past their due date:
In 0 to 30 days
In 30 to 60 days
In 60 to 90 days
In 90 to 180 days
In over 180 days

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

1504
82
122
56
76

1357
255
314
269
45

1,840

2,240

TOTAL
14.4 Finance lease receivables
There are no finance lease receivables in either 2012/13 or in 2011/12.
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15. Other assets
Dorset HealthCare has no other assets to disclose at 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012.
16 Trade and other payables
31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

NHS payables - revenue
Amounts due to other related parties - revenue
Other trade payables - capital
Other trade payables - revenue
Social Security costs
Other taxes payable
Other payables
Accruals
PDC dividend payable
Total current trade and other payables

1,358
1,250
898
3,047
4,703
4,910
16,166

1,878
732
1,821
2,848
3,662
3,908
64
14,913

Total trade and other payables

16,166

14,913

Current

16.1 Trade and other payables - early retirements detail included in NHS payables at 31 March
above:
Dorset HealthCare has no early retirement payables included in NHS payables above as at 31 March
2013 or 31 March 2012.
17. Other liabilities
There are no other liabilities to disclose as at 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012.
18.1 Borrowings
Current
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Obligations under finance leases
Total current borrowings
Non-current
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Obligations under finance leases
Total other non current liabilities

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

181
11
192

181
12
193

1,443
20
1,463

1,623
45
1,668
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18.2 Borrowings
Payments of loan principal falling due:
within one year
between one to two years
between two and five years
after five years

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

181
181
541
721

181
181
541
901

1,624

1,804

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

903
721

903
901

1,624

1,804

TOTAL
Of which
wholly repayable within five years
wholly repayable after five years, by instalments
TOTAL
19 Prudential borrowing limit (PBL)

The Foundation Trust is required to comply and remain within a prudential borrowing limit. This limit is made up of
two elements:
(a) the maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing. This is set by reference to the four ratio tests set out
in the Prudential Borrowing Code for NHS foundation trusts. The financial risk rating set under Monitor's
Compliance Framework determines one of the ratios and therefore can impact on the long term borrowing limit;
(b) the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.
Dorset HealthCare has a maximum cumulative long-term borrowing limit of £21.9 million in 2012/13 (£24.9 million
in 2011/12), from which Dorset HealthCare actually borrowed a net £1.655 million in 2012/13 (£1.861 million in
2011/12) towards the funding of a new premises commissioned in 2006/07 and for Hire Purchase as shown in
note 20.
The Foundation Trust has £14.5 million of approved working capital facility in 2012/13 (£14.5 million in 2011/12)
which has not been called upon in 2012/13 or 2011/12.
Further information on the Prudential Borrowing Code and Compliance Framework may be found on the website of
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

21,900
14,500
14,500
36,400

24,900
14,500
14,500
39,400

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

Borrowing (as defined in the Prudential
Borrowing Code) at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year - long term

1,861
(206)

2,012
(151)

Long term borrowing at 31 March

1,655

1,861

31 March 2013
£000

31 March 2012
£000

Total long term borrowing limit set by Monitor
Working capital facility agreed by Monitor
Actual (contracted) working capital facility
TOTAL PRUDENTIAL BORROWING LIMIT

Working capital borrowing at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year - working capital

-

-

Working capital borrowing at 31 March

-

-
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19 Prudential borrowing limit (PBL) continued
Ratio Analysis upon which the borrowing limits (PBLs) are based
Actual Ratios
2012/13

Approved
PBL ratios
2012/13

Actual Ratios
2011/12

Approved
PBL ratios
2011/12

Minimum dividend cover

7.25 times

> 1 time

6.25 times

> 1 time

Minimum interest cover

118 times

> 3 times

101 times

> 3 times

Minimum debt service cover

43 times

> 2 times

39 times

> 2 times

0.15%

< 2.5%

0.15%

< 2.5%

Financial Ratio

Maximum debt service to revenue
20 Finance lease obligations
Amounts payable under finance leases:

Minimum lease payments
31 March 2013
£000
13
23
(5)

31 March 2012
£000
16
51
(10)

Net lease liabilities

31

57

Net lease liabilities
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

11
20

12
45

Gross lease liabilities
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
Less future finance charges

-

-

31

57

Due to the relatively short term nature of the finance leases, the minimum lease payments is the
same as the present value of the minimum lease payments.
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21. PFI obligations (on Statement of Financial Position)
Dorset HealthCare does not have any PFI schemes in either 2012/13 or in 2011/12.
22. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Pensions former
directors
£000
At 1 April 2012
Prior period adjustments
At 1 April 2012 as restated
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2013

Pensions other staff
£000

Other legal
claims
£000

Equal Pay
£000

Other
£000

Total
£000

-

225
225
13
29
(21)
6

100
100
0
100
(11)
(38)
-

237
237
0
0
(98)
(139)
-

1,898
1,898
39
1,259
(80)
(15)
17

2,460
2,460
52
1,388
(210)
(192)
23

-

252

151

-

3,118

3,521

151

-

2,485

2,645

Expected timing of cashflows:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five
years;
- later than five years

-

9

-

35
208

-

-

102
531

137
739

TOTAL

-

252

151

-

3,118

3,521

The provision under "Other Legal claims" is in respect of Dorset HealthCare's net liability for claims made against Dorset HealthCare under the Liability to
Third Parties Scheme as administered on Dorset HealthCare's behalf by the NHS Litigation Authority, and relates to 16 outstanding cases (2011/12 10
cases).
An amount of £659k (2011/12 £603k) is included under "Other" for the provision of Injury benefit as advised by NHS Business Services Authority Pensions Division and has been discounted at 2.35% (2011/12 2.8%). This will be utilised over the lifetime of the claimants.
Other provisions also include claims arising from Employment Tribunals 2012/13 £79k (2011/12 £78k), impact of changes to UK employment law 2012/13
£12k (2011/12 £13k), other employments issues £410k (2011/12 £10k), dilapidations to property £774k (2011/12 £10k) and other contractual obligations
£1,184k (2011/12 £1,184k).
A provision of £135k is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2013 (£485k at 31 March 2012) in respect of clinical
negligence liabilities of Dorset HealthCare.
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23 Revaluation reserve

£000

Revaluation
Reserve property, plant
and equipment
£000

Revaluation
Reserve assets held for
sale
£000

Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2012
Prior period adjustment
Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2012
Impairments
Revaluations
Transfers to other reserves
Asset disposals
Other recognised gains and losses
Other reserve movements

28,973
28,973
(2,395)
1,191
(17)
-

27,391
27,391
(2,395)
1,191
(17)
-

1,582
1,582
-

Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2013

27,752

26,170

1,582

Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2011
Prior period adjustment
Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2011
Impairments
Revaluations
Transfers to other reserves
Asset disposals
Other recognised gains and losses
Other reserve movements

28,879
28,879
(2,864)
3,460
(502)
-

28,583
28,583
(2,824)
3,460
(45)
(1,783)

296
296
(40)
(457)
1,783

Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2012

28,973

27,391

1,582

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

£000

£000

At 1 April
Net change in year

32,866
10,338

18,548
14,318

At 31 March

43,204

32,866

Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Other current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP
Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF

69
43,135
43,204
43,204

285
32,581
32,866
32,866

24.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Total Revaluation
Reserve
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24.2 Third party assets held by the NHS Foundation Trust
2012/13
Bank
Balances
£000
At 1 April
Gross inflows
Gross Outflows
At 31 March

246
390
(480)
156

2012/13
Money on
Deposit
£000
-

2011/12
Bank
Balances
£000

2011/12
Money on
Deposit
£000

505
723
(982)
246

-

25.1 Contractual Capital Commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2013 were £394k (£526k at 31 March 2012)
in respect of property, plant and equipment.
25.2 Other Financial Commitments
Dorset HealthCare's commitment to making payments under non-cancellable contracts
(which are not leases, PFI contracts or other service concession arrangements) during
2012/13 as follows, analysed by the period during which the commitment expires:

2012/13
£000
4,211
934
5,145

Expiry not later than 1 year
Expiry after 1 year and not later than 5 years
Expiry thereafter
Total
25.3 Events after the reporting period

On 1 April 2013 the 32 sites used by the Community Health Services transferred from NHS Bournemouth &
Poole and NHS Dorset to Dorset HealthCare with an unaudited net book value of £73m. These properties
were previously rented by Dorset HealthCare. The transfer of properties to Dorset HealthCare are subject
to regulatory decision and by 1 October 2013 the outcome of whether these properties remain with Dorset
HealthCare, or are to be transferred to another body, will be known.
26. Contingent (Liabilities) / Assets

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000
£000

Gross value of contingent liabilities
Amounts recoverable against liabilities

-

-

Net value of contingent liabilities
Net value of contingent assets

-

-
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27. Related Party Transactions
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.
During the year none of the Board Members, Non Executive Directors, Governors or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any material
transactions with Dorset HealthCare. M Beesley, non-executive director, is the Chairman of Standards Committee for Dorset Police Authority. There have been immaterial arms length
transactions between Dorset HealthCare and Dorset Police Authority during the year.
Board members have only received short-term employee benefits from Dorset HealthCare as shown on Note 4.5. No post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits, termination
benefits or share based payments have been received by Board Members in 2012/13 and 2011/12.
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with
the Department of Health, and with other entities (and or/their predecessor bodies) for which the Department is regarded as the parent organisation. These entities are listed below.

Significant transaction values with related trading organisations:
Bournemouth and Poole Teaching Primary Care Trust
(also known as NHS Bournemouth and Poole)
Dorset Primary Care Trust
(also known as NHS Dorset)
NHS Business Services Authority

2012/13
Income
£000

2012/13
Expenditure
£000

31 March 2013
Receivables
£000

31 March 2013
Payables
£000

93,177

663

1,257

181

112,646

5,842

1,554

154

-

15,807

-

2,049

Total income from the Department of Health was £72k and from other NHS Bodies was £13,448k. Total expenditure to the Department of Health was £nil and to other NHS Bodies was
£7,931k.
The total amount owed to other NHS Bodies was £1,316k and £795k was owed to Dorset HealthCare by other NHS Bodies.

Bournemouth and Poole Teaching Primary Care Trust
(also known as NHS Bournemouth and Poole)
Dorset Primary Care Trust
(also known as NHS Dorset)
NHS Business Services Authority

2011/12
Income

2011/12
Expenditure

31 March 2012
Receivables

31 March 2012
Payables

£000

£000

£000

£000

90,033

863

571

409

103,579

4,348

986

607

-

15,485

-

1,291

Total income from the Department of Health was £0k and from other NHS Bodies was £11,522k. Total expenditure to the Department of Health was £569k and to other NHS Bodies was
£8,326k.
The total amount owed to other NHS Bodies was £1,515k and £895k was owed to Dorset HealthCare by other NHS Bodies.
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27. Related Party Transactions continued /…
In addition, the Foundation Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government
Departments and other central and local Government bodies.
Dorset HealthCare has also received revenue of non material amounts from Dorset HealthCare Charitable
Fund where the Trustees are also the members of the Foundation Trust Board.
The independently reviewed accounts for Dorset HealthCare Charitable Fund are available from Dorset
HealthCare NHS University NHS Foundation Trust.
Dorset HealthCare also has an investment relationship with New Wave Integrated Care Limited. Details
about this investment are disclosed on Note 11. No material transactions arose with this entity in 2011/12 or
2012/13. In 2012/13 other income of £2.5k (2011/12 £1.5k) was received by Dorset HealthCare University
NHS Foundation Trust from New Wave Integrated Care Limited. At the year end New Wave Integrated
Care Limited owed £nil (2011/12 £nil) due within one year and £20k (2011/12 £20k) due in more than one
year to Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust.
Dorset HealthCare also has an investment relationship with Ansbury Limited from 2009/10. There were no
material transactions with this entity in 2012/13 or 2011/12.
There are no material transactions that have been concluded under non market conditions.
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28. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Schemes deemed to be off-SoFP
Dorset HealthCare has no PFI schemes as at 31 March 2013 or at 31 March 2012 and Dorset HealthCare has not committed to
make any payments for PFI schemes during the next year.
29 Financial Instruments
29.1 Financial assets by category
Total
£000

Loans and
receivables
£000

Assets at fair
value
£000

Available-forsale
£000

3,605

3,605

-

-

NHS Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets (at 31 March 2013)
Non-NHS Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets (at 31 March 2013)
Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand (at 31
March 2013)

1,789

1,789

-

-

43,204

43,204

-

-

Total at 31 March 2013

48,598

48,598

-

-

The difference between trade receivables and other receivables shown in note 14.1 and note 29.1 relates to non-financial assets
which are prepayments, PDC receivable and VAT receivable.
Total
£000

Loans and
receivables
£000

Assets at fair
value
£000

Available-forsale
£000

NHS Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets (at 31 March 2012)

2,450

2,450

-

-

Non-NHS Trade and other receivables excluding non
financial assets (at 31 March 2012)

1,859

1,859

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand (at 31
March 2012)

32,866

32,866

-

-

Total at 31 March 2012

37,175

37,175

-

-

The difference between trade receivables and other receivables shown in note 14.1 and note 29.1 relates to non-financial assets
which are prepayments and VAT receivable.
The above assets at fair values are through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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29 Financial Instruments Continued
29.2 Financial liabilities by category

Borrowings excluding Finance lease and
PFI liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
NHS Trade and other payables excluding
non financial liabilities (at 31 March 2013)
Non-NHS Trade and other payables
excluding non financial liabilities (at 31
March 2013)
Other financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2013

Total
£000

Other financial
liabilities
£000

Liabilities at
fair value
£000

1,624
31

1,624
31

-

1,358

1,358

-

9,977
2,610

9,977
2,610

-

15,600

15,600

-

Borrowings and finance leases are shown in note 18.1. The difference between trade and other payables
shown in note 16 and note 29.2 relate to non-financial liabilities of £1,784k shown in Other Payables and
£3,047k shown in Taxes payable. Provisions are shown in note 22. The difference between note 22 and note
29.2 relate to non-financial liabilities of Pensions - other staff, and £659k shown in Other.

Borrowings excluding Finance lease and
PFI liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
NHS Trade and other payables excluding
non financial liabilities (31 March 2012)
Non-NHS Trade and other payables
excluding non financial liabilites (31 March
2012)
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2012

Total
£000

Other financial
liabilities
£000

Liabilities at fair
value
£000

1,804
57

1,804
57

-

1,878

1,878

-

8,006
1,631

8,006
1,631

-

13,376

13,376

-

Borrowings and finance leases are shown in note 18.1. The difference between trade and other payables
shown in note 16 and note 29.2 relate to non-financial liabilities of £1,673k shown in Other Payables, £444k
shown in accruals, £64k PDC payable and £2,848k shown in Taxes payable. Provisions are shown in note
22. The difference between note 22 and note 29.2 relate to non-financial liabilities of Pensions - other staff,
and £603k shown in Other.
The above liabilities at fair values are through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
29.3 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

£000

£000

14,137
201
541
721
15,600

11,708
195
572
901
13,376

In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years
Total
29.4 Financial Instruments - Risks
Market risk

(a) Interest rate risk - Dorset HealthCare's financial assets and liabilities carry nil, variable and fixed rates of
interest. Variable rates are applicable to Dorset HealthCare's deposit accounts, the most significant of which
is with the Government Banking Service (GBS). GBS interest rate varies in line with the Bank of England base
rates. Other deposits are placed with other organisations for a maximum of 3 months. The rate is agreed in
advance which reduced the interest rate risk. Dorset HealthCare's long term loan is on a fixed rate of interest.
Dorset HealthCare is therefore not exposed to significant interest rate risk.
(b) Currency risk - Dorset HealthCare has no significant foreign currency transactions and is therefore not
exposed to significant currency risk.
(c) Credit and liquidity risk - Dorset HealthCare's significant operating income is incurred under contracts
with local Primary Care Trusts, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. Dorset
HealthCare finances its capital expenditure from internally generated funds. Dorset HealthCare is therefore
not exposed to significant credit or liquidity risks.
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29.5a Fair values of financial assets at 31 March 2013
The book value and fair value of non-current trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets was £20k.
Basis of fair valuation - see note a
29.5b Fair values of financial assets at 31 March 2012
The book value and fair value of non-current trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets was £20k.
Basis of fair valuation - see note a
Notes
a These non-current trade and other receivables reflect agreements with New Wave Integrated Care
Limited. Fair value is not different from book value. See note 14.1.
29.6a Fair values of financial liabilities at 31 March 2013

Non current trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Provisions under contracts
Loans
Other

Book Value

Fair Value

£000

£000

2,610
1,624
4,234

2,610
1,624
4,234

Book Value

Fair Value

£000

£000

1,631
1,804
3,435

1,631
1,804
3,435

Basis of fair
valuation

Note b

Total
29.6b Fair values of financial liabilities at 31 March 2012

Non current trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Provisions under contracts
Loans
Other

Basis of fair
valuation

Note b

Total
Notes
b Fair value is not different from book value as the loan carries a fixed rate of interest of 5.5%.
30.1 Changes in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets during the year for the amounts recognised in
the Statement of Financial Position
There are no defined benefit schemes and therefore no plan assets during either 2012/13 or 2011/12.
30.2 Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the present value of the plan assets to
the assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position
There are no defined benefit schemes and therefore no plan assets during either 2012/13 or 2011/12.
31 Losses and Special Payments
There were 45 cases of losses and special payments totalling £89k paid during 2012/13 (48 cases and £13k paid in
2011/12).
There were no cases exceeding £100,000 for the current year (2011/12 no cases).
These amounts are reported on an accruals basis but exclude provisions for future losses.
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32. Discontinued operations
There were no discontinued operations in either 2012/13 or in 2011/12.
33. Corporation Tax
Dorset HealthCare had no corporation tax liability for either 2012/13 or 2011/12.
34. Other Financial Assets
Dorset HealthCare had no other financial assets in either 2012/13 or 2011/12.
35. Other Financial Liabilities
Dorset HealthCare had no other financial liabilities in either 2012/13 or 2011/12.
36. Pooled Budget Arrangements
Dorset HealthCare has participated in the Integrated Community Equipment Store pooled budget arrangement with Dorset County Council
(host organisation), Dorset County Hospital NHS FT and NHS Dorset. Dorset HealthCare's agreed contribution for 2011/12 was £15k
(considered immaterial.)

The Trust was part of the Section 75 Agreement for 2012/13 and the relevant information is as follows:
Gross Partner Funding :
Investment and Risk as per Section 75 Agreement

Cash

Dorset County Council - Adult Services
Dorset County Council - Children's Services
Dorset HealthCare
Dorset HealthCare - Learning Disability
Dorset PCT - (New) Other Acute Hospitals
Dorset CHC - Dorset PCT
Dorset County Hospitals NHS FT
Dorset County Council

Staff

Other

Total

1,053,056
145,705
1,281,168
19,529
235,091
84,106
214,415
466,000

-

-

1,053,056
145,705
1,281,168
19,529
235,091
84,106
214,415
466,000

30.10%
4.16%
36.61%
0.56%
6.72%
2.40%
6.13%
13.32%

3,499,070

-

-

3,499,070

100.0%

-

-

3,499,070

-

-

3,499,070

Integrated Equipment Service

3,499,070

-

-

3,499,070

Total Expenditure

3,499,070

-

-

3,499,070

-

-

Sale of Pre-Contract Commissioner Owned Equipment

-

Total Funding

-

Expenditure

Net underspend/overspend

-
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37. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
Dorset HealthCare had £nil interest paid arising from claims made or compensation paid in 2012/13 and 2011/12
in relation to debt recovery costs under this legislation.
38. Merger accounting - Transforming Community Services
On 1 July 2011 Dorset HealthCare acquired the Community Health Services arms of NHS Dorset and NHS
Bournemouth & Poole. The transaction involved the transfer of some current assets and liabilities of the
Community Health Services. There was no transfer of non current assets or liabilities as part of this transaction.
The consideration given to Dorset HealthCare by the PCTs for the net current liabilities transferred was £1,723k
and £1,879k in cash.
This transaction represents the transfer of services between public sector bodies which are under common
control and therefore is a 'machinery of government change'. This transaction meets the definition of a 'Group
Reconstruction' under IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' and therefore falls outside the scope of that standard.
Consequently, in accordance with the FT ARM the principles of merger accounting have been applied to this
transaction, for 2011/12 only.
The following is an analysis of the principal components of the prior year's Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period from 1 April 2011 to 30 June 2011:

1 April 2011 to 30 June 2011

Statement of Comprehensive
Income
Income

1 July
2011 to 31
March
2012

Full year

Dorset
CHS

Bournemouth &
Poole CHS

Dorset
HealthCare

Combined
results

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

21,626

8,604

20,825

163,284

214,339

(21,626)

(8,604)

(18,783)

(152,949)

(201,962)

Financing Costs

-

-

(31)

16

(15)

Taxation

-

-

PDC Dividends payable

-

-

Surplus for the period

-

-

1,529

Exchange gains and losses
taken direct to reserves

-

-

-

Revaluation surpluses or deficits

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for
the period

-

-

1,529

Expenses
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-

(482)

-

(1,508)

(1,990)

8,843

10,372

-

596

9,439

596
10,968
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Glossary of Terms
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Part 1: Chief Executive’s statement on the quality of services

The Trust’s vision is to provide care all of us would
recommend to our family and friends. As a result, high quality
care and compassion sit at the heart of our organisation.
Trust values, achievements and goals
I am delighted to have the opportunity to summarise the
Trust’s view on the quality of its services during 2012/13, but
before doing so, I would like to thank the staff for their hard
work, dedication and commitment. At the Trust, we believe
that every member of staff has a responsibility for providing
compassionate and high quality care, and we aim to continue achieving this with
strong leadership at every level.
Ultimately, it isn’t just about the care we give, but the way we give it. We want to
understand the patient experience and listen to patient feedback. We want all our
staff to see the person in every patient. Quality is at the heart of everything we do
and the annual Quality Account is a way of openly sharing details of the quality of
care that we provide.
Providing care all of us would recommend to family and friends.
Over the past year, we have seen improvements across the three quality domains of
patient experience, patient safety and clinical effectiveness. Improvements in the
three priority areas are described in Part 2 of this account.
In addition we have also taken forward a number of other quality initiatives during
2012/13 including:
Early Warning Trigger Tool (EWTT) - during 2012/13 we have rollout out the use of
the Early Warning Trigger Tool (Quality Effectiveness and Safety Trigger tool for
Mental Health) across all our inpatient services. The EWTT is based upon the
principles of early warning systems. These are concerned with identifying trigger
factors and allowing actions to be taken to prevent further deterioration in systems or
settings that may then impact on quality and safety of patient care. The tools look at
a variety of indicators including staffing, leadership, multi-disciplinary team working
and engagement, engagement with patients and their carer's and operational
demands.
Web based Incident reporting system - we completed the roll out of one Trust wide
incident reporting system, which has enabled the Trust to reenergise its reporting
culture and to be able to capture and learn from all incidents and near misses.
Patient Safety Thermometer – we have implemented the use of the Patient Safety
Thermometer in both Community Hospitals and in District Nursing to measure the
percentage of ‘harm free’ care across the domains of pressure ulcers, falls, venous
thromboembolism and catheter acquired infections. This allows us to benchmark
between areas and spread good practice across the Trust.
Improvements to the patient environment - during 2012/13 the Trust relocated
and expanded its Adolescent inpatient unit to increase capacity from 4 to 8 beds and
provide a dedicated and modern environment for young people locally. The Trust
continued with its programme to modernise inpatient facilities at St Ann’s Hospital
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and create two new Adult Inpatient wards which remains on course to open in
October 2013.
Clinical Audit – the Trust has continued actively to undertake clinical audit and to
participate in relevant national audits.
Our response to the Francis Enquiry
Although widely anticipated, the findings of the Francis Report (following the Mid
Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Enquiry) were still shocking and very
saddening. Our mission is not to be the biggest, the fastest growing or the most
financially successful Trust in the UK. Whilst we cannot take high quality care for
granted, it is our goal to provide healthcare to be proud of to all our patients. The
Trust held a joint workshop with the Council of Governors on the 26th March 2013 to
consider the findings of the Francis Report and discussed the themes listed below
which will inform the Trusts detailed response to the enquiry.






Culture
Leadership
Staffing
Nursing
Healthcare Support Workers

During 2012/13, the Trust remained registered without condition with the Care
Quality Commission and received a number of visits to our services. Details of these
visits are detailed within this account. However, during the year the Trust received a
poor follow up report from the CQC in relation to the quality of services provided at
Minterne Ward, Forston Clinic. Despite having already made changes to the clinical
and leadership arrangements earlier in the year the Trust is extremely disappointed
that it was not able to make the required changes quickly enough. In December, the
Trust took the decision to temporarily close Minterne Ward to enable significant
improvements to be made to the environment, totalling in the region of £1 million.
During this time, a comprehensive training programme has also been undertaken by
staff to further improve staff awareness, skills and competencies alongside a review
and increase in staffing levels. The ward reopened on the 22nd April 2013 following
these significant improvements.
The Trust also had a Care Quality Commission visit to Blandford Community Hospital
in March 2013, resulting in two warning notices in respect of Outcome 4 (Care and
welfare of people who use services) and Outcome 13 (Staffing) following this visit.
The Trust took forward immediate action to address these concerns. Despite
undertaking immediate action a subsequent visit on 20th May by the CQC found we
were still not meeting these outcomes. Therefore the warning notices remain, whilst
we continue to implement the required improvements. In addition we have agreed
with our regulator, Monitor, to commission an external review of our Quality
Governance arrangements with the aim of completing this by midsummer.
During 2012/13 the Trust received 19 Mental Health Act Commission visits. These
visits are undertaken to check on the care of patients who have been detained in
hospital and those who have been given a community treatment order (CTO). Key
themes from these visits have been:
 Needing to remind patients of the benefits of the advocacy service when
they have previously declined.
 Keeping care plans and risk assessments under regular review
 Involving patients in their care planning
 Assessing patients’ capacity to consent to their treatment
 Documenting discussions with patients about their consent to treatment
 Giving patients their rights in a timely manner
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Ensuring old leave forms are crossed through
Risk assessing patients prior to leave

We hope that this Account will be both helpful and informative for our patients,
services users, carers, staff, commissioners and partner organisations.
See glossary of terms for definitions used within this Account. Where available
national standard definitions are used.
Statement of Accuracy
I believe that the services which the Trust has provided during 2012/13 have
generally continued to be of a high standard and we remain committed to continual
improvement. The Board has received assurance of this through a variety of means
including internal monitoring of quality indicators across the three domains of quality.
The Board receives an Integrated Performance report including a quality score card
covering all three domains of quality i.e. patient experience, patient safety and clinical
effectiveness.
In addition, the Board Committee for Quality, Clinical Governance and Risk has met
regularly to further scrutinise the quality of our services. Non Executive Directors and
Executive Directors also carry out visits directly to wards and teams to hear and
observe first hand the quality of care being delivered, thus enhancing the line of sight
from Board to ward.
We are committed to giving any issues regarding standards of care our full attention
and will respond promptly and positively to any recommendations to ensure a strong
and clear focus on quality of care. Above all we value the feedback of patients and
their carers, family and friends to guide us in improving the quality of our services.
The Council of Governors, Board of Directors, our senior managers, clinical leaders
and I are committed to delivering a programme of continuous quality improvement
during 2013/14.
I recommend this Quality Account to you, which to the best of my knowledge is a
complete and accurate record as seen by the Trust.
Signed: ...............................................................

29 May 2013

Date: ...................................

Mr Paul Sly - Chief Executive
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PART 2: PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT AND STATEMENTS OF ASSURANCE
FROM THE BOARD
Priorities for Improvement 2012/13
This section gives you a clear overview of how we have performed against the areas
for improvement that we set ourselves for 2012/13.
Priority

Intended Outcome

To ensure that all clinical teams have
local reporting systems (surveys or
real time feedback devices) for patient
experience

To understand the experience of
patients and carers involved in our
services and to recognise the
importance of this feedback in
delivery high quality of care.

To implement programmes to reduce
patient harm in the following areas and
ensure that good practice is rolled out
across the enlarged Trust.









Acting in a more timely fashion
providing an opportunity to use
people’s experience to develop ideas
and potential solutions to improving
services.
Embed the principles of reducing
patient harm into practice focussing
on the sharing of good practice.

Level of
Achievement




Falls – to reduce serious injury
from falls
Pressure Ulcers – to reduce
avoidable pressure ulcers
Catheter Associated Urinary Tract
Infections (UTIs) – to reduce
infections
Deteriorating Patient – to improve
communication and awareness of
each change in a patients status
to better respond to deterioration
Venous Thromboembolism (VTE)
– to improve screening and
appropriate prophylaxis at risk of
VTE
Absent without Leave (AWOLS) –
to reduce the number of AWOLS

To roll out Patient Reported Outcome
Measures across mental health
services that transferred to the Trust in
2011/12 and to pilot their use in
community health services during
2012/13.
 Objective achieved

To ensure that the services provided
are person centred and support the
individual in meeting their personal
goals.

Objective partially achieved

X



Objective not achieved

Detailed overleaf is a description of how we have performed against the areas for
improvement published in the 2011/12 Quality Account.
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Patient Experience
To ensure that all clinical teams have local reporting systems (surveys or real
time feedback devices) for patient experience
To improve the quality of services we deliver, it is important to understand what
people think about their care and treatment. Capturing real time feedback is one way
the Trust gets the opinion and experience of people who have recently used our
services.
A key priority for 2012/13 for the Trust was to continue the roll out of hand held
patient feedback devices, which started in 2011/12. The handheld devices provide
the opportunity to capture ‘real time’ patient feedback by allowing service users to
complete a survey on the service they have received immediately after an
appointment or at the point of discharge from hospital.
The Trust has 9 information kiosks and 38 handheld devices in use across Mental
Health Services, Children and Young People’s Services, Community Services and
Community Hospitals; this is an increase of 32 handhelds and 6 kiosks from 2011/12.
As part of the continuing work to capture and understand the experience of patients
we developed a core set of quality questions to be included in our electronic
surveys, available on kiosks and handheld devices. Including a set of core questions
which enables benchmarking and comparisons to be undertaken across services.
The use of electronic surveys allows questions to be tagged as ‘alert questions’ –
which means if a negative response is received nominated individuals at a local level
receive an immediate email notifying them of this, so that they can address the
situation in real time.
Real time results reports are available online, 24/7 for team leaders and ward
managers/ matrons.
A total of 1305 local real time surveys have been undertaken up to and including
March 2013 comprising of (2011/12 figures appear in brackets):
Area

Number of surveys
undertaken

Community Health Services
Community Brain Injury Services (Handheld)
ENT (Handheld)
Dorset MSK (Handheld)
Jersey Ward, Alderney Hospital (Handheld)
Guernsey Ward, Alderney Hospital (Handheld)
Westhaven Community Hospital (Handheld)
Community Hospital Kiosks
Westminster Memorial Hospital (Handheld)
Dental Services (Handheld)
Bridport Community Hospital (Handheld)
Audiology (Handheld)

9
15
29
35
43
60
62
69
84
150
268

Total

824
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Mental Health Services
Crisis Team (Handheld) * The Crisis Team has
undertaken paper based surveys
Dudsbury Ward (Handheld)
AAU (Handheld)
Mental Health Service Kiosks
Alumhurst Ward (Handheld)
Branksome Ward (Handheld)
Flaghead Unit (Handheld)
Total

2
18
26
48
85
90
100
369 (155)

Children and Young People’s Services
Under 12’s Surveys (Handheld)
Pebble Lodge (Handheld)
Parents and Carers Surveys (Handheld)
The Junction
Over 12’s Surveys (Handheld)
Total

7
9
23
34
39
112 (66)

The graph below details overall satisfaction to date.

The Trust has a structured rolling programme for local Patient Experience
Questionnaires which is undertaken throughout the year across each directorate.
This is to ensure that patient experience and feedback remains at the heart of all that
we do.
The following table below provides an overview of overall satisfaction scores by
service. The threshold for reporting a positive experience of care is good and above.
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Overall Satisfaction with Services
2011/122

2012/13

Audiology

Q not included in
survey

100%

Podiatry

Q not included in
survey

100%

Dietetic Service

Q not included in
survey

100%

Intermediate Care Service

100%

Tissue Viability Service

100%

Palliative Care
Community Hospitals – Minor Injury Units

Q not included in
survey

100%

100%

100%

Dorset Orthopaedic Treatment Service

100%

Endoscopy Service

100%

Poole Learning Disability (service commenced
2012/13)

N/A

100%

Wheelchair Service

97%

100%

Diabetes Service

100%

100%

Memory Support Service (service commended
2012/13)

N/A

100%

Community Hospitals – inpatient wards

99%

99%

Q not included in
survey

99%

100%

98%

Liaison Psychiatry
Continence Survey Satisfaction Survey
Community Learning Disability Teams

97%

Community Addiction Service (Bournemouth)

97%

97%

District Nursing

97%

96%

Children and Young People’ over 12s and carers

97%

94%

Older Peoples Inpatient Services

92%

92%

Improved Access to Psychological Therapies
(IAPT) - Pan Dorset Services

95%

91%

2
This column provides benchmarking data on previous year’s performance where available. In the majority of cases services did
not include this question as standard during 2011/12. The survey has subsequently been redesigned in 2012/13 to include this
question as standard.
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Overall Satisfaction with Services
Prison Health Services – HMP Portland

90%

Improved Access to Psychological Therapies
(IAPT) – Southampton Services

94%

Prison Health Services – HMP the Verne

86%

88%

Mental Health Acute Inpatient Service

89%

85%

Crisis and Home Treatment Service

82%

80%

Intensive Psychological Therapies Service

90%
88%

80%

In addition to the above surveys the Community Health Services Directorate
undertook a Patient Satisfaction Survey across all Community Health Services during
December 2012. Approximately, 5000 standard patient Satisfaction Surveys and
bespoke Surveys for the Learning Disability Service were distributed locally in order
to capture the views of as many Patients and Service Users as possible.
A total of 555 surveys were returned and the following graph details overall
satisfaction with the care received.

Whilst the Trust has undertaken a significant number of surveys, there are 4 areas
where this was not achieved for 2012-13. These include the following areas Adult
Aspergers; Vasectomy; Rehabilitation and Recovery and Forensic Team, for which
surveys will be undertaken during 2013-14.
Examples of the changes we have made as a result of feedback received via real
time hand held devices and surveys are listed below:





Reviewed information, such as leaflets about services, and continued to
ensure that information is easily accessible across a number of services.
Improved facilities in waiting areas e.g. installation of a water cooler, air
conditioning and new chairs in Audiology service waiting rooms.
Developing a recognised education/training programme for all members of
the multidisciplinary Heart Failure Nurse Specialist Team.
To ensure that patients are aware of alternative investigations that could be
offered to them.

123








To discuss choice of venues for appointments, where possible.
To carefully monitor patient satisfaction with wait times, for example in IAPT
services as they move towards a shorter waiting time target.
Making telephone numbers for use in crisis more readily available.
Confirming the importance of patients seeing the same nurse specialist where
possible.
Reviewing and broadening the range of activities offered to inpatients.
Ensuring the need for adequate time for each appointment.
Patient Safety

To implement programmes to reduce patient harm in the following areas and
ensure that good practice is rolled out across the enlarged Trust.







Falls – to reduce serious injury from falls
Pressure Ulcers – to reduce avoidable pressure ulcers
Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTIs) – to reduce infections
Deteriorating Patient – to improve communication and awareness of each
change in a patients status to better respond to deterioration
Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) – to improve screening and appropriate
prophylaxis at risk of VTE
Absent without Leave (AWOLS) – to reduce the number of AWOLS

In order to reduce patient harm and ensure that good practice is rolled out across the
enlarged Trust, there are a number of different programmes which have been
introduced to support the above six areas. The Trust has worked at meeting specific
targets for each area, some of which will be demonstrated throughout this section of
the report.
Falls – to reduce serious injury from falls
Since April 2012, the Trust has been trialling different interventions to reduce the
number of falls and the number of falls resulting in any level of harm / serious harm.
The following interventions are used throughout the wards to reduce serious injury
from falls:









Falls and Bone Health assessment checklist is completed on admission and
reviewed appropriately
Currently Falls Risk Assessment for the Elderly (FRASE) is completed within
48 hours of admission
Medication reviews at first ward round
Safety / Comfort rounds undertaken on all older peoples mental health wards
in the east
The RUOK? (Intentional rounding) intervention is used in all other community
hospitals including older people mental health. Instead of waiting for patients
to call for help, with ‘RUOK rounds’ (Are You OK) nurses take the initiative
and visit the patients’ bedside at regular intervals to do whatever the patient
needs and see they are alright.
The Falls Safety Cross is used in all community hospitals, with other wards
beginning to use with facilitation by the Falls Lead.
The Trust also monitors any repeat fallers, these are reviewed by the Trust
Falls Lead who then works with staff to introduce preventative strategies.
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The Trust has developed a network of identified Falls Champions/Link workers for
each service area with a total of 58 Champions in place with responsibility for
disseminating and raising awareness of falls prevention within their teams.
In addition the Trust has developed a ‘Prevention & Management of Falls & Bone
Health Training Programme’, which is provided at 3 levels:



Level 1 - Support Workers/Health Care Assistant’s,
Level 2 – Registered Staff
Level 3 – Falls Link Workers/Champions

Since being launched in September 2012, 50 out of a target group of 58 (86%)
members of staff have attended the Falls Link Workers / Champions Training. This
training enables staff to:








understand the role of the Falls Champion/ Link
be able to state the main contributory factors for Falls
be able to identify the key interventions which address falls contributory factors
be aware of the key clinical indicators for Osteoporosis
be aware of lifestyle and clinical interventions regarding Osteoporosis and Bone
Health
be aware of the local and national guidance related to Falls and Bone Health
be aware of and be able to implement locally agreed Falls prevention and
Management Strategies and interventions

07/2012

08/2012

09/2012

10/2012

11/2012

12/2012

01/2013

02/2013

03/2013

Number of
inpatient falls
resulting in a
fracture *

06/2012

Number of
inpatient falls

05/2012

Falls

04/2012

These developments have led to a reduction in the number of falls resulting in a
fracture. In 2011/ 12 there were a total of 17 patient falls resulting in a fracture. From
1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013 there has been a reduction with a total of 14 falls
resulting in a fracture. Whilst small in number this is a reduction of 18%, which can
be seen in the table below.

139

174

125

117

124

145

189

175

136

167

134

137

3

1

1

1

0

1

1

0

1

4

0

1

Pressure Ulcers – to reduce avoidable pressure ulcers
The Trust has produced a revised ‘Policy for the prevention and management of
pressure ulcers’ to support new and consistent approaches in the management of
pressure ulcers across the Trust. The launch of the new policy has been supported
by training events and 486 staff have to date attended the launch and training.
This revised policy reflects changes in the national scoring for severity of pressure
ulcers and also introduced standardised risk assessments for both in-patient settings
and the community. It introduces the use of the Braden Risk Assessment tool within
community hospitals and the Walsall Community Risk Assessment tool within the
community. In the last quarter of 2012/13, the Trust has been monitoring the use of
the Braden Risk Assessment within its community hospitals. The Trust’s standard for
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the completion of the Braden score is within 6 hours of admission and for this to be
further improved to 4 hours by September 2013. The table overleaf demonstrates
significant improvement in performance against these standards throughout the last
quarter3:
% within 4 hours

% within 6 hours

Other

50%
63%
71%

26%
23%
14%

24%
14%
15%

January
February
March

The implementation of the Patient Safety Thermometer also enables the Trust to
measure the percentage of harm free care including Pressure Ulcers. During
2012/13, the percentage of harm free care associated with Pressure Ulcers within
community hospitals was 97%. The chart below demonstrates community hospital
performance throughout the year.

% patients with a hospital acquired pressure ulcer 2012/13
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

Apr- May- Jun- Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 13 13 13
% patients with a
hospital acquired
pressure ulcer

4%

4%

1%

5%

2%

2%

3%

2%

1%

2%

3%

2%

Number of Patients
227 230 247 249 254 254 261 270 254 264 260 275
Surveyed

The Trust has seen significant improvement in the identification and reporting of
pressure ulcers over the last year. The following graph provides details of the number
of pressure ulcers reported throughout a 12 month period. Although there have been
peaks throughout the year the end result sees pressure ulcers acquired in care
reduced by half from November to December 2012, although slightly increasing in
January 2013. Those not acquired in care also show a slight decrease from
November to December, although have started to increase in January 2013. There is
no comparable data for 2011/12 due to the transfer of community health services.
The previous community health services each operated different incident reporting
systems which reported in different ways and had different reporting thresholds and
therefore there is no meaningful comparative data available.

3

Swanage and Wareham Community Hospital data available for March only.
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When Grade 3 or 4 pressure ulcers are acquired under our care, the Trust routinely
carries out a root cause analysis review to determine if it could have been prevented
and to identify any lessons to be learnt or areas for improvement.
The following improvements have been made:
1.

Following the roll out of the Policy for the Prevention and Management
of Pressure Ulcers and Guidance clinical staff will be able in accordance
with the standards set out in the policy to
 Identify, grade, document pressure ulcers
 Manager pressure ulcers
 Be trained in and be aware of appropriate equipment provided
and how this is utilised. (Any equipment not provided or utilised
the reason must be clearly documented within the patient
record)

2.

All District Nursing staff to be reminded that assessment of mental
capacity is to be undertaken and clearly documented in the patient
record for those who do not comply with clinical advice.

3.

All staff to be reminded that where more than one team or other
agencies are involved in care, a key worker must be identified and take
the lead on communications between all parties.

4.

Patients at risk of, or who have developed a pressure ulcer will be given
a copy of the NICE leaflet and have it explained to them. An entry will
be made in the patient record when this has taken place.

5.

Staff to be trained so timely referral to Tissue Viability service is made,
in all instances of pressure ulcers developing in patients under the
Trusts care.

6.

All staff to be reminded that holistic assessments should include
identifying carers and ensuring that carers / family members are
signposted / referred for a carer assessment.

The following table shows the outcome of these reviews and whether they were
preventable or not.
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Outcome of Reviews of Grade 3 & 4 Pressure Ulcers acquired under our care (Apr – Mar 13

Number
%

Total not
preventable

Total
preventable

Yet to be
reviewed

Total

36

9

28

73

50%

12%

38%

100%

The remaining 28 are awaiting Root Cause Analysis reviews for the Physical Health
Panel to review or additional information to ensure a robust review and will be a
priority over the next two months
Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTIs) – to reduce infections
In February 2011 the Trust’s Infection Prevention and Control Team joined with NHS
South West Quality and Patient Safety Improvement Programme to take forward
work on the key quality indicator of reducing catheter associated urinary tract
infections within the Trust. The South West initiative reviews best practice,
improvement tools and supports leads to take forward within their own organisations.
The aim of this work stream is to reduce the number of catheter associated urinary
tract infections by 50% across all settings where care is provided by 2013.
The Trusts work stream group have developed a ‘Urinary Catheter Assessment and
Monitoring’ (UCAM) tool that reflects all the insertion and compliance requirements of
the Department of Health’s ‘High Impact Interventions’. A tool is completed for every
patient having a catheter inserted and monitoring of the catheter continues until
removal. If an infection is identified an incident form is completed which alerts the
infection prevention and control team. Follow up of the patient with the infection will
then take place.
An initial one day prevalence audit across the health community took place in July
2011. The purpose of the audit was to provide a baseline number of catheters in use
and any associated infections. An additional audit was completed in April 2012.
The number of patients within the community hospitals surveyed increased in April
2012 from those surveyed in July 2011 from 205 to 239. However, the number of
patients with a catheter decreased from 43 in July 2011 to 31 in April 2012. Of the
43 surveyed in July, 8 had an infection, whereas of the 31 surveyed in April only 1
patient had an infection. This is a reduction of 15.4%
Within the Community setting the reduction is smaller however the percentage of
patients with a catheter is the same in both surveys 14.3%. Of the 14.3% of
catheterised patients in the July survey 2.6% had an infection. This figure reduced to
2.2% in the April survey.
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Date of audit

No of patients

No of patients
with catheters

No of patients with UTIs

% of catheterised
patients

% of catheterised patients
who have UTIs

Community Hospitals
6th July 2011

205

43

8

21.0%

18.6%

5th April 2012

239

31

1

12.9%

3.2%

6th July 2011

3231

463

12

14.3%

5th April 2012

2820

404

9

14.3%

Community Nursing

18.6

2.6%
2.2%

The graph below shows the number of UTIs linked to catheters reported within the
community hospitals throughout April 2012 to March 2013.

The Willows has the highest number of UTI’s reported year to date. This has been
attributed to an increase in reporting of UTI’s by the team and recognition that 20
(77%) of reported UTI’s were present upon admission and therefore not acquired in
our care.
A further audit was undertaken by the Infection Prevention and Control Team
covering the period December 2012 to March 2013. Results indicate that there is an
increased compliance in the use of the Urinary Catheter Assessment and Monitoring
(UCAM) tools. Specifically around the number of UCAM tools completed on insertion
of the urinary catheter, which increased by 22% to 84% and the number of UCAM
tools completed daily, which increased by 39% to 63%.
Deteriorating Patient – to improve communication and awareness of each change
in a patient’s status to better respond to deterioration
The recognition and response to patient deterioration by healthcare staff has been
identified as a national problem leading to unnecessary mortality. With a shift in
emphasis of Acute Care to that provided closer to home and with more patients with
a mental health condition having complex physical health problems, a Trust wide
solution was required to ensure that staff are able to recognise deterioration in
patients and enable patients to recover earlier.
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A one day clinical skills training course led by Nurse Consultants has been designed
and implemented for staff on clinical assessment of patients including Respirations,
Blood Pressure, clinical signs and symptoms and using the National Early Warning
Systems Tool (launched by the Department of Health/Royal College of Physicians in
July 2012) to recognise deterioration in a patients condition whilst in care.
To date, the one day clinical skills training for 2012/13 have been delivered to 185
nursing staff, including nursing staff in community and mental health services.
The systematic approach ensures that appropriate measures are taken to enable
prompt action and escalate appropriately to a medical staff or a senior clinician.
Clinical conditions that are covered in the training include Sepsis, Dehydration,
Hypoglycaemia/Hyperglycaemia how to respond, what action to take and medicines
management.
A number of clinical practice tools have also been implemented, alongside the
training including, the Situation Background Assessment Recommendation (SBAR),
a communication tool to enable practitioners to effectively report concerns to medical
staff, a Red Flag system to categorise and understand patients at risk of deterioration
on case loads in the community and enabling effective action to be taken and
reporting to G.P’s.
The Trust has included an audit of practice in its audit plan for next year.

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) – to improve screening and appropriate
prophylaxis at risk of VTE
The table graph below provides an overview of the percentage of VTE risk
assessments taking place and those that are appropriate for prophylaxis. The Trust
collected data for risk assessment in quarter 2 to quarter 4 in 2011/12. The overall
compliance was 98.16%. Data about appropriate prophylaxis was not collected in the
previous time period.
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Absent without Leave (AWOLS) – to reduce the number of AWOLS
There has been a clear reduction in the number of AWOL incidents throughout the
past year as demonstrated below.

In all months apart from August the absconding incidents relate to individual patients.
The August incidents relate to 6 patients, 2 of whom had 2 absconding incidents.
All AWOLS across Mental Health Services are subject to a root cause analysis
review to promote and share learning.
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Specific initiatives include:
 Reviewing the use of a semi structured interview for patients prior to
taking leave


Reviewing the signing in and out book



MDT review including the actuarial risk factors for absconding when
considering leave (diagnosis, gender, adherence to treatment, substance
misuse, previous history of AWOLs)



Reviewing changing Branksome and Dudsbury wards to enable male
wards to have controlled access to smoking area – (males – higher risk of
absconding)



Reviewing communication skills when ‘breaking bad news’ to patients
which are a known trigger in AWOLS.



Increasing understanding of why people leave the ward/hospital (concern
over property/pets, impact of unsettled wards) and agreeing interventions
to help manage these issues.



Enhancing staff training when carrying out the role of escorting patients.

In addition, a number of environmental changes have been made to improve safety
and assist the prevention of AWOL’s these are as follows:



Branksome Ward – a new door has been installed which has designated a
dining room within the ward boundaries, rather than the previously shared
dining area with Dudsbury.
Alumhurst ward – new door planned to provide access to the dining room
directly from the ward has been installed.

Clinical Effectiveness
To roll out Patient Reported Outcome Measures across mental health services
that transferred to the Trust in 2011/12 and to pilot their use in community
health services during 2012/13.
The Trust is committed to being able to measure that the care and treatment that we
provide enables and supports patients/service users to reach their goals.
The
purpose and function of this is to ensure that all of us are delivering care that is firmly
focussed on what patients identify as their key priorities.
Roll out across mental health services
The mental health service is using two measures to help ensure that care is clearly
focussed on what service users identify as their key priorities; these are Patient
Identified Goals and the Recovery Star. These were initially launched during
2010/11 and in July 2012 were rolled out to the mental health services which
transferred to the Trust in 2011/12.
Since the roll-out, 843 patients have set one or more goals in the transferred
services. The following graph shows for all adult mental health services the average
initial score and average follow-up score by category for those service users who
have reviewed progress against their goals. The number of service users who have
set goals in each category varies. On average service users progressed in achieving
their goals in 4 categories, whereas the average score for those who set goals
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related to Identity and Esteem or Living Skills did not progress or was lower when
reviewed at a follow-up appointment. These areas will be explored during 2013/14.

Pilot in Community Health Service
Community Health Services embarked on a pilot of patient reported outcome
measures within Podiatry and Intermediate Care Services. The pilot commenced
from 1st October 2012.
Within Intermediate Care Services patients are asked to identify up to three goals at
initial assessment and score their position in meeting each goal from 1-10. Patients
are then asked to score again at discharge. Podiatry patients are asked to identify
their goals from a list of potential service related outcomes with the opportunity to
record another goal in their own words. Podiatry patients are asked to score their
progress in meeting the goals at the first and second appointment.
Initial results have been very positive; with the total number of sets of patient goals of
677 being recorded as shown by the graphs below.
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Within Intermediate Care Services patients are asked to identify up to three goals at
initial assessment and score their position in meeting each goal from 1-10 (1 = goal
not met at all. 10 = met completely). Patients are then asked to score again at
discharge. Staff involved in the patient’s care then categorise each goal into one of
six categories.
The following graph shows the average change in scores by category.

Within the Podiatry service 5 pre-set goals are recorded on the sheet provided to
patients to complete with the option to add another free text goal.
The initial goal is ‘To reduce the pain/discomfort I get from my feet’ and patients are
asked to score their pain on a scale of 1 to 10 with 10 being extreme pain.
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The other goals are also scored on a scale of 1 to 10, however 10 is the most
positive outcome e.g. excellent understanding of how to look after my feet better.
The following graph shows the average change in scores by category.

NB For pain/discomfort the lower the score the better
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QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES 2013 – 14
This section of the account will set out the rationale for the selection of the priorities
agreed by the Trust Board to improve the quality of care of our services in 2013/14.
PATIENT EXPERIENCE
Implementing the principles of the national Friends and Family Test (FFT)
across Community Hospitals and Minor Injury Units.
The Trust’s vision statement is to provide care all of us would recommend to friends
and family. This priority has been selected to ensure that the patient experience can
be continuously monitored and improved in line with our vision.
Progress will be monitored through regular reporting at Team, Directorate and Trust
Board level, with comparisons between services on total surveys completed and an
increase in numbers recommending friends and family. Results of the FFT will be
reported in the 2013/14 Quality Account.
PATIENT SAFETY
To reduce the number of preventable hospital acquired pressure ulcers.
The Trust has a proactive approach to ensuring patient safety throughout its services
and this priority has been selected to ensure a focus on the reduction of preventable
pressure ulcers.
Progress will be monitored through regular reporting at Team, Directorate and Trust
Board level on the following:






rate of newly acquired pressure ulcers per 1000 Occupied Bed Days (OBD’s)
number of newly acquired grade 3 / 4 pressure ulcers per 1000 OBD’s
days between newly acquired pressure ulcers
use of the safety cross
compliance with skin bundle

Progress will be reported in the 2013/14 Quality Account.
CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
To implement the dementia care pathway across all services.
The Trust is committed to improving the quality of life for people with dementia and
their carers. This priority has been selected to ensure a consistent approach across
teams, easy referral and clear treatment standards.
Progress will be monitored through regular reporting at appropriate Team and
Service Level on audit of compliance and number of staff attending team based
training which will lead to a direct improvement in dementia care and consistent
approach. Achievements in implementing this will be reported in the 2013/14 Quality
Account.
We have given careful consideration to our priorities for 2013/14 to ensure that they
have a real and genuine impact on improving services, quality of care and the service
user/patient and carer experience. We identified our priorities by working in
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partnership with staff, service users, carers, our members and local partners
including:








Patient and Public Experience and Engagement Committee
Healthwatch (Bournemouth, Dorset and Poole)
Clinical Commissioning Group
Council of Governors
Trust Professional Advisory Committees
Trust Directors
Trust Board

It is important to emphasise that other quality improvement initiatives will also
continue to be taken forward as part of the Trusts overall work plan and within
operational plans for individual directorates.
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Statement of Assurance from the Board
Review of Services

During 2012/13 the Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust provided 75
relevant health services. Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust has
reviewed all data available to us on the quality of care in 75 of these relevant health
services.
The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2012/13
represents 95.86 per cent of the total income generated from the provision of
relevant health services by the Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
for 2012/13.
Dorset HealthCare provides these 75 services (shown in figure 2 overleaf) and has
reviewed them in the following ways:
1. Information Relating to Clinical Effectiveness
 Regular Performance Reports to the Board incorporating measures on
Clinical Effectiveness
 Reports to the Board Committee for Quality, Clinical Effectiveness and Risk
including:
o Quarterly reporting on compliance with NICE Technology Appraisals
and Guidelines to the
o Reports on the Annual Clinical Audit Programme
o Report on Patient Reported Outcome Measures/ Goals
o External accreditations
2. Information relating to Patient Safety
 Regular performance Reports to the Board incorporating measures on Patient
Safety
 Quarterly Mental Health Act Hospital Managers Information Report
 Reports to the Board Committee for Quality, Clinical Effectiveness and Risk
including:
o Incident Report
o Six Monthly National Reporting and Learning Service Cluster Report
o Quarterly report of Serious Incident recommendations and progress
o Quarterly report on Care Quality Commission actions
o Quarterly Mortality Report
o Early Warning Trigger Tool
o Quarterly Safeguarding Report
o Quarterly Report on Central Alerting System compliance
3. Information relating to Patient Experience
 Regular performance Reports to the Board incorporating measures on Patient
experience
 Reports to the Board Committee for Quality, Clinical Effectiveness and Risk
and Trust Patient and Public Involvement Committee including
o Monthly Complaints and Compliments report
o National and Local Service User Survey Results
o Real time feedback
o Annual Compliments and Complaints Reporting including lessons
learnt
 In addition the Trust Non Executive Directors also undertake announced and
unannounced visits to the wards and units
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However, whilst the Trust has reviewed information across the 3 domains of quality, it
is recognised that reporting and reviewing data at a more granular level i.e.
team/ward is required and there are plans in place to take this forward in 2013/14.
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Figure 2: Overview of Services provided by Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Community Health Services
Primary/Short term
treatments

• GPSIs
• Ear Nose &
Throat
• Dermatology
• Dorset MSK
• Vasectomy
• Podiatry
• Physiotherapy
• Occupational
Therapy
• Dietetics
• Speech &
Language Therapy
• Intermediate Care
• Community Rehab
• Audiology
• Tissue Viability
• ECG
• Dorset Diabetic
Eye Screening
Service
• Expert Patient
Programme

Long Term
Conditions

• District Nurse
• Community
Matrons
• Learning Disability
• Social Care Agency
• Community Dental
• Adult Aspergers
• Continence
• Wheelchairs
• Vocational
Rehabilitation
• Brain Injury
• Diabetes
• Palliative Care
• Orthotics
• Memory Support
Service
• Pulmonary
Rehabilitation
• Antiocoagulation
Service
• Chronic Fatigue
Syndrome and ME
Dorset Wide
Service
• Continuing Health
Care OT Service

Community Hospitals &
Jersey and Guernsey
Wards, Alderney
Hospital
• Blandford Community
Hospital
• Bridport Community
Hospital
• Portland Hospital
• St Leonards
Community Hospital
• Swanage Community
Hospital
• Victoria Hospital
• Wareham Community
Hospital
• Westhaven Hospital
• Westminster
Memorial Hospital
• Weymouth
Community Hospital
• Yeatman Hospital
• Jersey Ward and
Guernsey Ward,
Alderney Hospital

Mental Health
(including Adult, Older
Peoples, Addictions
and Prisons)
• Inpatient Services
• Community Mental
Health Services
• Peri-natal Services
• Rehabilitation and
Recovery Services
• Liaison Services
• Forensic Services
• Assertive Outreach
Services
• Memory Assessment
Services
• Psychological Therapy
Services
• Addiction Services
• Prison Healthcare

Children and Young People’s Services and Improving
Access to Psychological therapies (IAPT)
• Breast Feeding Peer
Supporters
• Health Visitors
• School Nurses
• Paediatric Speech and
Language Therapy
• Contraceptive Health, Family
Planning
& Youth Advisory Clinics
• Asymptomatic Sexual Health
Screening Clinics
• Sexual Health Promotion in
Schools
• Chlamydia screening
• Medical Termination
• Working Women Project
• Blood Borne Virus Team
• Looked after Children /
Children in Care Nurses
• Emotional Health and Well
Being
(CAMHS) including inpatient
/intensive
outreach services
/Day service
provision/substance misuse /
CAMHS out of hours
• Eating Disorders
• Learning Disabilities
• Early Intervention in Psychosis
Service
• Clinical Psychology

• Bournemouth & Poole
Primary Care
Psychological Therapy
Services
• East Dorset Primary
Care Psychological
Therapy Services
• West Dorset Primary
Care Psychological
Therapy Services
• Southampton – Steps
to Wellbeing Service

140

Participation in clinical Audits and National Confidential Enquiries
During 2012/13 3 national clinical audits and 2 national confidential enquiries
covered relevant health services that Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation
Trust provides.
During 2012/13 Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust participated in
67% national clinical audits and 100% national confidential enquiries of the national
clinical audits and national confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Dorset HealthCare
University NHS Foundation Trust was eligible to participate in during 2012/13 are as
follows:
National Clinical Audits
2012/13
Prescribing in Mental Health Services (POMH)
Elective Surgery (National PROMs Programme)
National Audit of Psychological Therapies
National Confidential Inquiries
2012/13
National Confidential Inquiry into suicide and homicide by people with mental
illness
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD)
Alcohol Related Liver Disease study
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Dorset HealthCare
University NHS Foundation Trust participated in during 2012/13 are as follows:
National Clinical Audits
2012/13
Prescribing in Mental Health Services (POMH)
 Prescribing for people with personality disorder (Topic 12a)
 Screening for metabolic side effects of antipsychotic drugs (Topic 2F)
 Prescribing of antipsychotics for people with dementia (Topic 11b)
Elective Surgery (National PROMs Programme)
National Confidential Enquiries
2012/13
National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and homicide by people with mental
illness
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD)
Alcohol Related Liver Disease study
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The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Dorset HealthCare
University NHS Foundation Trust participated in, and for which data collection was
completed during 2012/13, are listed below alongside the number of cases submitted
to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases required
by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
National Clinical Audits
2012/13

Participation

Number of
cases
submitted

% cases
submitted

 Prescribing for people with personality
disorder



227

 Screening for metabolic side effects
of antipsychotic drugs



94

 Prescribing of antipsychotics for
people with dementia



236



83

94.3%

Participation

Number of
cases
submitted

% cases
submitted



31

94%



1

100%

Prescribing in mental health services
(POMH)

* Data on total cases not available/
required
Elective Surgery (National PROMs
Programme) (based on latest available
report – April to September 2012)

National Confidential Enquiries
2012/13
National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide
and homicide by people with mental
illness
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient
Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) Alcohol
Related Liver Disease study

The reports of 4 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2012/13 and
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following
actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided:


Implement comprehensive guidelines on physical monitoring for patients with
schizophrenia

The reports of 14 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2012/13 and
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following
actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided:


Disseminate audit results to appropriate staff, ensuring that areas for
improvement in practice are highlighted.



Implement a discharge pathway pack to help ensure that standards relating to
discharge from hospital are met for all patients



Care plans for those on a ‘Community Treatment Order’ are reviewed
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Redesign of paperwork and templates to help improve documentation of key
information relating to patients’ care



Training in risk management for staff

Participation in Clinical Research
The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted
by Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust in 2012/13 that were
recruited during that period to participate in research approved by a research ethics
committee was 119.
Research helps the NHS to improve the quality of care and the future health of the
population. Quality Accounts let patients and the public know about the quality of
care that a NHS Trust provides. The continued participation in clinical research
demonstrates Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust’s (DHC)
commitment to improve the quality of care that the Trust offers users of the services
that it provides.
DHC continues to expand its portfolio of National Institute for Health Research
(NIHR) studies that are offered to use who use the services that the Trust provides.
The Trust participates in studies for:




Dementia and Neurodegenerative illness (DeNDRoN)
Diabetes
Mental Health

Collaborative working
The Trust continues to work in collaboration with other NHS Trusts within Dorset,
Bournemouth and Poole. The diabetes research project has been a success in
working across both primary and secondary care. Dementia and Neurodegenerative
Research studies are being offered to users across all of Dorset Bournemouth and
Poole.
The Trust is now an associate member of the Mental Health Research Network
(MHRN), and is also working closely with other members of the MHRN to allow
Trusts to contact possible users to participant into MHRN portfolio studies.
Research studies
The Trust is participating in 13 NIHR research studies. The national target for
turnaround times for governance checks is 30 days. The last published report for the
period July 2012 to September 2012 showed the Trust achieving 11 days.
The Trust has recruited 119 participants into NIHR research studies, a reduction of
181 from the previous year. This is mainly due to no new participants being recruited
on the DeNDRoN study and those in the study being monitored. Conversely, 3 new
studies have recently opened and we are currently recruiting to these studies.
Over the last financial year, the Trust has been reviewing its portfolio of research
studies with prisons in Dorset.
Use of the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Framework
A proportion of Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust income in
2012/13 was conditional upon achieving quality improvement and innovation goals
agreed between Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust and any
person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for the
provision of relevant health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and
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Innovation payment framework. Further details of the agreed goals for 2012/13 and
for the following 12 month period are available online at:
http://www.institute.nhs.uk/world_class_commissioning/pct_portal/cquin.html
Registration with the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the
Care Quality Commission and our current registration status is ‘without restrictive
conditions’.
As a Trust we are ‘licensed to provide the following regulated activities’:
Personal care
Termination of pregnancies
Nursing Care
Family planning
Treatment of disease, disorder or injury
Assessment or medical treatment for persons detained under the Mental
Health Act 1983
 Surgical procedures
 Diagnostic and screening procedures








The Care Quality Commission has taken enforcement action against Dorset
HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust during 2012/13. This action is in
relation to the warning notices for Blandford Hospital as outlined in the Chief
Executive’s statement on the quality of services, page 2.
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust has participated in a special
review by the Care Quality Commission relating to ‘dignity and nutrition for older
people’ at Alderney Hospital on 31st August 2012. Dorset HealthCare University NHS
Foundation Trust intends to take the following action to address the conclusions or
requirements reported by the Care Quality Commission:
Respecting and involving people who use services / dementia ward records –
 staff to attend Equality and Diversity training and Customer Care training.
 documents are to be updated to ensure care plans (including goal setting) are in
place, discussed and agreed with the patient and carer.
Meeting nutritional need
 catering department to inform the wards when there is a change to menus and
provide visual choice in advance of meals and written menus.
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust has made the following
progress by 31 March 2013 in taking such action:
Respecting and involving people who use services / records
 73% have received equality and diversity training and the remaining 27% are
booked to complete the training by the end of May 2013. Customer Care
training has been provided to relevant staff.
 Consultants see patients every week and discuss their future plans/decision with
them and documents this decision in the medical notes. An additional section
indicating if information has been discussed with the patient has been included
within the ward documentation.
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Meeting nutritional need
 The Catering Manager has written to all catering staff advising that they are to
inform the wards when there is a change of menu.
 Picture menus informing patients of the choice of food available is provided in
advance of meals and written menus are placed on all wards.
Meeting CQC Essential Standards
The Trust has received 8 inspections and 1 special review (Alderney Hospital, in
respect of dignity and nutrition) of compliance with the 16 Essential Standards of
care. The Judgement definitions used by the CQC to rate Trust compliance are
detailed below.
Met this standard
Action needed Minor Impact
Action needed Moderate Impact
Action needed Major Impact
Enforcement
Action taken

People who use services are experiencing the outcomes
relating to the essential standard.
People who use services experience poor care that had an
impact on their health, safety or welfare, or there is a risk of
this happening.
People who use services experience poor care that had a
significant impact on their health safety and welfare, or there
is a risk of this happening.
People who use services experience poor care that had a
serious current or long-term impact on their health safety
and welfare, or there is a risk of this happening.
Enforcement action covers a range of actions that the CQC
can take if a breach of a regulation is more serious or there
have been several or continual breaches.

The table overleaf provides an overview of each sites compliance with the 16
essential standards where a report has been received. Where minor or moderate
impacts have been identified it is clear from the above CQC Judgement Framework
that all patients who use Trust services are safe.
The Trust values and takes very seriously the feedback the CQC gave us following
their visit to Forston Clinic and in response to this a number of improvements have
been made including:




More than £1 million has been invested in refurbishing the ward and building
a new seclusion facility which complies with all of the latest requirements.
Increasing staffing levels by 39%.
Introducing a robust new leadership structure, consisting of a ward manager,
a matron and a full-time consultant.

All staff working in the new ward has undergone a very comprehensive,
bespoke training programme, covering a wide range of topics, all focusing on
the fundamental principles of delivering care and the values that underpin
this. Detailed action plans have been prepared, including the following areas
for Chalbury Unit and Blandford Hospital.
Chalbury Unit
 Staff reminded of their obligations under Section 132 and checks needing to
take place.
 Documented evidence of capacity and consent recorded in clinical records on
a weekly basis and appropriately signed.
 Updated patient information booklets and ‘right leaflets’ distributed to all
inpatient areas.
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All staff reminded to contact the speciality doctor within 24 hours of admission
to ensure patients are assessed for their physical needs.
Patient’s weight to be recorded on a weekly basis and a nutritional
assessment to be undertaken and where a change in weight is noted, this is
to be care planned.
All staff to attend the Trust’s Prevention and Management of Violence and
Aggression (PMVA) course to ensure they are aware of the therapeutic
interventions in place for patients with challenging behaviour.
Agency Induction Checklist developed and to be used for agency staff to
provide key information which may be needed during a shift.
Additional Safeguarding training will be provided to Chalbury Ward staff by
the Trust Head of Patient Safety.

Blandford Hospital
 Emergency procedures reiterated to all staff and action to take in the event of
cardiac arrest.
 All clinical documentation is now stored using the Trust Electronic Service
User Record (RiO) and substantive staff have received training.
 Review of staffing levels has lead to the amalgamation of all organic beds
from Betty Highwood Unit with those at Chalbury Ward to ensure appropriate
and safe staffing levels.
 Regular review of staffing levels and skill mix
A draft report of the visit to St Ann’s Hospital has been received and an action plan
will be prepared following receipt of the final report from the CQC.
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Overview of Compliance with CQC Essential Standards
OUTCOME
1 – respecting and involving people who use services
2 – consent to care and treatment
4 - care and welfare of people who use services
5 – meeting nutritional needs
6 – cooperating with other providers
7 – safeguarding people who use services from abuse
8 – cleanliness and infection control
9 – management of medicines
10 – safety and suitability of premises
11 – safety, availability and suitability of equipment
12 – requirements relating to workers
13 – staffing
14 – supporting workers
16 – assessing and monitoring the quality of service
17 – complaints
21 – records

Alderney
Hospital

St
Leonards

Trust HQ
(The
Verne)

Westminster
Memorial
Hospital

Forston
Clinic

Chalbury
Unit

Trust HQ
(Poole
CDC)

St Ann’s
Hospital

Blandford
Hospital


NR
NR

NR

NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR
NR
NR



NR

NR
NR

NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR
NR





NR
NR

NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR


NR
NR




NR
NR

NR
NR
NR
NR

NR
NR

NR
NR




NR
NR




NR
NR



NR
NR




NR
NR


NR

NR

NR


NR


NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR


NR
NR

NR


NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR


NR

NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

NR
NR
NR


Key






NR

Met this standard - all standards are being met
Action needed: minor impact – standard is not being met, some areas require improvement
Action needed: moderate impact – standard not being met, compliance action identified and action has been implemented
Action needed: major impact - Concern - compliance action identified and is in hand
Enforcement action taken - the CQC can take a range of actions if a breach of a regulation is more serious or there have been several or
continual breaches.
Not Reviewed by CQC
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Quality of Data
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2012/13 to the Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital
Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data ( Awaiting May 2013 published data). The percentage of records in the published
data:
-

which included the patient’s valid NHS number was:

99.9% for admitted patient care as at March 2013

100% for out patient care as at March 2013

89.3% for accident and emergency care as at March 2013

-

which included the patient’s valid General Practitioner Registration Code was:

100% for admitted patient care as at March 2013

100% for out patient care as at March 2013

100% for accident and emergency care as at March 2013

Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2012/13 was 73% and was
graded ‘not satisfactory’ from the Information Governance Toolkit Grading Scheme, an improvement from the previous year’s ‘red’ grading. Dorset
HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following actions to improve data quality:




Exception reports available to key staff within the Trust which highlights exceptions and data quality issues. Some of these exception reports
give a proactive 1 month position to give indicative scores if nothing is done to data over the following 4 weeks. Reporting to Directorate
Management Groups further helps distribute the exception data. The live exception reports published using Business Objects, would
previously have been available to mental health services provided in the East of the county. Since the migration of West Dorset mental
health teams onto RiO, all mental health services will now have access to these exception reports.
Monitor’s compliance framework details a number of indicators, with specific focus on data quality. For example the “Data Completeness:
Identifiers” further takes component Mental Health Minimum Dataset (MHMDS) data covering NHS Number, date of birth, postcodes,
gender, registered GP, commissioner code etc. to verify data quality. The Q3 position on this indicator was 99.46% accurate. These
indicators are reporting in our internal Directors Management Team and Board performance reports on a monthly basis.

Information on Payment by Results
Dorset HealthCare University Foundation NHS Trust was subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during 2012/13 by the Audit
Commission and the error rates reported in the latest published audit for that period for diagnoses and treatment coding (clinical coding) were as
follows:
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Mental Health Services:
Primary diagnosis – 12%
Secondary diagnosis – 12.7%
Primary Procedures – 0%
Secondary Procedures – N/A
Community Health Services:
Primary diagnosis – 10%
Secondary diagnosis – 10.2%
Primary Procedures – 2.2%
Secondary Procedures – 5.6%
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Performance against Key National Priorities - Quality Indicators 2012/13
The following table provides an overview of the Trust performance against a core set of indicators set by the Department of Health and Monitor.
Data relates to Q4 of 2011/12 and Q4 of 2012/13 as published on the Health and Social Care Information Centre website.
Prescribed information

National
average
2011/12

DHC
2011/12
Position

Comparison National
with other
average
Trusts
2012/13

DHC
2012/13
Position

Comparison
with other
Trusts

The percentage of patients on Care
97.6%
98.43%
Highest –
97.3% (Q4) Q1 – 98.2%
Highest –
Programme Approach who were followed up
100%
Q2 – 98.2%
100%
within 7 days after discharge from psychiatric
Lowest –
Q3 – 98.4%
Lowest –
in patient care during the reporting period.
92.4%
Q4 – 97.2%
92.5%
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:


DHC has exceeded the target of 95% for both 2011/12 Q4 and 2012/13 Q4.

The Dorset Healthcare University NHS Foundation has taken the following action to improve this percentage, and so the quality of its
services, by continuing to follow up patients within 7 days of discharge.
The data made available to the National Health Not
100%
Not
Not
100%
Not available
Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust by the
available
available
available
Health and Social Care Information Centre with
regard to the percentage of admissions to
acute wards for which the Crisis Resolution
home Treatment Team acted as a gatekeeper
during the reporting period.
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:


DHC has exceeded the 95% target for both 2011/12 Q4 and 2012/13 Q4.

The Dorset Healthcare University NHS Foundation has taken the following action to improve this percentage, and so the quality of its
services, by continuing to gate keep admissions via the Crisis Resolution home Treatment Team.

150

Prescribed information

National
average
2011/12

DHC
2011/12
Position

Comparison National
with other
average
Trusts
2012/13

DHC
2012/13
Position

Comparison
with other
Trusts

The data made available to the National Health
Data not 1.14%
Not
Data not
4.34%
Not available
Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust by the
yet
available
yet
Health and Social Care Information Centre with
produced
produced
regard to the percentage of patients aged –
for
for Mental
(i) 0 to 14; and
Mental
Health
(ii) 15 or over readmitted to a hospital which Health
MDS
forms part of the Trust within 28 days MDS
of being discharged from a hospital
which forms part of the Trust during
the reporting period.
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
 There is no comparable data to enable benchmarking.
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve this percentage, and so the
quality of its services by continuing to ensure effective discharge planning to minimise the risk of re-admission.
4
The percentage of staff employed by, or under
57%
64%
Highest 60%
59%
Highest contract to, the trust during the reporting period
75%
80%
who would recommend the Trust as a provider
Lowest –
Lowest –
of care to their family or friends.
57%
39%
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Following the acquisition of services in Dorset in 2011, the Trust has gone through a significant period of organisational change during
2012. This has resulted in uncertainty for some staff and has had an impact on morale in some areas. Whilst disappointing to score
less we did in 2011, the slight decrease in score can be measured against a backdrop of change and gives us a consistent platform
for improvement.
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve this percentage, and so the
quality of its services by reviewing and updating its rolling Staff Survey Action Plan each year following publication of the NHS Staff
Survey results. As an organisation whose aspiration statement is “Providing care all of us would recommend to family and friends”
Key Finding 24 represents an area where we want to do consistently well and to improve. This year, we shall be introducing 34

This score has been produced by combining the percentage score for ‘strongly agree’ and ‘agree’ responses to the question ‘"If a friend or relative needed treatment, I would be happy with
the standard of care provided by this organisation".
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Prescribed information

National
average
2011/12

DHC
2011/12
Position

Comparison National
with other
average
Trusts
2012/13

DHC
2012/13
Position

Comparison
with other
Trusts

monthly internal staff mini-surveys to canvas staff opinion on how and why they take a particular view on their recommendation of the
Trust as a place to work or receive treatment and to invite, consider and implement suggestions for improvement, so actions can be
targeted sooner for areas where staff would not recommend the Trust.
“Patient experience of community mental health Not
services” indicator score with regard to a
available
patient’s experience of contact with a health or
social care worker during the reporting period.

8.43

Not
available

Not
available

8.6

Highest
– 9.1
Lowest
– 8.2

(Trust performance identifies whether a trust has
been performing ‘better’, ‘about the same’ or ‘worse’
in comparison to other trusts. These categories are
based on the ‘expected range’ that is calculated for
each question, for each trust. This is the range in
which a particular trust is expected to score if it
performed about the same as most other trusts in the
survey.)

The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:


There is no comparable data for 2011/12 to enable benchmarking.



Health and Social Care Worker section score of 8.6 for 2012/13 is made up of:
o Did this person listen carefully to you - 8.8
o Did this person take your views into account – 8.2
o Did you have trust and confidence in this person – 8.3
o Did this person treat you with respect and dignity – 9.4
o Were you given enough time to discuss your condition – 8.2

The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the score, and so the quality
of its services, by implementing the overarching Community Mental Health Survey 2012 Action Plan.
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Prescribed information

National
average
2011/12

The number and, where available, rate of
patient safety incidents reported within the
Trust during the reporting period, and the
number and percentage of such patient safety
incidents that results in severe harm or death.

Just under
1%

DHC
2011/12
Position

Comparison National
with other
average
Trusts
2012/13

2.1%*

0.8% all (All

(for the period
01/04/11 to
30/09/11 – from
NRLS data which
reports 6 month
period with a 6
month delay )

mental health
organisations)

Just under
1%

DHC
2012/13
Position

Comparison
with other
Trusts

0.51%

1.09% (from

(for a six month
period ( 01/04/12
to 30/09/12 –
from NRLS data
which reports 6
month period
with a 6 month
delay)

internal database
for full 12 month
period)

The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
The Trust is within the top 3rd of mental health reporting organisations and levels of severe harm or death are below the comparison
data provided by the NRLS report. Incidents of death following a suicide are reported to the NRLS irrespective of whether the incident
was deemed to be a patient safety incident in line with CQC reporting requirements.
It is not possible to provide a 2011/2012 comparison from internal systems as during this year the two community health service
transfer to the Trust and each had different incident reporting systems and procedures as classifications
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve this percentage, and so the
quality of its services, by continuing to promote a reporting culture and has processes in place to review the quality of the incident
reporting data.
The Trust’s patient reported outcome measure
scores for groin hernia surgery (2011/12 & and April
– September 2012 information is provisional data provided by
the HES website)

(PROMs data is derived from pre and post
operative questionnaires sent to patients
undergoing groin hernia surgical procedures. All
patients, irrespective of their condition, are asked to
complete a common set of questions about their
health status. The EQ-5D health questionnaire asks
patients to classify their health based on selfassessed levels of problems (“no”, “some”,

EQ-5D
Index
Average
adjusted
health gain
0.087

EQ-5D
Index
Average
adjusted
health gain
0.091

EQ-5D Index EQ-5D
Lowest
Index
0.03
Average
adjusted
Highest
health gain
0.143
0.091

EQ-5D
Index
Average
adjusted
health gain
0.058

EQ-5D Index
Lowest
0.017
Highest
0.158
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Prescribed information

National
average
2011/12

DHC
2011/12
Position

EQ-5D
VAS
Average
adjusted
health gain
-0.432

EQ-5D
VAS
Average
adjusted
health gain
-0.388

Comparison National
with other
average
Trusts
2012/13

DHC
2012/13
Position

Comparison
with other
Trusts

EQ-5D
EQ-5D
EQ-5D VAS
VAS
VAS
Lowest
Average
Average
-6.005
adjusted
adjusted
health gain
Highest
health gain -1.421
Highest
2.758
-0.603
5.188
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
The Trust undertakes a relatively small number of operations at three of its community hospitals.
The patients are carefully screened for surgery in a community hospital and are therefore relatively otherwise healthy individuals
whose scores for health state are generally high in the first instance. The Trust continues to monitor all PROMS data on an ongoing
basis.
The Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve this score, and so the quality
of its services, by continuing to regularly review detailed patient level data to identify issues/trends which may impact on patients’
health following surgery and take action if issues are identified.
“extreme” in the following five areas: mobility, selfcare, usual activities, pain/discomfort and
anxiety/depression. The second is the EQ-VAS,
which asks patients to indicate their overall health
on a simple scale from 0 to 100, 0 being the worst
and 100 being the best state.)

EQ-5D VAS
Lowest
-5.448

NOTE: *In relation to degree of harm, the Trust fell into the upper quartile nationally in relation to severe harm. This has not been the case in previous reports for
the Trust. As a result of this a Trust review took place. It was identified that a proportion of incidents for services previously provided by Dorset Community Health
Services should not have been shown as severe, in terms of actual harm. It was further identified that some incidents were not patient safety incidents or that the
harm described was not as a result of an adverse incident. The National Patient Safety Agency who publishes the report has been informed and whilst published
data will not be amended the Trust calculates that true figure is around 1%.
‡
Severe harm is defined as permanent harm.
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PART 3: HOW TO CONTACT US
Let us know what you think
We hope that our Quality Account has been informative and interesting to you. We
welcome feedback, along with any suggestions you may have for next year’s
publication. Please get in touch with:
The Director of Quality
Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust
Trust Headquarters
11 Shelley Road
Boscombe
BH1 4JQ
Email: jane.elson@dhuft.nhs.uk
Join us as a member and have a say in our future plans
A representative and meaningful membership is important to the success of the Trust
and provides members of our local communities the opportunity to be involved in how
the Trust and its services are developed and improved. Membership is free and the
extent to which our members are involved is entirely up to them. Some are happy to
receive a newsletter 4 times a year while others are keen to be involved in
consultations and come along to meetings. Some have even become members of
our Council of Governors. For further information please contact our Membership
Office on 0808 100 3318 or email:membership@dhuft.nhs.uk.
Check out our website
Our website provides comprehensive details of the trust’s services and where they
are provided, information about mental health, learning disabilities and community
health services, what to do in a crisis, updates on Trust initiatives and links to other
useful websites.
There is also a section about Foundation trust membership under the ’About the
Trust/Membership’ heading, where there is an opportunity to sign up online.
Visit: www.dorsethealtcare.nhs.uk
This Quality Account can be found on the NHS Choices website at www.nhs.uk.
This report can be made available in a variety of formats, available on request.
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ANNEX 1
FEEDBACK FROM OUR STAKEHOLDERS
Council of Governors
Although the Governors were disappointed in the position the Trust found itself in
relation to Minterne, they responded quickly to the problems which were highlighted.
In the past, management, senior administrative staff and governors have been used
to working in an organisation which was excellent in every respect. The Governors
understand there’s always room for improvement and have seen positive steps taken
by the Board to tackle the challenges being faced by the Trust who are working
robustly to ensure we regain our position as a top performer.
The dashboards show positive improvements and targets being met in most areas.
Performances against key National Quality indicators were above national average.
Clinical Commissioning Group
Over the past year Dorset HealthCare University NHS Foundation Trust have striven
to maintain its focus on improving the quality of care provided to individuals. The key
priorities identified for 2012/13 have shown improvement in the scope of patient
experience and feedback systems in use. There is also reported reduction in level of
harm caused from patient falls, pressure ulcers, Urinary tract infections and patients
going absent without leave granted.
During the year the Care Quality Commission conducted inspection visits to several
locations within the organisation which have been outlined within the Quality
Account. These visits found that improvements needed to be made to some
services. Whilst this is disappointing, NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG_ acknowledges that the Trust has acted quickly to address the issues
identified and will continue to work with the Trust to ensure that the places the
organisation is putting in place will improve standards.
The CCG supports the Quality Improvements Priorities that their Trust has set for
2013/14 and looks forward to working with Dorset HealthCare University NHS
Foundation Trust over the coming year.
Health Watch
Patient Experience
Healthwatch Dorset welcomes the Trusts plans to improve the quality and standard
of CPA reviews in Mental Health. We would be particularly interested in how you plan
to involve people more in the assessment of their own needs and in the development
of the plan to meet those needs.
The LINks involvement with the Trusts Patient and Public Engagement (PPE) group
over the last year has proved very useful. As a result, the LINks reading group
volunteers recently helped the Trust to re-write their complaint satisfaction survey.
Healthwatch Dorset plans to continue working closely with the Trusts PPE group.
We are concerned that the national ‘friends and family’ test is too simplistic to drive
any real changes. We’d encourage the Trust to use a wide range of appropriate
methods to engage service users, carers and the public.
We would also like to know what strategies the Trust has in place to ensure that
service users and carers are involved in the design and planning of future service
delivery. The major changes to the community dental service in 2012 were planned
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for over 2 years without any engagement with service users, carers, local support
groups, LINks or even the Trusts own Health Action Group. Local groups raised
concerns with the LINks last year that service users, carers and local groups had not
been involved in the planning and design of this service change. Their main concern
was that if service users had been engaged in the process from the start, the main
issues (clear communication and transport etc) would have been identified early on
and dealt with.
We would like to know how lessons have been learnt from this process and what
changes you have made to ensure shared decision-making in the future, ‘nothing
about me without me’.
Patient Safety
Healthwatch Dorset is keen to see implementation of the Dementia Care Pathway
across all services. We would also urge the Trust to involve service user and carer
experience in staff training for falls etc.
Clinical Effectiveness
We look forward to seeing how the staff innovation platform will work and we’d
encourage the Trust to also involve service users and carers ideas and innovations in
the pilot.
Overview Scrutiny Committees
Dorset Health Scrutiny Committee
“The Dorset Health Scrutiny Committee appreciates the regular meetings that its
members had throughout the year with Trust staff to consider the Quality Account.
These meetings have given members a much clearer understanding of the services
provided by the Trust, particularly since it assimilated into its remit the community
health services previously provided by NHS Bournemouth and Poole and NHS
Dorset. Members felt that the Trust had worked hard to harmonise and improve for
the enlarged Trust the reporting systems previously used by the three organisations,
such as the early warning trigger tool. Members recognised that this had been a big
task and the Trust was to be commended for its efforts.
Members also felt that raising the profile of some specific health care issues, such as
VTE, appear to be a good way of improving services. Another good example
highlighted in the Quality Account is that of catheter-associated urinary tract
infections. There has been a marked reduction in the number of catheterised patients
as a whole and also in the percentage of catheterised patients who have developed
UTI over the same period. Positive results are also recorded in the Quality Account
for the number of absconding incidents across mental health services which staff
related to a number of contributing factors including earlier engagement with patients
as well as making some physical changes to access points.
Members were disappointed to note that the Trust had not met the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) standards in relation to several of the CQC outcomes,
particularly in relation to Minterne Ward at Forston Clinic, but also at the Chalbury
Unit in Weymouth. Members felt that it was unfortunate that the Trust did not pick up
on these problems in a more timely fashion and take appropriate, speedy and
corrective action. Members want to be assured that lessons have been learnt by the
Trust and there will not be a repeat of these shortcomings.
Trust staff have been open and receptive to the comments and suggestions made by
the Committee with regard to the Quality Account and members look forward in the
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coming year to tracking progress of the quality improvement priorities identified for
2013-14.
Bournemouth Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
It is recommended that the Panel: Congratulate the Trust on its achievements in 2012-13, and endorse the
quality improvement priorities identified for 2013-14.
The Panel requested the following: To be informed of the satisfaction score relating to the local real time survey
for the Mental Health Acute Inpatient Service when it is available.
 To be informed when the Forston Clinic reopens.
 That the results of the external review of the Trust’s Quality Governance
arrangements be shared with the Panel, on completion of the review this
summer.
Poole Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Members of Borough of Poole’s Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee would like to thank Dorset Healthcare University Foundation Trust for the
opportunity to comment on the 2012/13 Quality Account which we felt gave a
comprehensive and very clear account of activities undertaken to improve services
over the financial year.
The HSCOSC members were encouraged to see the three priorities for improvement
set out by the Trust with quality care and compassion at the heart of organization.
We would like to commend the Trust on their on-going commitment to developing
innovative ways gaining patient experience with 16 out of 31 services scoring 100%
satisfaction from patients regarding the services they had received. The Trust has
also taken clear steps to implementing improvements to the remaining 15 services
with the lower scores recorded from patient feed back. We note the implementation
of programmes in the areas set out on Pages 6/7,
We are impressed with the Quality Improvement Priorities 2013-14 and believe they
will have an impact on improving services for carers and patients.
We are also impressed with the steps taken to drive up patient safety across a
number of areas for both in-patients and those being treated within their
communities. Most noticeable was the reduction in the number of in-patient falls,
reducing the number of catheter related infections and reducing the number of
patients leaving in-patient wards within mental health services prior to being ready for
discharge.
We are also encouraged by the wide use setting goals with patients when they enter
the service and the outcomes they achieve when being discharged from services.
It is also pleasing to note that areas of concern such as the quality of service delivery
at Alderney Hospital Minterne Ward, Forston Clinic, St Ann’s Hospital and some
areas of service delivery at Blandford Community Hospital were immediately being
addressed. Members of the HSCOSC want to be assured that lessons have been
learned and would like to receive an update on how these services perform as part of
the Forward Plan.
Thank you once again for the opportunity to comment on what we felt was a very
interesting, comprehensive and particularly clear Quality Account.
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Glossary of Terms
AWOL (Absent without leave)
A period of Absence Without Leave occurs when service users/patients who are detained in
hospital under the Mental Health Act 1983, subject to guardianship or who are on
Supervised Community Treatment (SCT) orders and have been recalled to hospital and
whose whereabouts are not known and cannot be established. This includes service users
who do not return at the authorised time from Section 17 leave or service users subject to
SCT in the community are unknown.
Adverse incidents
Any event or circumstance arising that could have or did lead to serious unintended or
unexpected harm, loss or damage.
Essentially serious adverse incidents are those which cause (or have the potential to cause)
the most harm either to individuals (staff, service users, visitors, contractors, others) or to
the organisation. These include unexpected deaths; injuries causing major and permanent
physical or psychological harm; large-scale theft or fraud; outbreak of Legionnaires disease;
major fire or flood; etc.
Care Programme Approach (CPA)
The process that providers of mental health care use to co-ordinate the care, treatment and
support for people who have mental health needs.
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
The CQC is the independent regulator of health and adult social care services in England. It
also protects the interests of people whose rights are restricted under the Mental Health Act.
Clinical audits
A systematic process for setting and monitoring standards of clinical care. ‘Guidelines’
define what the best clinical practice should be, ‘audit’ investigates whether best practice is
being carried out and makes recommendations for improvement.
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)
A payment framework that has been a compulsory part of the NHS contract from 2009/10. It
allows all local health communities to develop their own schemes to encourage quality
improvement and recognise innovation by making a proportion of NHS service provider’s
income conditional on locally agreed goals.
Community Mental Health Team (CMHT)
Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs) are multi-disciplinary, multi-agency assessment
teams designed to provide mental health care and treatment for individuals with more
complex and enduring mental health needs in the community.
Council of Governors
The Council of Governors are guardians of the Trust working on behalf of local communities
and staff. The Council ensure that the Trust complies with the terms of its authorisation as
an NHS Foundation Trust and meets regularly to advise the Board of Directors on the
Trust’s development and strategies.
Electrocardiogram (ECG)
A simple and useful test which records the rhythm and electrical activity of your heart.
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Foundation Trust
Foundation Trusts are a type of NHS organisation with greater local accountability and
freedom to manage themselves. They remain within the NHS overall, and provide the same
services as traditional trusts, but have more freedom to set local goals. Staff and members
of the public can join their Boards or become members.
GAD7 (Generalized Anxiety Disorder 7 – Item scale)
Self administered patient questionnaire is used as a screening tool and severity measure for
generalised anxiety disorder.
Hospital Episode Statistics
Hospital Episode Statistics is the national statistical data warehouse for England of the care
provided by NHS hospitals and for NHS hospital patients treated elsewhere.
Information Governance Toolkit
An online tool that enables organisations to measure their performance against information
governance standards. There are several elements of law and policy from which information
governance standards are derived. It encompasses legal requirements, central guidance
and best practice in information handling, including:
• The common law duty of confidentiality
• Data Protection Act 1998
• Information security
• Information quality
• Records management
• Freedom of Information Act 2000.
Local Involvement Network (LINk)
A LINk is a network of local people, organisations and groups from across the community
that want to make care services better. There is one for every local authority area.
Their aim is to provide a stronger voice for local people in the planning, design,
commissioning and provision of health and social care services.
Monitor
The independent regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, ensuring they are well led and
financially robust
National Institute of Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE)
NICE provides guidance, sets quality standards and manages a national database to
improve people’s health and prevent and treat ill health.
NICE makes recommendations to the NHS on:
• New and existing medicines, treatments and procedures
• Treating and caring for people with specific diseases and conditions
• How to improve people’s health and prevent illness and disease.
National Patient Safety Agency
The National Patient Safety Agency is an arm’s-length body of the Department of Health,
responsible for promoting patient safety wherever the NHS provides care.
National patient surveys
The National Patient Survey Programme, coordinated by the Care Quality Commission,
gathers feedback from patients on different aspects of their experience of recently received
care, across a variety of services/settings.
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National Research Ethics Service
The National Research Ethics Service is part of the National Patient Safety Agency. It
provides a robust ethical review of clinical trials to protect the safety, dignity and well-being
of research participants as well as ensure through the delivery of a professional service that
it is also able to promote and facilitate ethical research within the NHS.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
Each local authority is required to have an OSC to scrutinise public services outside its own
organisation, including health. It has statutory powers to call in witnesses from local NHS
bodies and make recommendations that NHS organisations must consider as part of their
decision-making processes. Similarly, there is a requirement on NHS organisations to
consult with health overview and scrutiny committees when considering substantial
developments or variations to services.
Patient Reported Outcomes (PROMs)
PROMs assess the quality of care delivered to NHS patients from the patients perspective.
Cover 4 clinical procedures, PROMs calculate the health gains after surgical treatment using
pre and post operative surveys.
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
PALS is an impartial service designed to ensure that the NHS listens to patients, their
relatives, carers and friends, and answers their questions and resolves their concerns as
quickly as possible.
PALS also helps the NHS to improve services and make changes by listening to what
matters to patients and their loved ones.
PHQ9 (Patient Health Questionnaire)
Self administered patient questionnaire used to monitor the severity of depression and
response to treatment.
POMH
Prescribing Observatory for Mental Health (Royal College of Psychiatrists).
Pressure Ulcer
Pressure ulcers are a type of injury that break down the skin and underlying tissue. They are
caused when an area of skin is placed under pressure. They are also sometimes known as
'bedsores' or 'pressure sores'
Recovery Star
The Recovery Star is a key-working and outcomes measurement tool designed to map an
individual’s journey towards recovery. It uses a ‘Ladder of Change’ as a framework for
service users, supported by their key-worker, to explore key themes in working towards
recovery; managing mental health, self-care, living skills, social networks, work,
relationships, addictive behaviour, responsibilities, identity and self-esteem, trust and hope.
Research
Clinical research and clinical trials are an everyday part of the NHS. The people who do
research are mostly the same doctors and other health professionals who treat people. A
clinical trial is a particular type of research that tests one treatment against another. It may
involve either patients or people in good health, or both.
Root Cause Analysis
Root Cause Analysis (RCA) is the structured approach to indentifying the factors which
resulted in an incident. The root causes are the fundamental issues which have led to an
incident occurring and must be addressed to improve the delivery of care.
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RUOK?
Instead of waiting for patients to call for help, with ‘RUOK rounds’ (Are You OK) nurses take
the initiative and visit the patients’ bedside at regular intervals to do whatever the patient
needs and see they are alright.
Safeguarding
A term used in conjunction with measures that are taken to protect, safeguard and promote
the health and welfare of children and vulnerable people. Ensuring they live free from harm,
abuse and neglect.
Scorecards
Fully named The Balanced Scorecard, this is a performance management tool that sets out
in tabular form, in a single place, all of the targets and standards the Trust must meet and
how we are doing against them. It is reported monthly to the Board, Primary Care Trusts
(PCTs) and local authorities, and internally to our operational services. It enables everyone
to see what our performance is and to target improvements where they are needed. It is
supported by weekly internal reports that break performance down to team and ward level.
Secondary Uses Service
The Secondary Uses Service is designed to provide anonymous patient-based data for
purposes other than direct clinical care such as healthcare planning, commissioning, public
health, clinical audit and governance, benchmarking, performance improvement, medical
research and national policy development.
Venous Thrombosis (VTE)
Venous thrombosis or phlebothrombosis is a blood clot (thrombus) that forms within a vein.
Urinary Catheter Assessment and Monitoring’ (UCAM)
This tool reflects the insertion and compliance requirements of the Department of Health’s
‘High Impact Interventions’.
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